
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Tuesday, November 26, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance……..…………………………...Board Member Keith McDonald 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call .................................................................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of October 24, 2024 minutes  
B. Layover of November 14, 2024 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda….…………………………………………….………………….…… Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments shall lay over until 

the second board meeting after they are first introduced) 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees…………..………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee……………………………………………………John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood 

Northern Illinois District Grant Award to be Laid Over 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

3. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood Central 
Illinois District Grant Award to be Laid Over 

4. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood 
Southern Illinois District Grant Award to be Laid Over 

5. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for FY2024 Year End Adjustments to be 
Laid Over 

6. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Enhancing Investigation and 
Prosecution (EIP) Grant Award to be Laid Over 

7. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 
entitled Cole Henert versus Winnebago County 
 

B. Zoning Committee ....................................................... .Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. V-01-24 A Variation from 18.3.6 C. 1. to allow a Fence in the Required Front Yard -in 
Front of Front Building Line- to have a Height as High as 10 Feet 6 Inches, inclusive of 
lights (although the Majority of the Fence will be 8 Feet 6 Inches, Inclusive of Lights) 
Instead of the Permitted 4 Feet on a Lot that is Zoned AG, Agricultural Priority District 
for the property that is commonly known as 7376 Prairie Hill Road, South Beloit, IL 
61080, in Roscoe Township, District 4, to be laid over. 

2. Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 2 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a 
Solar Farm) on a 33.39 +- Acre Site Commonly Known as 5626 Tipple Road / 5303 
Dailette Road (PIN: 15-17-100-008), Rockford, Il 61102, in Rockford Township, District 
9, to be laid over. 

3. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  
2. Resolution Approving the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds for Economic Impact 

Program for the Chairman’s Initiative Group Six (6) Project — Harlem Community 
Center 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ........... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution for Approval for Stop-Loss Insurance 
3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Arthur J. Gallagher 

for the Property and Casualty Coverage 
Cost: $2,647,972 

4. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Phone Call Distribution System Using CIP 25 Funds 
Cost: $62,015 

5. Resolution Awarding Cybersecurity Backup Annual Licensing Using Department 
Funding 
Cost: $128,442 

6. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Vehicle Pool Replacements Using CIP 2024 Funds 
Cost: $69,705 

7. Resolution Awarding LED Upgrades for Courthouse Garage Tunnel Using CIP 2024 
Funds 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 3  

Cost: $34,542 
8. Resolution Awarding Flooring Replacement for the States Attorney Office Using CIP 23 

PSST Funds 
  Cost: $145,000 

9. Resolution Awarding Public Safety Building Design-Build Contract to Ringland-Johnson 
Construction Using ARPA Funds 
Cost: $32,000,000 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements between the County 

of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods 
(PSN) Partners - NDIL 

3. Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements between the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods 
(PSN) Partners - SDIL 

4. Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements between the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods 
(PSN) Partners – CDIL 

5. Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Agreement for Police Services with 815 
Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

 
G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ......................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, December 12, 2024 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 































CONSENT 
AGENDA 



All applying organizations have complied with the requirements of the Winnebago

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

31196 1
ROCKY MOUNTAIN ELK 
FOUNDATION 12/04/24-03/22/25 $9,511.00

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

The Following Have Requested a Class D,E,& F Limited Annual License
LICENSE # OF

# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

31197 1
WHITE EAGLE CLUB OF 
ROCKFORD 12/01/24-11/30/25 $2,500.00

31198 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (CHERRY 
BOWL) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31199 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (CHERRY 
BOWL) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31200 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (CHERRY 
BOWL) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

The Following Have Requested a Class C, One Time Emergency License

RAFFLE APPLICATION REPORT

Presently the County Clerk's office has  Raffle Applications submitted by
7  different organization for 37  Raffles.

County Raffle Ordinance.  All fees have been collected, bonds received and all
individuals involved with the raffles have received the necessary Sheriff's

Department clearance.

The Following Have Requested A Class A, General License

The Following Have Requested a Class B, MULTIPLE (2, 3 OR 4) LICENSE



31201 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (CHERRY 
BOWL) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31202 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (CHERRY 
BOWL) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31203 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (CHERRY 
BOWL) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31204 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (CHERRY 
BOWL) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31205 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (DON 
CARTER LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31206 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (DON 
CARTER LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31207 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (DON 
CARTER LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31208 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (DON 
CARTER LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31209 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (DON 
CARTER LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31210 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (DON 
CARTER LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31211 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (DON 
CARTER LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31212 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (FOREST 
HILLS LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31213 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (FOREST 
HILLS LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31214 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (FOREST 
HILLS LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31215 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (FOREST 
HILLS LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00



31216 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (FOREST 
HILLS LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31217 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (FOREST 
HILLS LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31218 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (FOREST 
HILLS LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31219 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (PARK 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31220 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (PARK 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31221 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (PARK 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31222 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (PARK 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31223 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (PARK 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31224 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (PARK 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31225 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (PARK 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31226 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (VIKING 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31227 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (VIKING 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31228 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (VIKING 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31229 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (VIKING 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31230 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (VIKING 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00



31231 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (VIKING 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

31232 1

NORTHERN IL BPA 
FOUNDATION (VIKING 
LANES) 01/01/25-12/31/25 $100.00

Deputy Clerk Daisy Carrillo

Date

This concludes my report,

26-Nov-24LORI GUMMOW
Winnebago County Clerk







Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By: Finance Department  
Committee: Finance 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood 
Northern Illinois District Grant Award 
County Code:  Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No    Appropriation Amount:   $0 

If not, explain funding source:  Department of Justice Grant 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 61400 COCJI Grants / various / PN24x FY24 PSN NI Grant 

FY2025 Budget Impact: $239,355 for Year 1 of award 

Background Information: The Department of Justice Project Safe Neighborhoods initiative has 
awarded Winnebago County funding to serve as the fiscal agent for administration of programs 
in the Northern Illinois district selected by the Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force with final 
approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement: N/A  

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up:  Adjust Munis line Items        



1 

2025 Fiscal Year Finance: November 21, 2024 
Lay Over: November 26, 2024 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: December 12, 2024 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2024 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood Northern IL 
District Grant Award 

WHEREAS, Winnebago County will be assuming the role of Fiscal Agent for the Department 
of Justice, Northern District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods initiative and has been 
awarded funding in the total of $306,686 for a two-year period; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 at its September 26, 2024 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #25-004 FY24 PSN-Northern IL District. 



2 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 



11/21/2024
Chairman's Ofc of Crim Justice Initiatives Marlana Dokken

0314 - COCJI Grants Fund

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61400 41110 PN241 Regular Salary $0 $0 $0 $7,400 $7,400
61400 41221 PN241 Life Insurance $0 $0 $0 $6 $6
61400 41231 PN241 IMRF $0 $0 $0 $142 $142
61400 41241 PN241 FICA $0 $0 $0 $575 $575
61400 42110 PN241 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $613 $613
61400 43310 PN241 Travel $0 $0 $0 $4,196 $4,196
61400 48211 PN241 Health Insurance $0 $0 $0 $2,694 $2,694
61400 48220 PN241 Indirect Costs $0 $0 $0 $6,560 $6,560
61400 43190 PN242 Subaward-Cook Co State's Atty $0 $0 $0 $162,516 $162,516
61400 43190 PN243 Subaward-IL Dept of Corrections $0 $0 $0 $54,653 $54,653

Revenue
61400 32110 PN241 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (22,186) ($22,186)
61400 32110 PN242 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (162,516)                ($162,516)
61400 32110 PN243 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (54,653) ($54,653)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Grant award

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2025 budget:  $239,355

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

The County will be assuming the role as fiscal agent for the United States Department of Justice, Northern Illinois Project Safe 
Neighborhoods initiative.  Final grant award was received after the FY25 budget process was completed.  This amendment appropriates 
funds for the first year of the agreement.

2025-004

61400-COCJI GrantsDEPT. BUDGET NO.

2025
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By: Finance Department  
Committee: Finance 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood 
Central Illinois District Grant Award 
County Code:  Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No    Appropriation Amount:   $0 

If not, explain funding source:  Department of Justice Grant 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 61400 COCJI Grants / various / PC24x FY24 PSN CI Grant 

FY2025 Budget Impact: $96,711 for Year 1 of award 

Background Information: The Department of Justice Project Safe Neighborhoods initiative has 
awarded Winnebago County funding to serve as the fiscal agent for administration of programs 
in the Central Illinois district selected by the Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force with final 
approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement: N/A  

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up:  Adjust Munis line Items        



1 

2025 Fiscal Year Finance: November 21, 2024 
Lay Over: November 26, 2024 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: December 12, 2024 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2024 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood Central IL 
District Grant Award 

WHEREAS, Winnebago County will be assuming the role of Fiscal Agent for the Department 
of Justice, Central District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods initiative and has been awarded 
funding in the total of $112,328 for a two-year period; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 at its September 26, 2024 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #25-005 FY24 PSN Central IL District Grant Award. 



2 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 



11/21/2024
Chairman's Ofc of Crim Justice Initiatives Marlana Dokken

0314 - COCJI Grants Fund

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61400 41110 PC241 Regular Salary $0 $0 $0 $3,076 $3,076
61400 41221 PC241 Life Insurance $0 $0 $0 $2 $2
61400 41231 PC241 IMRF $0 $0 $0 $55 $55
61400 41241 PC241 FICA $0 $0 $0 $235 $235
61400 42110 PC241 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $522 $522
61400 43310 PC241 Travel $0 $0 $0 $4,196 $4,196
61400 48211 PC241 Health Insurance $0 $0 $0 $1,125 $1,125
61400 48220 PC241 Indirect Costs $0 $0 $0 $921 $921
61400 43190 PC242 Subaward-Roberts Analytics $0 $0 $0 $10,320 $10,320
61400 43190 PC243 Subaward-IL State Police $0 $0 $0 $76,259 $76,259

Revenue
61400 32110 PC241 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (10,132) ($10,132)
61400 32110 PC242 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (10,320) ($10,320)
61400 32110 PC243 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (76,259) ($76,259)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Grant award

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2025 budget:  $96,711

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

The County will be assuming the role as fiscal agent for the United States Department of Justice, Central Illinois Project Safe 
Neighborhoods initiative.  Final grant award was received after the FY25 budget process was completed.  This amendment appropriates 
funds for the first year of the agreement.

2025-005

61400-COCJI GrantsDEPT. BUDGET NO.

2025
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By: Finance Department  
Committee: Finance 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood 
Southern Illinois District Grant Award 
County Code:  Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No    Appropriation Amount:   $0 

If not, explain funding source:  Department of Justice Grant 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 61400 COCJI Grants / various / PS24x FY24 PSN SI Grant 

FY2025 Budget Impact: $77,507 

Background Information: The Department of Justice Project Safe Neighborhoods initiative has 
awarded Winnebago County funding to serve as the fiscal agent for administration of programs 
in the Southern Illinois district selected by the Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force with final 
approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement: N/A  

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up:  Adjust Munis line Items        



1 

2025 Fiscal Year Finance: November 21, 2024 
Lay Over: November 26, 2024 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: December 12, 2024 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2024 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood Southern IL 
District Grant Award 

WHEREAS, Winnebago County will be assuming the role of Fiscal Agent for the Department 
of Justice, Southern District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods initiative and has been 
awarded funding in the total of $77,507 for a one-year period; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 at its September 26, 2024 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #25-006 FY24 PSN Southern IL District Grant Award. 



2 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 



11/21/2024
Chairman's Ofc of Crim Justice Initiatives Marlana Dokken

0314 - COCJI Grants Fund

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61400 41110 PS241 Regular Salary $0 $0 $0 $3,076 $3,076
61400 41221 PS241 Life Insurance $0 $0 $0 $2 $2
61400 41231 PS241 IMRF $0 $0 $0 $60 $60
61400 41241 PS241 FICA $0 $0 $0 $235 $235
61400 42110 PS241 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $300 $300
61400 43310 PS241 Travel $0 $0 $0 $4,196 $4,196
61400 48211 PS241 Health Insurance $0 $0 $0 $1,101 $1,101
61400 48220 PS241 Indirect Costs $0 $0 $0 $2,977 $2,977
61400 43190 PS242 Subaward-E St. Louis Housing Authority $0 $0 $0 $65,560 $65,560

Revenue
61400 32110 PS241 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (11,947)                  ($11,947)
61400 32110 PS242 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (65,560)                  ($65,560)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Grant award

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2025 budget:  $77,507

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

The County will be assuming the role as fiscal agent for the United States Department of Justice, Southern Illinois Project Safe 
Neighborhoods initiative.  Final grant award was received after the FY25 budget process was completed.  This amendment appropriates 
funds for the first year of the agreement.

2025-006

61400-COCJI GrantsDEPT. BUDGET NO.

2025
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



Ordinance Executive Summary
 

Prepared By:         Steve Schultz 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    November 21, 2024 

Ordinance Title:      Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for FY2024 Year End Adjustments 

Board Meeting Date:    November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No  Appropriation Amount:   See Attached 

If not, explain funding source:  See Attached details 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Various 

FY2024 Budget Impact: Varies by Fund 

Background Information:  The Winnebago County fiscal year ended as of September 30, 2024. Accounting 
entries are made through the end of December for revenues and expenses that relate to activity occurring 
in the prior fiscal year.  Upon review of accounts at the beginning of November, certain revenues and 
expenditures have exceeded budgeted amounts.  Details are included in the attached documentation and 
vary by fund.  

Recommendation:    Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement:   Not applicable 

Legal Review:   Not applicable 

Follow-Up:   Not applicable 



1 

2024 Fiscal Year Finance:   November 21, 2024 
Lay Over:   November 26, 2024 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote:    December 12, 2024 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2024 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for FY2024 Year End Adjustments 

WHEREAS, Winnebago County’s fiscal year ended September 30, 2024 and activity 
related to this time period is required to be recorded in that appropriate period per generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Certain revenues and expenses have exceeded 
budgeted amounts. This amendment will update the budget to reflect actual activity; and, 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 at its September 28, 2023 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #24-010 FY2024 Year End Amendment. 



2 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 
 



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0001‐General Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

11000 41110 Auditor‐Salary $189,610 $0 $189,610 $11,640 $201,250
11000 43942 Auditor‐Instruction & Schooling $750 $0 $750 $845 $1,595
11500 41110 City Election‐Salary $139,038 $0 $139,038 $2,839 $141,877
12000 41110 Facilities‐Salary $1,518,815 $0 $1,518,815 ($135,000) $1,383,815
12000 43620 Facilities‐Electricity $1,600,000 $0 $1,600,000 $200,296 $1,800,296
12000 43630 Facilities‐Water $133,871 $0 $133,871 $16,500 $150,371
12000 43730 Facilities‐Equip Repairs & Maint $426,604 $0 $426,604 $70,328 $496,932
12503 41110 County Board‐Salary $196,000 $0 $196,000 $1,120 $197,120
12503 42115 County Board‐Non Cap Ofc Equip $0 $0 $0 $595 $595
12503 43310 County Board‐Travel $0 $0 $0 $1,500 $1,500
12503 43941 County Board‐Dues & Membership $0 $0 $0 $400 $400
13500 41211 General Fund‐Health Insurance $7,912,831 $0 $7,912,831 ($646,841) $7,265,990
13500 41999 General Fund‐Contingency  $610,000 $0 $610,000 ($610,000) $0
13500 49110 General Fund‐Txfr to Other Funds $12,380,780 $0 $12,380,780 $1,256,841 $13,637,621
17000 41110 Treasurer‐Salary $346,377 $0 $346,377 $14,490 $360,867
27000 43130 PSB‐Engineering $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000
27000 43620 PSB‐Electricity $0 $0 $0 $89,752 $89,752
31000 44130 State's Atty‐Copier Chargeback $40,000 $0 $40,000 $3,087 $43,087
33500 43913 Jury Commission‐Jurors $180,000 $0 $180,000 $276 $180,276

Revenue
12503 39510 County Board‐Vendor Reimbursements $0 $0 $0 (1,865)                     ($1,865)

$306,803

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $306,803

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

Increase budget for various expenses based on year end actuals for the General Fund and transfer available budget health insurance 

and contingency funds to the Health Insurance Fund.

24‐010a

VariousDEPT. BUDGET NO.



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0101‐PSST

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

40100 49110 PSST‐Transfer to Other Funds $4,035,220 $0 $4,035,220 $877,422 $4,912,642

Revenue
$0 $0 $0 $0

$877,422

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Transfer available health insurance and contingency budget amounts to the Health Insurance Fund,

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  None

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010b

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. Various



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0108‐Court Security Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

40800 49110 Court Sec Fee Fund‐Txfr to Other Funds $675,000 $0 $675,000 $77,486 $752,486

Revenue
40800 34120 Court Sec Fee Fund‐Doc Filing Fee ($675,000) $0 ($675,000) (77,486)                    ($752,486)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in 2024

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010c

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 40800‐Court Security Fee

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Court Security Fee Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $0



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0112‐Rental Housing Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

41200 43930 Rental Hsg Fee Fund‐Intergovernmental $300,000 $0 $300,000 $210,615 $510,615

Revenue
41200 32410 Rental Hsg Fee Fund‐Fee ($300,000) $0 ($300,000) (210,615)                  ($510,615)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in 2024

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010d

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 41200‐Rental Hsg Fee Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Rental Housing Fee Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $0



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0116‐Host Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

41700 43190 Host Fee‐Other Prof Services $0 $0 $0 $82,000 $82,000
41700 46334 Host Fee‐Infrastructure $0 $0 $0 $1,450,000 $1,450,000

Revenue
41700 34110 Host Fee‐Services ($4,700,000) $0 ($4,700,000) (81,000)                    ($4,781,000)
41700 39210 Host Fee‐Interest ($50,000) $0 ($50,000) (82,000)                    ($132,000)

$1,369,000

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for board approved awards that were not budgeted and the Baxter Rd water extension project.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $1,369,000

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010e

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 41700‐Host Fee Fund



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0118‐Neutral Site Custody Exch

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

41800 43190 Neutral Site‐Other Prof Svcs $181,000 $0 $181,000 $29,730 $210,730

Revenue
41800 34110 Neutral Site‐Fees ($180,000) $0 ($180,000) (29,730)                    ($209,730)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in 2024

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for funds collected and transferred.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010f

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 41800‐Neutral Site Custody Exch



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0146‐Specialty Courts

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

45300 43190 Specialty Court‐Other Prof Svc $0 $0 $0 $9,961 $9,961

Revenue
$0 $0 $0

$9,961

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010g

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 45300‐Specialty Court

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Specialty Courts Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $9,961



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0155‐Memorial Hall

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

45500 46320 Memorial Hall‐Bldg Improvements $100,000 $0 $100,000 $21,702 $121,702
45500 46320 04555 Memorial Hall‐Bldg Improvements $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $40,000

$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0

Revenue
45500 32120 04555 Memorial Hall‐State DCEO Grant $0 $0 $0 (40,000)                    ($40,000)

$21,702

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance and additional grant funding

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010h

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 45500‐Memorial Hall

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Additional expenses not covered by insurance or grant for the HVAC project and new grant award for plaster repair.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $21,702



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0158‐Children's Advocacy

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

45800 41110 Children's Advocacy‐Salary $480,775 $0 $480,775 $30,155 $510,930
45800 41120 Children's Advocacy‐Temp Salary $40,000 $0 $40,000 $4,494 $44,494
45800 48211 Children's Advocacy‐Health Ins $131,077 $0 $131,077 $14,479 $145,556

$0 $0 $0

Revenue
45800 32120 Children's Advocacy‐State Grant ($476,498) $0 ($476,498) (49,128)                    ($525,626)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Additional grant funding

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010i

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 45800‐Children's Advocacy

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget to reflect increased expenses incurred as a result of increased grant funding.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $0



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0185‐Health Insurance Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

48500 43150 Health Insurance‐Medical & Dental $17,500,000 $0 $17,500,000 $2,416,656 $19,916,656
48510 43175 Health Insurance‐Wellness Contract $395,000 $0 $395,000 $116,291 $511,291

Revenue
48500 39110 Transfer from Other Funds (GF) $0 $0 $0 (1,256,841)              ($1,256,841)
48500 39110 Transfer from Other Funds (PSST) $0 $0 $0 (877,422)                  ($877,422)

$398,684

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increased medical claims offset by transfers from the General and PSST funds.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $398,684

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010j

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO.
48500 Health Insurance

48510 Wellness Center



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0194‐Tort Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

49400 43535 Tort‐Worker's Comp Claims $0 $0 $0 $81,782 $81,782
49400 46320 Tort‐Bldg Improvements $0 $0 $0 $29,198 $29,198

Revenue

$110,980

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget to actual 2024 expenses incurred.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $110,980

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 49400‐Tort Fund

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010k

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0196‐Mental Health Tax Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

49600 43190 Mental Hlth Tax ‐ Other Prof Svc $11,525,250 $0 $11,525,250 $6,012,881 $17,538,131

Revenue

$6,012,881

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010l

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 49600‐Mental Hlth Tax Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget to actual 2024 expenses incurred.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $6,012,881



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0255‐2020B Refunding Bonds

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

51500 45311 2020B Bonds‐Debt Admin Fees $0 $0 $0 $825 $825

Revenue
51500 32225 2020B‐ One Quarter Cent Sales Tax $0 $0 $0 ($825) ($825)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Transfer of quarter cent sales tax from General Fund

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010m

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 51500‐2020B Refunding Bonds

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase for additional bond admin fee not budgeted.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $0



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0302‐Sheriff Dept Grants Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

60200 41130 02057 STEP Grant ‐ Overtime $0 $0 $0 $28,000 $28,000

Revenue
60200 32110 02057 STEP Grant ‐ Federal $0 $0 $0 (28,000)                    ($28,000)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Grant funding

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010n

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 60200 Sheriff Dept Grants

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

STEP grant revenue and expenses are being track in the Sheriff Grant Fund rather than the General Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $0



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0303‐State's Atty Grants Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

60300 41110 02110 VCVA Grant ‐ Salaries $80,409 $0 $80,409 $4,630 $85,039
60300 41110 02120 VOCA Grant ‐ Salaries $22,742 $94,562 $117,304 $18,000 $135,304
60300 41241 02120 VOCA Grant ‐ Payroll Taxes $1,633 $0 $1,633 $6,000 $7,633
60300 48211 02120 VOCA Grant ‐ Health Insurance $5,305 $14,000 $19,305 $14,300 $33,605
60300 48220 02120 VOCA Grant ‐ Indirect Costs $0 $10,900 $10,900 $3,560 $14,460

Revenue
60300 32120 02110 VCVA Grant ‐ State ($80,500) $0 ($80,500) (4,630)                      ($85,130)
60300 32110 02120 VOCA Grant ‐ Federal ($149,634) $0 ($149,634) (41,860)                    ($191,494)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Grant award

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase grant expenses due to additional funding received from grantors during the fiscal year.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $0

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010o

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 60300 State's Atty Grants



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0310‐City Election Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61000 43932 City Election‐Other Programs $1,090,940 $0 $1,090,940 $26,700 $1,117,640

Revenue
61000 31110 City Election‐Real Estate Taxes ($1,090,940) $0 ($1,090,940) (26,700)                    ($1,117,640)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010p

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 61000 City Election Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget due to actual EAV based calculation exceeds budget

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $0



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz
0314‐COCJI Grants Fund

0315 Opioid Settlement Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised Budget 

after Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61400 49110 02704 Transfer to Other Funds $0 $0 $0 $1,506,063 $1,506,063

Revenue
61500 39110 Transfer from Other Funds $0 $0 $0 (1,506,063)              ($1,506,063)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: 

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010q

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO.
61400‐COCJI Grant Fund

61500‐Opioid Settlement

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Transfer opioid settlement funds from the COCJI grant fund to a separate fund to simplify the process of interest allocation to these 

funds.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0401‐RBNH 

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

72500 41110 RBNH Daily Svcs Salary $3,312,262 $0 $3,312,262 $583,000 $3,895,262
72500 41120 RBNH Daily Svcs Temp Salary $180,005 $0 $180,005 $317,870 $497,875
72500 41130 RBNH Daily Svcs Overtime $900,000 $0 $900,000 $513,116 $1,413,116
72500 43190 RBNH Daily Svcs Other Prof Svcs $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000 $855,000 $2,855,000
72500 43730 RBNH Daily Svcs Equip Repair & Maint $70,000 $0 $70,000 $5,000 $75,000
72500 48211 RBNH Daily Svcs Htlh Ins $403,118 $0 $403,118 $179,400 $582,518
72532 41110 RBNH Daily Svcs Unit Clerks Salary $154,307 $0 $154,307 $42,100 $196,407
72532 48211 RBNH Daily Svcs Unit Clerks Hlth Ins $49,100 $0 $49,100 $18,100 $67,200
72534 43120 RBNH Daily Svcs Occup Ther Consulting $150,000 $0 $150,000 $117,000 $267,000
73500 41110 RBNH Laundry Salary $29,118 $0 $29,118 $30,000 $59,118
73500 42290 RBNH Laundry Dept Supplies $400,000 $0 $400,000 $218,910 $618,910
73500 48211 RBNH Laundry $8,735 $0 $8,735 $500 $9,235
74500 46320 RBNH Bldg Improvement $0 $0 $0 $29,992 $29,992

Revenue
70500 32248 RBNH CNA Incentive $0 $0 $0 (95,465)                   ($95,465)
70500 34552 RBNH Medicaid Revenue ($10,313,629) $0 ($10,313,629) ($1,274,401) ($11,588,030)
70500 34554 RBNH Hospice Revenue ($1,831,885) $0 ($1,831,885) ($795,154) ($2,627,039)
70500 39110 Txfr from CIP for Bldg Improvement $0 $0 (29,992)                   ($29,992)

$714,976

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue and savings in certain other budgeted accounts

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budgets to reflect actual FY24 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $714,976

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010r

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO.

725xx ‐ Daily Services

73500 ‐ Laundry

74500 ‐ Plant Oper & Maint



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0501‐Central Services

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

82100 42115 Copiers‐Non Capital Ofc Equip $0 $0 $0 $3,675 $3,675
82100 42390 Copiers‐Other Repair & Maint $110,000 $0 $110,000 $18,600 $128,600

Revenue
82100 34116 Copiers‐Outside Agency Fees ($5,500) $0 ($5,500) ($336) ($5,836)
82100 34110 Copiers‐Gen County Svcs ($264,000) $0 ($264,000) ($13,150) ($277,150)

$8,789

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue and fund balance

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budget to reflect actual FY24 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget: $8,789

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 82100 Copiers

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010s

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0727‐2020A Project Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

85600 46330 2020A Proj Fund‐Roadway $0 $0 $0 $1,099,573 $1,099,573

Revenue

$1,099,573

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010t

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 85600‐2020A Project Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

IDOT required the County to change one of the projects these bond funds were used for.  After accounting adjustments, this increase 

reflects the expenditures on the new project.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $1,099,573



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0743‐CIP Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

82200 49110 C2330 CIP‐Txfr to Other Funds‐RBNH Gazebo $0 $0 $0 $20,124 $20,124
82200 49110 C2331 CIP‐Txfr to Other Funds‐RBNH Ductwork $0 $0 $0 $9,868 $9,868

Revenue

$29,992

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: 

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010u

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 82200‐CIP Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Transfer CIP funds to River Bluff Fund for work completed on approved CIP23 projects.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $0 (Transfer)



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0748‐2012F Project Funds

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

81800 46330 Baxter Water Proj Fund‐Roadway $0 $0 $0 $18,000 $18,000

Revenue

$18,000

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010v

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 81800‐Baxter Water Project

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget to reflect actual FY24 activity.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $18,000



11/14/2024

Various Steve Schultz

0751‐Police Trng Center

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

82300 43190 Police Trng Ctr‐Other Prof Svcs $22,000 $0 $22,000 $923 $22,923
82300 43710 Police Trng Ctr‐Bldg Rep & Maint $0 $0 $0 $4,500 $4,500
82300 43810 Police Trng Ctr‐Bldg Rental $0 $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000
82300 46325 Police Trng Ctr‐Leasehold Improv $0 $0 $0 $27,289 $27,289

Revenue
82300 39210 Police Trng Ctr‐Interest $0 $0 $0 ($14,978) ($14,978)

$22,734

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2024

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 24‐010w

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 82300‐Police Trng Ctr

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget to reflect actual FY24 activity.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $22,734



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By: Finance Department  
Committee: Finance 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Enhancing Investigation and 
Prosecution (EIP) Grant Award 
County Code:  Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No    Appropriation Amount:   $0 

If not, explain funding source:  Department of Justice Grant 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 60300 State’s Attorney Grants / various / 02121 EIP Grant 

FY2025 Budget Impact: $186,422 for Year 1 of award 

Background Information: The County has received a $500,000 three-year grant award expiring 
on 09/30/27. The award is granted through the Department of Justice, Violence Against Women 
Office.  The Enhancing Investigations and Prosecution of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, 
Sexual Assault, and Stalking (EIP) grant encourages law enforcement agencies and/or 
prosecutors' offices to expand and improve their capacity to effectively investigate and/or 
prosecute domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, and in so doing, 
support victim safety and autonomy, hold offenders accountable, and promote agency trust 
withing the surrounding community. 

Recommendation: Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement: N/A  

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up:  Adjust Munis line Items        



1 

2025 Fiscal Year Finance: November 21, 2024 
Lay Over: November 26, 2024 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: December 12, 2024 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2024 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Enhancing Investigation and Prosecution 
(EIP) Grant Award 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County State’s Attorney office has been awarded funding in the 
total of $500,000 for a three-year period to encourage the office to expand and improve their 
capacity to effectively investigate and/or prosecute domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, and stalking, and in so doing, support victim safety and autonomy, hold offenders 
accountable, and promote agency trust within the surrounding community; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 at its September 26, 2024 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #25-007 State’s Attorney EIP Grant Award. 



2 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 



11/21/2024
State's Attorney J. Hanley

0303 - State's Atty Grants Fund

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

60300 41110 02121 Regular Salary $0 $0 $0 $83,760 $83,760
60300 41120 02121 Temporary Salary (PT) $0 $0 $0 $26,000 $26,000
60300 41221 02121 Life Insurance $0 $0 $0 $137 $137
60300 41231 02121 IMRF $0 $0 $0 $2,107 $2,107
60300 41241 02121 FICA $0 $0 $0 $8,397 $8,397
60300 42110 02121 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $4,215 $4,215
60300 43190 02121 Other Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $2,750 $2,750
60300 43310 02121 Travel $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $20,000
60300 48211 02121 Health Insurance $0 $0 $0 $22,126 $22,126
60300 48220 02121 Indirect Costs $0 $0 $0 $16,950 $16,950

Revenue
60300 32110 02121 Federal Operating Grant $0 $0 $0 (186,442)                ($186,442)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Grant award

2025
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2025 budget:  $186,442

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

The County has received a $500,000 three-year grant award expiring on 09/30/27. The award is granted through the Department of 
Justice, Violence Against Women Office.  The Enhancing Investigations and Prosecution of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual 
Assault, and Stalking (EIP) grant encourages law enforcement agencies and/or prosecutors' offices to expand and improve their capacity 
to effectively investigate and/or prosecute domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, and in so doing, support 
victim safety and autonomy, hold offenders accountable, and promote agency trust withing the surrounding community. 

2025-007

60300-State's Atty GrantsDEPT. BUDGET NO.



Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office on Violence Against Women (OVW)

Washington, D.C. 20531

Name and Address of Recipient: COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
404 ELM ST 

City, State and Zip: ROCKFORD, IL 61101  

Recipient UEI: SBEVXUKXKGK3 

Project Title: OVW 2024 Enhancing
Investigations and Prosecution  Award Number: 15JOVW-24-GG-01490-POLP

Solicitation Title: OVW Fiscal Year 2024 Enhancing Investigation and Prosecution of Domestic Violence, Dating
Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking (EIP) Initiative 

Federal Award Amount: $500,000.00   Federal Award Date: 9/13/24 

Awarding Agency:   Office on Violence Against Women

Funding Instrument Type: Grant 

Assistance Listing:
16.590 - Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders Program

Project Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Project Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Budget Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Budget Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Project Description:
The Enhancing Investigations and Prosecution of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking
(EIP) encourages law enforcement agencies and/or prosecutors’ offices to expand and improve their capacity to
effectively investigate and/or prosecute domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, and in so
doing, support victim safety and autonomy, hold offenders accountable, and promote agency trust within the
surrounding community.

The EIP project by the County of Winnebago, in partnership with Remedies Renewing Lives, Rockford Sexual Assault
Counseling, Inc., and YWCA Northwestern Illinois, to implement in Winnebago County, IL addresses EIP purpose
areas: 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, and 7. Additionally, this project addresses OVW Priority Area 1: Access to Justice. Specific
activities include: 1) hire an Enhanced Criminal Response Liaison responsible for reviewing communication for inmates
related to No Contact Orders and/or Orders of Protection and reviewing body camera footage for the Winnebago
County State’s Attorney’s Domestic Violence Unit; 2) hire a prosecution-based investigator to coordinate and
investigate criminal cases within the Domestic Violence Unit; and 3) hire a part-time Initial Appearance Court (IAC)
Prosecutor to review criminal charges related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking and
filing petitions to detain or revoke pretrial release in Initial Appearance Court. 

Page: 1 of 18



Award Letter

September 13, 2024  

Dear Patrick Thompson,
 
On behalf of Attorney General Merrick B. Garland, it is my pleasure to inform you the Office on Violence Against
Women (OVW) has approved the application submitted by  COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  for an award under the
funding opportunity entitled 2024 OVW Fiscal Year 2024 Enhancing Investigation and Prosecution of Domestic
Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking (EIP) Initiative. The approved award amount is $500,000.
Review the Award Instrument below carefully and familiarize yourself with all conditions and requirements before
accepting your award. The Award Instrument includes the Award Offer (Award Information, Project Information,
Financial Information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceptance. For COPS Office and OVW funding the Award
Offer also includes any Other Award Documents. 

Please note that award requirements include not only the conditions and limitations set forth in the Award Offer, but
also compliance with assurances and certifications that relate to conduct during the period of performance for the
award. These requirements encompass financial, administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other important
matters (e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds). Therefore, all key staff should receive the award conditions, the
assurances and certifications, and the application as approved by OVW, so that they understand the award
requirements. Information on all pertinent award requirements also must be provided to any subrecipient of the award.
 

Should you accept the award and then fail to comply with an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate remedies
for non-compliance, which may include termination of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Prior to accepting the award, your Entity Administrator must assign a Financial Manager, Grant Award Administrator,
and Authorized Representative(s) in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants). The Entity Administrator will need to
ensure the assigned Authorized Representative(s) is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and bind the
entity to the award terms and conditions. To accept the award, the Authorized Representative(s) must accept all parts
of the Award Offer in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants), including by executing the required declaration and
certification, within 45 days from the award date.

To access your funds, you will need to enroll in the Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) system, if
you haven’t already completed the enrollment process in ASAP. The Entity Administrator should have already received
an email from ASAP to initiate this process. 

Congratulations, and we look forward to working with you.

Rosemarie Hidalgo
Director  
Office for Civil Rights Notice for All Recipients

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) enforces federal
civil rights laws and other provisions that prohibit discrimination by recipients of federal financial assistance from OJP,
the Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW).

Several civil rights laws, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, require recipients of federal financial assistance (recipients) to give assurances that they will comply with those
laws.  Taken together, these and other civil rights laws prohibit recipients from discriminating in the provision of
services and employment because of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, and sex or from discriminating in
the provision of services on the bases of age.

Some recipients of DOJ financial assistance have additional obligations to comply with other applicable
nondiscrimination provisions like the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of religion in addition to race, color, national origin, and sex.  Recipients may also have
related requirements regarding the development and implementation of equal employment opportunity programs.

Page: 2 of 18



OCR provides technical assistance, training, and other resources to help recipients comply with civil rights obligations. 
Further, OCR administratively enforces civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions by investigating DOJ
recipients that are the subject of discrimination complaints.  In addition, OCR conducts compliance reviews of DOJ
recipients based on regulatory criteria.  These investigations and compliance reviews permit OCR to evaluate whether
DOJ recipients are providing services to the public and engaging in employment practices in a nondiscriminatory
manner.

For more information about OCR, your civil rights and nondiscrimination responsibilities, how to notify your employees
or beneficiaries of their civil rights protections and responsibilities and how to file a complaint, as well as technical
assistance, training, and other resources, please visit www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach.  If you would
like OCR to assist you in fulfilling your civil rights or nondiscrimination responsibilities, please contact us at askOCR@o
jp.usdoj.gov or www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts.  

Memorandum Regarding NEPA

NEPA Letter Type
OVW – Categorical Exclusion - No Renovations Allowed

NEPA Letter

Renovations and construction are unallowable under this grant, and therefore none of the following
activities will be conducted under the OVW federal action (i.e., the OVW-funded grant project) or a
related third-party action:  

1. New construction.  

2. Any renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically sensitive
area, including property (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, or
(b) located within a 100-year flood plain, a wetland, or habitat for an endangered species. 

3. A renovation which will change the basic prior use of a facility or significantly change its size. 

4. Research and technology whose anticipated and future application could be expected to have an
effect on the environment. 

5. Implementation of a program involving the use of chemicals.  

In addition, the OVW federal action is neither a phase nor a segment of a project that, when reviewed
in its entirety, would not meet the criteria for a categorical exclusion.   

Consequently, the subject federal action meets the Office on Violence Against Women’s criteria for a
categorical exclusion as contained in paragraph 4(b) of Appendix D to Part 61 of Title 28 of the Code
of Federal Regulations (adopted by OVW at 28 CFR § 0.122(b)).  Also, no further analysis is required
under the National Historic Preservation Act or other related statutes and regulations. 

NEPA Coordinator
First Name
Debra Middle Name

Last Name
Murphy

Award Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Page: 3 of 18

http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts


Recipient Information

Recipient Name
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

UEI
SBEVXUKXKGK3

Street 1
404 ELM ST Street 2

City
ROCKFORD

State/U.S. Territory
Illinois

Zip/Postal Code
61101

Country
United States

County/Parish
 

Province
 

Award Details

Federal Award Date
9/13/24

Award Type
Initial

Award Number
15JOVW-24-GG-01490-POLP

Supplement Number
00

Federal Award Amount
$500,000.00

Funding Instrument Type
Grant

Assistance Listing
Number

Assistance Listings Program Title

16.590 Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders Program

Statutory Authority

Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023, Pub. L. No. 117-328, 136 Stat. 4459, 4530-31 (2022)

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Project Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Solicitation Title
2024 OVW Fiscal Year 2024 Enhancing Investigation
and Prosecution of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence,

Page: 4 of 18



Sexual Assault, and Stalking (EIP) Initiative

Application Number
GRANT14104313

Grant Manager Name
AISHA BATTLE
Phone Number
202-532-3444
E-mail Address
Aisha.Battle@usdoj.gov

Project Title
OVW 2024 Enhancing Investigations and Prosecution

Performance Period Start
Date
10/01/2024

Performance Period End Date
09/30/2027

Budget Period Start Date
10/01/2024

Budget Period End Date
09/30/2027

Project Description
The Enhancing Investigations and Prosecution of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking
(EIP) encourages law enforcement agencies and/or prosecutors’ offices to expand and improve their capacity to
effectively investigate and/or prosecute domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, and in so
doing, support victim safety and autonomy, hold offenders accountable, and promote agency trust within the
surrounding community.

The EIP project by the County of Winnebago, in partnership with Remedies Renewing Lives, Rockford Sexual Assault
Counseling, Inc., and YWCA Northwestern Illinois, to implement in Winnebago County, IL addresses EIP purpose
areas: 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, and 7. Additionally, this project addresses OVW Priority Area 1: Access to Justice. Specific
activities include: 1) hire an Enhanced Criminal Response Liaison responsible for reviewing communication for inmates
related to No Contact Orders and/or Orders of Protection and reviewing body camera footage for the Winnebago
County State’s Attorney’s Domestic Violence Unit; 2) hire a prosecution-based investigator to coordinate and
investigate criminal cases within the Domestic Violence Unit; and 3) hire a part-time Initial Appearance Court (IAC)
Prosecutor to review criminal charges related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking and
filing petitions to detain or revoke pretrial release in Initial Appearance Court.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Financial Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

The recipient budget is currently under review. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Page: 5 of 18

tel:202-532-3444


Other Award Documents

 [ ]

 

I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

No other award documents have been added.

Award Conditions

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

1
Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full below, a
condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -
- may result in the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW) taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and
the award. Among other things, OVW may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award.
The U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), including OVW, also may take other legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

2
Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements and DOJ Grants Financial Guide

The recipient agrees to comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by the Department of Justice (DOJ) in 2 C.F.R. Part
2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements"), and the current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as
posted on the OVW website, including any updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The
recipient also agrees that all financial records pertinent to this award, including the general accounting ledger and all
supporting documents, are subject to agency review throughout the life of the award, during the close-out process, and
for three years after submission of the final Federal Financial Report (SF-425) or as long as the records are retained,
whichever is longer, pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.334, 200.337.

Page: 6 of 18



3
Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of
those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical
cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify OVW in writing of the
potential duplication, and, if so requested by OVW, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope Grant
Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding.

4
Requirements related to System for Award Management and unique entity identifiers

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently
accessible at https://www.sam.gov. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as
maintaining current information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards (subgrants) to first-tier subrecipients
(subgrantees), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the
unique entity identifier assigned by SAM.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OVW website
at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (titled "Award Condition: Requirements related to System for Award
Management (SAM) and unique entity identifiers") and are incorporated by reference here.

5
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent breach (as defined in OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient)-- 1) creates, collects, uses, processes,
stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of personally identifiable information (PII) (as defined in 2
C.F.R. 200.1) within the scope of an OVW grant-funded program or activity, or 2) uses or operates a Federal
information system (as defined in OMB Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement
to report actual or imminent breach of PII to an OVW Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of
an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

6
Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OVW authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee) at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrecipients (subgrantees), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of
the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OVW website at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (titled "Award Condition: Prohibited conduct by
recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OVW authority to
terminate award)") and are incorporated by reference here.

7
Determinations of suitability to interact with participating minors

This condition applies to this award if it is indicated in the application for the award (as approved by DOJ) (or in the
application for any subaward at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute

Page: 7 of 18



that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status. The details
of this requirement are posted on the OVW website at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (titled "Award
condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors") and are incorporated by reference here.

8
Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee) at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies,
and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where applicable)
governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the
provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears on the OVW
website at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/conference-planning.

9
OVW Training Guiding Principles

The recipient understands and agrees that any training or training materials developed or delivered with funding
provided under this award must adhere to the OVW Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees,
available at https://www.justice.gov/sites/default/files/ovw/legacy/2012/06/28/ovw-training-guiding-principles-grantees-
subgrantees.pdf.

10
Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that OVW may withhold award funds, or may impose other related
requirements, if (as determined by OVW) the recipient does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues
from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues
that arise in connection with audits, investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

11
Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by OVW during the period of
performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

12
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee) at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R.
Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal
employment opportunity program.

13
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee) at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R.
Part 38 (amended effective April 3, 2024).

Page: 8 of 18



Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of
religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice.
Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that relate to engaging in or conducting explicitly religious activities and
requires that recipients and subrecipients that are social service providers provide written notice to beneficiaries or
prospective beneficiaries of certain protections as described in 28 C.F.R. 38.6(b).

14
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee) at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R.
Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

15
Restrictions on "lobbying" and policy development

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds may not be used by the recipient, or any subrecipient (subgrantee)
at any tier, either directly or indirectly, in support of the enactment, repeal, modification or adoption of any law,
regulation or policy, at any level of government, in order to avoid violation of 18 U.S.C. 1913. The recipient, or any
subrecipient (subgrantee) may, however, use federal funds to collaborate with and provide information to federal, state,
local, tribal and territorial public officials and agencies to develop and implement policies and develop and promote
state, local, or tribal legislation or model codes designed to reduce or eliminate domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, and stalking (as those terms are defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)) when such collaboration and provision
of information is consistent with the activities otherwise authorized under this grant program.

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OVW from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OVW for guidance, and may not proceed without
the express prior written approval of OVW.

16
Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds for this fiscal year

The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee) at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions, for each fiscal year, are set out at https://
www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (titled "Award Condition: General appropriations-law restrictions on use of
federal award funds") and are incorporated by reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of
federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction,
the recipient is to contact OVW for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of OVW.

17
Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient and any subrecipients (subgrantees) must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector General
(OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other person
has, in connection with funds under this award -- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by-- (1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/grant-complaint (select

Page: 9 of 18



"Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Fraud Detection Office (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

18
Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient (subgrantee) under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards (subgrants), procurement contracts, or
both--

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward (subgrant), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that
prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

19
Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a

Page: 10 of 18



gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact OVW for guidance.

20
Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients (subgrantees) to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

21
Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated high risk by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated high risk by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time during
the course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient must disclose that fact and certain related
information to OVW by email to OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes any status
under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past performance, or other
programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the following: (1) the
federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk; (2) the date the recipient was designated high
risk; (3) the high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and email address); and
(4) the reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

22
Availability of general terms and conditions on OVW website

The recipient agrees to follow the applicable set of general terms and conditions that are available at https://
www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions. These do not supersede any specific conditions in this award document.

23
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements, which may include, among other
relevant authorities, the Violence Against Women Act of 1994, P.L. 103-322, the Violence Against Women Act of 2000,
P.L. 106-386, the Violence Against Women and Department of Justice Reauthorization Act of 2005, P.L. 109-162, the
Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013, P.L. 113-4, the Violence Against Women Act Reauthorization
Act of 2022, P.L. 117-103, the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, 34 U.S.C. 10101 et seq., and
OVW's implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 90.

24
Compliance with solicitation requirements

The recipient agrees that it must be in compliance with requirements outlined in the solicitation under which the
approved application was submitted, the applicable Solicitation Companion Guide, and any program-specific frequently
asked questions (FAQs) on the OVW website (https://www.justice.gov/ovw/resources-and-faqs-grantees). The
program solicitation, Companion Guide, and any program-specific FAQs are hereby incorporated by reference into this
award.

25
Page: 11 of 18



VAWA 2013 nondiscrimination condition

The recipient acknowledges that 34 U.S.C. 12291(b)(13) prohibits recipients of OVW awards from excluding, denying
benefits to, or discriminating against any person on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, religion, national origin,
sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, or disability in any program or activity funded in whole or in part by OVW.
Recipients may provide sex-segregated or sex-specific programming if doing so is necessary to the essential
operations of the program, so long as the recipient provides comparable services to those who cannot be provided with
the sex-segregated or sex-specific programming. The recipient agrees that it will comply with this provision. The
recipient also agrees to ensure that any subrecipients (subgrantees) at any tier will comply with this provision.

26
Misuse of award funds

The recipient understands and agrees that misuse of award funds may result in a range of penalties, including
suspension of current and future funds, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies provided
under an award, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

27
Limitation on use of funds to approved activities

The recipient agrees that grant funds will be used only for the purposes described in the recipient's application, unless
OVW determines that any of these activities are out of scope or unallowable. The recipient must not undertake any
work or activities that are not described in the recipient's application, award documents, or approved budget, and must
not use staff, equipment, or other goods or services paid for with grant funds for such work or activities, without prior
written approval, via Grant Award Modification (GAM), from OVW.

28
Non-supplantation

The recipient agrees that grant funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, non-federal funds that would otherwise
be available for the activities under this grant.

29
Confidentiality and information sharing

The recipient agrees to comply with the provisions of 34 U.S.C. 12291(b)(2), nondisclosure of confidential or private
information, which includes creating and maintaining documentation of compliance, such as policies and procedures
for release of victim information. The recipient also agrees to comply with the regulations implementing this provision at
28 CFR 90.4(b) and "Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) on the VAWA Confidentiality Provision (34 U.S.C. 12291(b)
(2))" on the OVW website at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/resources-and-faqs-grantees. The recipient also agrees to
ensure that all subrecipients (subgrantees) at any tier meet these requirements.

30
Activities that compromise victim safety and recovery or undermine offender accountability

The recipient agrees that grant funds will not support activities that compromise victim safety and recovery or
undermine offender accountability, such as: procedures or policies that exclude victims from receiving safe shelter,
advocacy services, counseling, and other assistance based on their actual or perceived sex, age, immigration status,
race, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity, mental health condition, physical health condition, criminal record,
work in the sex industry, or the age and/or sex of their children; procedures or policies that compromise the
confidentiality of information and privacy of persons receiving OVW-funded services; procedures or policies that
impose requirements on victims in order to receive services (e.g., seek an order of protection, receive counseling,
participate in couples' counseling or mediation, report to law enforcement, seek civil or criminal remedies, etc.);
procedures or policies that fail to ensure service providers conduct safety planning with victims; project design and
budgets that fail to account for the access needs of participants with disabilities and participants who have limited
English proficiency or are Deaf or hard of hearing; or any other activities outlined in the solicitation or companion guide

Page: 12 of 18



under which the application was submitted.

31
Policy for response to workplace-related incidents of sexual misconduct, domestic violence, and dating violence 

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must have a policy, or issue a policy within 270 days of the award date,
to address workplace-related incidents of sexual misconduct, domestic violence, and dating violence involving an
employee, volunteer, consultant, or contractor. The details of this requirement are posted on the OVW website at
https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (titled "Award Condition: Policy for response to workplace-related sexual
misconduct, domestic violence, and dating violence") and are incorporated by reference here.

32
Termination or suspension

The Director of OVW, upon a finding that there (1) has been substantial failure by the recipient to comply with
applicable laws, regulations, and/or the terms and conditions of the award or relevant solicitation, (2) has been failure
by the recipient to make satisfactory progress toward the goals, objectives, or strategies set forth in the application, or
(3) have been project changes proposed or implemented by the recipient to the extent that, if originally submitted, the
application would not have been selected for funding, will terminate or suspend until the Director is satisfied that there
is no longer such failure or changes, all or part of the award, in accordance with the provisions of 28 C.F.R. Part 18, as
applicable mutatis mutandis. The federal regulation providing uniform rules for termination of grants and cooperative
agreements is 2 C.F.R. 200.340.

33
Semiannual and final performance progress report submission

The recipient agrees to submit semiannual performance progress reports that describe activities conducted during the
reporting period, including program effectiveness measures. Reports must be submitted throughout the project period,
even if no funds were spent and no activities were conducted in a given reporting period. Delinquent reports may affect
future discretionary award decisions and may lead to suspension and/or termination of the award.

The information that must be collected and reported to OVW can be found in the reporting form associated with the
grant program or initiative under which this award was made. Performance progress reports must be submitted within
30 days after the end of the reporting periods, which are January 1 - June 30 and July 1 - December 31. Recipients are
required to submit their reports through the Justice Grants System, unless and until OVW issues updated instructions
for report submission. The final report is due 90 days after the end of the project period and should be marked "final" in
the Report Type field.

34
Quarterly Federal Financial Reports

The recipient agrees that it will submit quarterly Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) to OVW in the Justice Grants
System, not later than 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter. The final report shall be submitted not later than
120 days following the end of the award period. Delinquent reports may affect future discretionary award decisions and
may lead to suspension and/or termination of the award.

35
Program income

Program income, as defined by 2 C.F.R. 200.1, means gross income earned by the non-federal entity that is directly
generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the federal award during the period of performance. Without
prior approval from OVW, program income must be deducted from total allowable costs to determine the net allowable
costs. In order to add program income to the OVW award, the recipient must seek approval from its program manager
via a budget modification Grant Award Modification (GAM) prior to generating any program income. Any program
income added to the federal award must be used to support activities that were approved in the budget and follow the
conditions of the OVW award. Any program income approved via budget modification GAM must be reported in the

Page: 13 of 18



recipient's quarterly Federal Financial Report SF-425 in accordance with the addition alternative. If the program income
amount changes (increases or decreases) during the project period, it must be approved via a budget modification
GAM by the end of the project period. If the budget modification is not submitted and approved, it could result in audit
findings for the recipient.

36
FFATA reporting subawards and executive compensation

The recipient agrees to comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards (subgrants) of $30,000 or
more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients of award funds. Such data will be submitted to the Federal
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA) Subaward Reporting System (FSRS). The details of
recipient obligations, which derive from FFATA, are posted on the OVW website at https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-
conditions (titled "Award Condition: Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation") and are incorporated by
reference here.

37
Changes to MOU and/or IMOA

The recipient agrees to submit for OVW review and approval any anticipated addition of, removal of, or change in
collaborating partner agencies or individuals who are signatories of the Memorandum of Understanding and, if
applicable, the Internal Memorandum of Agreement.

38
Submission of all materials and publications

The recipient agrees to submit to OVW one copy of all materials and publications (written, web-based, audio-visual, or
any other format) that are funded under this award not less than twenty days prior to distribution or public release. If
the materials are found to be outside the scope of the program, or in some way to compromise victim safety, the
recipient will need to revise the materials to address these concerns or the recipient will not be allowed to use award
funds to support the development or distribution of the materials.

39
Publication disclaimer

The recipient agrees that all materials and publications (written, web-based, audio-visual, or any other format) resulting
from award activities shall contain the following statement: "This project was supported by Grant No.
__________________ awarded by the Office on Violence Against Women, U.S. Department of Justice. The opinions,
findings, conclusions, and recommendations expressed in this publication/program/exhibition are those of the author(s)
and do not necessarily reflect the views of the U.S. Department of Justice." The recipient also agrees to ensure that
any subrecipient at any tier will comply with this condition.

40
Copyrighted works

Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.315(b), the recipient may copyright any work that is subject to copyright and was developed,
or for which ownership was acquired, under this award. OVW reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable
right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the work, in whole or in part (including in the creation of derivative works),
for federal purposes, and to authorize others to do so.

OVW also reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, in whole
or in part (including in the creation of derivative works), any work developed by a subrecipient (subgrantee) of this
award, for federal purposes, and to authorize others to do so. 

In addition, the recipient (or subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor of this award at any tier) must obtain advance
written approval from the OVW program manager assigned to this award, and must comply with all conditions specified

Page: 14 of 18



by the program manager in connection with that approval, before: 1) using award funds to purchase ownership of, or a
license to use, a copyrighted work; or 2) incorporating any copyrighted work, or portion thereof, into a new work
developed under this award.

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor as applicable) to ensure
that this condition is included in any subaward, contract, or subcontract under this award.

41
Grantee orientation - mandatory attendance

First-time recipients, or continuation recipients if requested, must agree to have key staff members, as identified by
OVW, attend the OVW grantee orientation seminar, which may be offered in-person, online, or a combination of both.
Additionally, if there is a change in the project director/coordinator during the grant period, the recipient agrees, at the
earliest opportunity, to send the new project director/coordinator, regardless of prior experience with this or any other
federal award, to an in-person OVW grantee orientation seminar or require completion of the orientation online,
whichever is available.

42
Prior approval for non-OVW sponsored technical assistance

The recipient agrees that funds allocated for OVW-sponsored technical assistance may not be used for any other
purpose without prior approval by OVW. To request approval, the recipient must submit a copy of the event's brochure,
a curriculum and/or agenda, a description of the hosts or trainers, and an estimated breakdown of costs. The request
must be submitted to OVW at least 20 days prior to registering for the event. Requests to attend non-OVW sponsored
events will be considered on a case-by-case basis. This prior approval process also applies to requests for the use of
OVW-designated technical assistance funds to pay a consultant or contractor not designated as an OVW technical
assistance provider to develop and/or provide training and/or technical assistance.

43
Participation in OVW-sponsored technical assistance

The recipient agrees to attend and participate in OVW-sponsored technical assistance. Technical assistance includes,
but is not limited to, national and regional conferences, audio conferences, webinars, peer-to-peer consultations, and
workshops conducted by OVW-designated technical assistance providers.

44
Consultant compensation rates

The recipient acknowledges that consultants paid with award funds generally may not be paid at a rate in excess of
$81.25 per hour, not to exceed $650 per day. To exceed this specified maximum rate, recipients must submit to OVW
a detailed justification and have such justification approved by OVW, prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds.
Issuance of this award or approval of the award budget alone does not indicate approval of any consultant rate in
excess of $81.25 per hour, not to exceed $650 per day. Although prior approval is not required for consultant rates
below this specified maximum rate, recipients are required to maintain documentation to support all daily or hourly
consultant rates.

45
Prohibition of use of funds for victim services

The recipient may not use funds to provide or support direct services to victims. This includes services provided by
“victim service providers,” as defined by 34 U.S.C. § 12991(b)(50) (nongovernmental/nonprofit organizations,
coalitions, and rape crisis centers); “victim advocates,” as defined by 34 U.S.C. § 12991(b)(48) (individuals working for
a victim services program); and “victim assistants,” as defined by 34 U.S.C. § 12991(b)(49) (individuals working for a
law enforcement or prosecution agency, including the recipient).

46
Page: 15 of 18



Indirect costs

The recipient may not obligate, expend, or draw down any award funds for indirect costs, unless and until either (1) the
recipient submits to OVW a current, federally-approved indirect cost rate agreement, or (2) the recipient determines
that it is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2
C.F.R. 200.414(f), and advises OVW in writing of both its eligibility and its election.

47
Conditional clearance with release of technical assistance funds

The recipient acknowledges that the budget for this award is pending review and approval. Until OVW approves the
budget, any obligations or expenditures incurred by the recipient are made at the recipient's own risk. The recipient
may obligate, expend, or draw down up to $10,000 for participation in or travel-related expenses to attend OVW-
sponsored technical assistance events, but these obligations and expenditures remain at the recipient's own risk until
the budget is approved. Remaining funds will not be available for drawdown until OVW's Grants Financial Management
Division has approved the budget and budget narrative via a Grant Award Modification (GAM). If applicable, the
Indirect Cost Rate will be identified in the GAM when the budget is approved. If there is another condition on the award
prohibiting any obligation, expenditure, and drawdown of any funds, that other condition will control.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Acceptance

Declaration and Certification to the U.S. Department of Justice as to Acceptance

By checking the declaration and certification box below, I-- 

A.    Declare to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), under penalty of perjury, that I have authority to make this
declaration and certification on behalf of the applicant.

B.    Certify to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, that the following are true as of the date of this award acceptance: (1) I have conducted or there was conducted
(including by applicant’s legal counsel as appropriate and made available to me) a diligent review of all terms and
conditions of, and all supporting materials submitted in connection with, this award, including any assurances and
certifications (including anything submitted  in connection therewith by a person on behalf of the applicant before, after,
or at the time of the application submission and any materials that accompany this acceptance and certification); and
(2) I have the legal authority to accept this award on behalf of the applicant. 

C.    Accept this award on behalf of the applicant.

D.    Declare the following to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant:  (1) I understand
that, in taking (or not taking) any action pursuant to this declaration and certification, DOJ will rely upon this declaration
and certification as a material representation; and (2) I understand that any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information or statement in this declaration and certification (or concealment or omission of a material fact as to either)
may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§
10271-10273), and also may subject me and the applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies under the
federal False Claims Act (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and/or §§ 3801-3812) or otherwise.

Agency Approval

Title of Approving Official
Director

Name of Approving Official
Rosemarie Hidalgo

Signed Date And Time
9/8/24 5:22 PM

Page: 16 of 18



Authorized Representative

 Declaration and Certification

Entity Acceptance

Title of Authorized Entity Official
County Administrator

Name of Authorized Entity Official
Patrick Thompson

Signed Date And Time
9/19/2024 12:37 PM

 

Page: 17 of 18



 
 

GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
 

     

 
Prepared By: Brooke Mays 

Committee: Finance 

Committee Date: November 21, 2024 

Ordinance Title: Ordinance for Budget Amendment for EIP Grant Award 

Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

 
All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 
 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/1/2024 – 9/30/2027 

Is match required?                                                                                                         yes     no 

   - If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?           yes     no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?                                                       yes      no 
  - If yes, what is the granting agency’s allowable de minimis Indirect Cost rate? 
 
Is the indirect cost included in the budget?                                                           yes     no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $50,000 of each 
subaward. 
   - If no, please explain: 
 
 
Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no                                                
  - If yes, please explain: 
 
 
How many sub-awards are included in this award?        0 

   - Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?                                                yes     no 
  -  If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or     
     contract: 
 
 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


Resolution Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled Cole Henert versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: $26,946.54 
If not, explain funding source:    Budget Impact: $26,946.54 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535             Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims 

Background Information:  Settlement for Cole Henert in the amount of $26,946.54 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its November 26, 2024 meeting. 

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated this settlement on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

COLE HENERT VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having a claim asserted against 
it by Cole Henert for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department, and, 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $26,946.54 for the settlement funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 

WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled Cole Henert versus County 
of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Cole Henert while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s  Department by payment of the amount of $26,946.54  for the settlement for permanent 
disability for a Workers Compensation case. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for Cole Henert in the amount of 
$26,946.54  shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
ZONING COMMITTEE 

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
November 26, 2024 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

  PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE LAID OVER:

1. V-01-24 A VARIATION FROM 18.3.6 C. 1. TO ALLOW A FENCE IN THE REQUIRED
FRONT YARD -IN FRONT OF FRONT BUILDING LINE- TO HAVE A HEIGHT AS HIGH
AS 10 FEET 6 INCHES, INCLUSIVE OF LIGHTS (ALTHOUGH THE MAJORITY OF THE
FENCE WILL BE 8 FEET 6 INCHES, INCLUSIVE OF LIGHTS) INSTEAD OF THE
PERMITTED 4 FEET ON A LOT THAT IS ZONED AG, AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY
DISTRICT requested by Jeremiah Jessen, Owner, represented by Darron M. Burke, Attorney,
for the property that is commonly known as 7376 Prairie Hill Road, South Beloit, IL 61080, in
Roscoe Township.

      PIN:  04-11-376-003     C.B. District:    4 
      Lesa Rating: NA             Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map:  NA 

ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (7-0) 
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  TBD 

2. ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL FOR A 2 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR
ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 33.39 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY
KNOWN AS 5626 TIPPLE ROAD / 5303 DAILETTE ROAD (PIN: 15-17-100-008),
ROCKFORD, IL 61102, IN ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP, District 9, requested by Fox Sparrow
Solar, LLC (an indirect subsidiary of Trajectory Energy Partners, LLC), Lessee, represented by
James Rodriguez, Attorney and Mack Gapinski, Project Manager.
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (2-5)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  TBD

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

3. COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not
intended as an official public notice): 

• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
meeting is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, December 10, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. in
Room 303 of the County Administration Building.

• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, December 18, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the
County Administration Building.



ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Tuesday, November 26, 2024 
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush & Jas Bilich 

County Board Office 
404 Elm Street, Rm 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | E-mail: boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov  

 
Document Title:  Resolution Approving The American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds For 

Economic Impact Program For The Chairman’s Initiative Group Six (6) 
Project — Harlem Community Center 

 
County Code: Resolution Establishing The American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds For Economic 

Impact Program Policy (2022-CR-012) 
 
Board Meeting Date: Tuesday, November 26, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $10,000 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 

Winnebago County received in total approximately $55 million (County Board approved 
Phase 1 July 22, 2022, 2021-CO-057) from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, of which 
$1,000,000 (County Board Approved February 24, 2022, 2022-CR-012) will be used for Board 
Member Initiatives, as long as they are ARP compliant, reviewed by the external auditor, and 
approved by the County Board. This one (1) listed project under Group Six (6) is for the Harlem 
Community Center (HCC) and is to be considered by the Board having a low risk assessment from 
the external auditor. Program allocation use description is listed with Program/Project Names. This 
is the final $10,000 of this program (in total, $1 million) that is to be used as part of the ARP Funds 
that need to be allocated by end of December 2024. 
 
Recommendation:  
Administration supports the County Board Member initiatives requested from ARP funds to be 
used for economic development impacts for the community to combat the negative effects from 
COVID-19.  
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
None required, but Board Members may report back upon request for project updates. 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov


Sponsored By: John Sweeney    County Board Meeting: November 26, 2024 
 

  
 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

2024 CR ______ 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (ARP) FUNDS FOR 
ECONOMIC IMPACT PROGRAM FOR THE CHAIRMAN’S INITIATIVE  

GROUP SIX (6) PROJECT — HARLEM COMMUNITY CENTER 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2021 the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) became a recipient of 
American Rescue Plan Act (hereinafter “ARP”) funds from the federal government to assist in 
combating the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined that a portion of the award, one million dollars 
($1,000,000) of the total funds to be received, shall be used for economic development 
throughout the county due to the adverse impact of COVID-19; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Economic Development Committee and the Winnebago County Board 
developed and approved the “American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds for Economic Impact 
Program Policy” (Program) in order to define the process for the allocation of ARP funds on 
February 24, 2022 (2022-CR-012); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Program provides Winnebago County Board Members the ability to 
allocate funds for projects within their district or within the geographic boundaries of Winnebago 
County, Illinois to assist with the negative economic impacts from COVID-19; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 8, 2022, the Winnebago County Board approved a Resolution 

(2022-CR-163) regarding ARP funds for Economic Impact Program, specifically for Winnebago 
County Board Chairman’s Initiative Group Five (5) Projects, which included specific allocation 
amounts by County Board member(s) for various proposed uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution (2022-CR-163) fund request for Group 5 of $10,000 to 

“Winnebago County – Housing Study”, was not distributed and is hereby reallocating the 
$10,000 to be utilized for the Harlem Community Center (HCC); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Program and the External Auditor’s Review of a project for 
HCC, further described herein, the Economic Development Committee of the County Board of 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed and recommends approval of the project for 
HCC.  

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the County Board hereby approves the Program Project listed below, 
 

PROJECT 

BOARD 
MEMBER 

PARTICIPATION 
(may vary) 

 
ANTICIPATED 
ALLOCATION 

AMOUNT 
(may vary)  

PROPOSED USE 

Harlem 
Community 
Center 
(HCC) 

Paul Arena  $        10,000  

The COVID-19 pandemic demonstrated the need for affordable, 
accessible, quality child care.  Harlem Community Center will use the 
funds to reopen its school age child care program - Kids Fun Club.  This 
program will be held at HCC during the school year, 
before/after/holidays, and also during the summer when school is not in 
session.  Care will be available M-F 6:30a-5:45 pm to allow for working 
flexibility.  Funding will be used to provide the furniture and a 
combination of educational, fun and active learning materials. 

 
as outlined and approved in the, “American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds for Economic Impact 
Program Policy and further approved by the external auditor to be ARP compliant. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Chief Operations Officer, the County Administrator, the Chief Financial Officer, and the 
County Auditor.        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
Economic Development Committee 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

TIM NABORS, VICE CHAIR  TIM NABORS, VICE CHAIR 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



ARP Funds for Economic Impacts Program Application  
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

** Please complete the required information below to make a request in minimum increment of $10,000 for Fiscal 
Year 2022, which ends September 30, 2022. The application must be fully complete to be processed and must 

comply with the American Rescue Plan Act to be eligible as well as the Program Requirements. ** 

ORGANIZATIONAL INFORMATION 

Organization Name:  

Organization Contact 
(Point) Person:  

Contact Person 
Position:  

Contact Phone 
Number:  

Contact Person 
 E-mail:  

Description of the 
Organization:  

Requested Award 
Amount ($): 

Must be: $10,000 increments 
  $ __  __  __ , __ __ __ . 00     [Total of all Board Member(s) Sponsoring] 

Proposed Use of Award 
Must comply with ARP 

(be specific on the use): 
Should address items such as; what, 

who, when, where, how, etc.? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Expected Outcome(s) 
from Award: 

 

Harlem Community Center
Shannon Scheffel
CEO
815-633-5817
shannon@harlemcommunity.org
HCC promotes a strong community through its recreational, educational, social, and child care programming.

1 0 0 0 0

The COVID-19 pandemic demonstrated the need for affordable, 
accessible, quality child care.  Harlem Community Center will use 
the funds to reopen its school age child care program - Kids Fun 
Club.  This program will be held at HCC during the school year, 
before/after/holidays, and also during the summer when school is 
not in session.  Care will be available M-F 6:30a-5:45 pm to allow 
for working flexibility.  Funding will be used to provide the 
furniture and a combination of educational, fun and active 
learning materials.

Reduce the number of children requiring care when school is not
is session (before/after/holiday)
Increase affordable child care options for school age children by
reopening the Kids Fun Club with a designated space that will
allow for social distancing for the program attendees.



ARP Funds for Economic Impacts Program Application  
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act Checklist  
Last updated: 7/26/2021  
Ver. 1.02  

Requesting Organization:   
 

Individual Submitting Request:   
Date of Request:   

  
Overarching Principles 

Describe the need that was caused by COVID-19 
  

Describe how this cost will meet the need noted above 
  

The COVID 19 pandemic demostrated the importance of child care to the economy and 
to families.  As families struggled for options for their children, it became clear that the 
system was strained.  Affordability, accessability, and equity in quality care are 
problems to be addressed. Care for school age children can be even more of a struggle 
due to varying children's needs, school schedules, and parent work schedules.  Quality, 
affordable before school, after school, and during school holidays care is challenging to 
find.  Nearly 2/3 of school age students have parents working outside the home, yet 
approximately 25% are enrolled in child care or enrichment programs.  According to the 
Afterschool Alliance, while 10.2 million children participate in afterschool programming 
an additional 19.4 million would if options were available.

Harlem Community Center (HCC) is requesting $10,000 to be used to re-open its Kids
Fun Club program. During the school year this program provides before school, after
school, and schools day out care. During the summer, camp is offered. Kids Fun Club
is open M-F from 6:30 am until 5:45 pm. HCC accepts funding from the State of Illinois
Child Care Assistance Program which provides low income families child care subsidies
to pay for care. Children will receive school bus transportation to/from the Center. Kids
Fun Club will have its own room in the new HCC - an 860 sq ft space in order to allow
for the appropriate social distancing for the program attendees. Funding will be used to
provide the furniture and a combination of educational, fun and active learning materials.
Children will be able to play outside on the school age playground equipment
immediately outside their room. There is an identical additional classroom available
should the program meet capacity and the need persists. HCC currently anticipates
serving approximately 30 children each day.



Coronavirus Funding Relief Funding Checklist 

American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act Checklist
Last updated: 7/26/2021
Ver. 1.02

Requesting Department:

Individual Submitting Request:
Date of Request:

Overarching Principles
Describe the need that was caused by COVID-19
The COVID 19 pandemic demostrated the importance of child care to the economy and to families.  As families 
struggled for options for their children, it became clear that the system was strained.  Affordability, accessability, 
and equity in quality care are problems to be addressed. Care for school age children can be even more of a 
struggle due to varying children's needs, school schedules, and parent work schedules.  Quality, affordable 
before school, after school, and during school holidays care is challenging to find.  Nearly 2/3 of school age 
students have parents working outside the home, yet approximately 25% are enrolled in child care or enrichment 
programs.  According to the Afterschool Alliance, while 10.2 million children participate in afterschool 
programming an additional 19.4 million would if options were available.

Harlem Community Center (HCC) is requesting $10,000 to be used to re-open its Kids Fun Club program.  
During the school year this program provides before school, after school, and schools day out care.  During the 
summer, camp is offered.  Kids Fun Club is open M-F from 6:30 am until 5:45 pm.  HCC accepts funding from 
the State of Illinois Child Care Assistance Program which provides low income families child care subsidies to 
pay for care.  Children will receive school bus transportation to/from the Center.  Kids Fun Club will have its own 
room in the new HCC - an 860 sq ft space in order to allow for the appropriate social distancing for the program 
attendees.  Funding will be used to provide the furniture and a combination of educational, fun and active learning 
materials. Children will be able to play outside on the school age playground equipment immediately outside their 
room.  There is an identical additional classroom available should the program meet capacity and the need 
persists.  HCC currently anticipates serving approximately 30 children each day.

Supporting Documentation

Page 1 of 2



Coronavirus Funding Relief Funding Checklist 

Does the cost fall within one of the eligible categories? Yes / No

COVID-19 response and prevention
Public health and safety staff
Hiring state and local government staff
Assistance to unemployed workers
Contributions to state unemployment insurance trust funds
Small businesses
Nonprofits Yes
Assistance to households
Aid to impacted industries
Expenses to improve efficacy of public health or economic relief programs
Survivor's benefits
Disproportionately impacted populations and communities

Is the employer eligible?
Is the worker considered to be essential?
Pay rates and maximums stay within the allowable amounts: 
 - $13/hour in additional wages above normal rate
 - $25,000 per eligible worker
 - Total pay does not exceed 150 percent of average annual wage within relevant state

Is the cost considered to be related to provision of government services?
Cost is not related to debt service and related issuance costs
Cost is not related to settlements or judgments
Funds are not being used to replenish financial reserve funds

Water system infrastructure
Sewer system infrastructure
Broadband infrastructure

List of materials purchased from Lakeshore Learning

Assuming there is a revenue loss determined via the allowed calculation:

Public Health and Economic Impacts
Does the cost relate to one of the following subcategories?

Premium Pay
Are the following requirements met?

Revenue Loss

Eligibility Dating
When is it anticipated that the costs will be incurred?
Current but by December 2024

Investments in Infrastructure
Is the cost related to one of the following subcategories:

Please provide a listing of supporting documents being submitted with this request:

Page 2 of 2















Business Entity Search

Entity Information

Services and More Information

Office of the Secretary of State

Entity

Name

HARLEM COMMUNITY CENTER

File

Number

37059293 Status ACTIVE

Entity Type CORPORATION Type of

Corp

NOT-FOR-PROFIT

Incorporation

Date

(Domestic)

06-21-1957 State ILLINOIS

Duration

Date

PERPETUAL

Annual

Report

Filing Date

06-27-2024

Annual

Report

Year

2024

Agent

Information

SHANNON L SCHEFFEL

900 ROOSEVELT RD

MACHESNEY PARK ,IL

61115-2104

Agent

Change

Date

07-23-2002

11/18/24, 5:22 PM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 1/2



OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:   Debbie Crozier 

Committee:     Operations and Administration  

Committee Date: November 21, 2024  

Resolution Title:    Resolution for Approval for Stop-Loss Insurance  

Board Meeting Date:  November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:   Approx. $1,300,000 for all 
 group insurance vendors 

If not, explain funding source: 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  48500  43171  Budget Impact:    See below. 

Background Information:  Stop-loss insurance, also referred to as excess insurance, is a type of 
coverage purchased by employers that are self-insured to limit their liability in the event of large, 
unpredictable, or catastrophic health claims. 

Winnebago County purchases stop loss coverage to limit the County’s risk on the group insurance 
plan both on a specific/individual basis.  Our specific/individual deductible is $200,000. 

2025 Renewal:   The Specific individual premium is increasing to $55.69/month, the specific family 
premium is increasing to $193.33.  This is a 5.44% increase from the 2024 cost.  We currently have 
6 stop loss claimants that have exceeded the $200,000 limit, there are 4 claimants that are over 
$180,000 with 2 months remaining in 2024.   

Recommendation:  County Administrator, Patrick Thompson, Chief Financial Officer, Steve Schultz 
and Human Resources Director, Debbie Crozier, have reviewed the Stop Loss Renewal Offer 
(Resolution Exhibit A) and recommend approval. 

Contract/Agreement:   January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 

Legal Review:  Done. 

Follow-Up:   The premium is paid monthly based on enrollment. 



County Board:  November 26, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL FOR STOP-LOSS INSURANCE

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers a self-insured Co-Pay/POS and High 
Deductible medical plans to employees and retirees; the County purchases a stop loss insurance 
plan to reinsure the County for medical claims which exceed $200,000 on an a specific (per 
individual) basis; the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends continuation of Tokio Marine HCC 
(TMHCC) for 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, TMHCC has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County for 
administration of the stop loss coverage for 2025 not to exceed: 

$55.69 for Specific individual premium per month 
$193.33 for Specific family premium per month 
This is an 5.44% increase from the 2024 rates. 

This is will be an increase of $81,566 from the 2024 cost. 
See Resolution Exhibit A 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with TMHCC for the stop loss coverage for the self-insured Co-
Pay/POS and HDHP medical plans for the year January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with Tokio Marine HCC, 11100 Wayzata Blvd., Suite 350, 
Minnetonka, MN 55305, for administration of the stop loss coverage.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 

Respectfully Submitted, 



OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE 
DISAGREE 

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 

PAUL ARENA PAUL ARENA 

JOHN BUTITTA JOHN BUTITTA 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JAIME SALGADO JAIME SALGADO 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW

CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Stop Loss Analysis 
Winnebago County 

JePaagne e1 tte Rowan | October 23, 2024 
©2024 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. AJG.com 

Resolution Exhibit A 



 

 

 
Current Specific Stop Loss Deductible 

$200,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 2 

©2024 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 



AJG.com 

Current Deductible: Specific Stop Loss Marketing 
Illustrative Quote Firm Quote Firm Quote Firm Quote Illustrative Quote Illustrative Quote Illustrative Quote Illustrative Quote 

 
Winnebago County (1066 Employees) Current  Initial Renewal   Renewal  Option 1 Option 2 Option 3  Option 4 Option 5 Option 6 

 

TMHCC 

 

TMHCC 

 

TMHCC 

 

Voya Financial (24/12) 

HM Insurance Group 

with 50% rate cap 

(24/12) 

 

WellPoint Inc. (24/12) 
Symetra Life Insurance 

(24/12) 

 

Optum (24/12) 

 

BCS Financial (24/12) 

Specific Individual Stop Loss          

Contract Basis 24/12 Paid Paid 24/12 24/12 24/12 24/12 24/12 24/12 

Run-in Limit No No No No No No No No No 

Contract Includes Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx 

Specific Deductible $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 

Renewal Rate Cap 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 

No New Laser Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Proposed Lasers No No No Yes No No No No No 

Laser 1    $450,000      

Specific Annual Maximum Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited 

Specific Lifetime Maximum Liability Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited 

Aggregating Specific Stop Loss ($) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

REINSURANCE COSTS 
         

Specific Premium          

Employee Only (540) $52.97 $60.21 $55.69 $61.83 $64.24 $57.74 $66.20 $96.19 $81.26 

Employee + 1 (191) $183.20 $209.04 $193.33 $172.35 $182.91 $199.89 $201.29 $228.87 $251.64 

Employee + 2 (or more) (335) $183.20 $209.04 $193.33 $172.35 $182.91 $199.89 $201.29 $228.87 $251.64 

() $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Monthly Reinsurance Total $124,967 $142,468 $131,764 $124,044 $130,900 $136,322 $141,627 $172,328 $176,243 

Annual Reinsurance Total $1,499,604 $1,709,621 $1,581,170 $1,488,532 $1,570,803 $1,635,861 $1,699,518 $2,067,939 $2,114,916 

Dollar Increase From Current N/A $210,017 $81,566 -$11,072 $71,199 $136,257 $199,914 $568,335 $615,312 

Percentage Increase From Current N/A 14.00% 5.44% -0.74% 4.75% 9.09% 13.33% 37.90% 41.03% 

ADDITIONAL CLAIMS RISK 
         

Additional Laser Liability and Agg Spec $0 $0 $0 $250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total Dollar Increase From Current N/A $210,017 $81,566 $238,928 $71,199 $136,257 $199,914 $568,335 $615,312 

Percentage Increase From Current N/A  14.00%   5.44%  15.93% 4.75% 9.09% 13.33% 37.90% 41.03% 

3 
Page 3 AJG.com ©2024 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 



Current Deductible: Additional Details 
Illustrative Quote Firm Quote Firm Quote Firm Quote Illustrative Quote Illustrative Quote Illustrative Quote Illustrative Quote 

Winnebago County (1066 Employees) Current Initial Renewal Renewal Option 1 Option 2 Option 3  Option 4 Option 5 Option 6 

  
TMHCC 

 
TMHCC 

 
TMHCC 

 
Voya Financial (24/12) 

HM Insurance Group 
with 50% rate cap 

(24/12) 

 
WellPoint Inc. (24/12) 

Symetra Life 

Insurance (24/12) 

 
Optum (24/12) 

 
BCS Financial (24/12) 

ISL Deductible $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000  $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 

Additional Stop Loss Items        

Claim Accumulation Basis ISL Per Member Per Member Per Member Per Member Per Member Per Member Per Member Per Member Per Member 

Claim Reimbursement Percentage 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Retiree Coverage Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Waive Actively at Work Waived Waived Waived Waived Waived with disclosure Waived with disclosure Waived Waived Waived 

ISL Advance Funding Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No 

Aggregate Accommodation No No No No No No No No No 

TLO-ISL Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included 

TLO-ASL Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included Not Included 

Cost of Mirroring Included Included Included Included Included Included  Included Included Included 

Commission Included in the Rates 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%  0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

ISL Monthly Rate        

Employee Only $52.97 $60.21 $55.69 $61.83 $64.24 $57.74 $66.20 $96.19 $81.26 

Employee + 1 $183.20 $209.04 $193.33 $172.35 $182.91 $199.89 $201.29 $228.87 $251.64 

Employee + 2 (or more) $183.20 $209.04 $193.33 $172.35 $182.91 $199.89 $201.29 $228.87 $251.64 
 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Monthly ISL Premium $124,967 $142,468 $131,764 $124,044 $130,900 $136,322 $141,627 $172,328 $176,243 

Annual ISL Premium $1,499,604 $1,709,621 $1,581,170 $1,488,532 $1,570,803 $1,635,861 $1,699,518 $2,067,939 $2,114,916 

ASL Monthly Rate        

Employee Only $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Employee + 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Employee + 2 (or more) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Monthly ASL Premium $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Annual ASL Premium $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

PREMIUM TOTALS        

Monthly Total $124,967 $142,468 $131,764 $124,044 $130,900 $136,322 $141,627 $172,328 $176,243 

Annual Total $1,499,604 $1,709,621 $1,581,170 $1,488,532 $1,570,803 $1,635,861 $1,699,518 $2,067,939 $2,114,916 

Dollar Increase From Current N/A $210,017 $81,566 -$11,072 $71,199 $136,257 $199,914 $568,335 $615,312 

Percentage Increase From Current N/A 14.00% 5.44% -0.74% 4.75% 9.09% 13.33% 37.90% 41.03% 

ADDITIONAL CLAIMS RISK        

Premium Total With Lasers and Agg Spec $1,499,604 $1,709,621 $1,581,170 $1,738,532 $1,570,803 $1,635,861 $1,699,518 $2,067,939 $2,114,916 

Dollar Increase From Current N/A $210,017 $81,566 $238,928 $71,199 $136,257 $199,914 $568,335 $615,312 

Percentage Increase From Current N/A 14.00% 5.44% 15.93% 4.75% 9.09% 13.33% 37.90% 41.03% 

4 Page 4 AJG.com ©2024 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

 



 

 

 
Alternate Specific Stop Loss Deductible 

From $200,000 To $225,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 5 

©2024 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 



Alternative Deductible: Specific Stop Loss Marketing 
Firm Quote Firm Quote Firm Quote Illustrative Quote 

 
Winnebago County (1066 Employees) Current Alternate 1 Alternate 2 Alternate 3 Alternate 4 

TMHCC TMHCC Voya Financial (24/12) 
HM Insurance Group with 50% rate 

cap (24/12) 
WellPoint Inc. (24/12) 

Specific Individual Stop Loss      

Contract Basis 24/12 Paid 24/12 24/12 24/12 

Run-in Limit No No No No No 

Contract Includes Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx 

Specific Deductible $200,000 $225,000 $225,000 $220,000 $220,000 

Renewal Rate Cap 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 

No New Laser Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Proposed Lasers No No Yes No No 

Laser 1   $450,000   

Specific Annual Maximum Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited 

Specific Lifetime Maximum Liability Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited 

Aggregating Specific Stop Loss ($) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

REINSURANCE COSTS 
     

Specific Premium      

Employee Only (540) $52.97 $47.00 $54.33 $53.67 $51.96 

Employee + 1 (191) $183.20 $170.20 $151.23 $154.82 $179.72 

Employee + 2 (or more) (335) $183.20 $170.20 $151.23 $154.82 $179.72 

() $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Monthly Reinsurance Total $124,967 $114,905 $108,885 $110,417 $122,591 

Annual Reinsurance Total $1,499,604 $1,378,862 $1,306,622 $1,325,005 $1,471,093 

Dollar Increase From Current N/A -$120,742 -$192,982 -$174,599 -$28,511 

Percentage Increase From Current N/A -8.05% -12.87% -11.64% -1.90% 

ADDITIONAL CLAIMS RISK 
     

Additional Laser Liability and Agg Spec $0 $0 $225,000 $0 $0 

Total Dollar Increase From Current N/A -$120,742 $32,018 -$174,599 -$28,511 

Percentage Increase From Current N/A -8.05% 2.14% -11.64% -1.90% 
 

Page 6 
6 

©2024 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. AJG.com 







County Board:  November 26, 2024  
 
 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH ARTHUR J. 
GALLAGHER FOR THE PROPERTY AND CASUALTY COVERAGE 

  
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, each year adopts a Resolution which 

authorizes acceptance of the property and casualty insurance coverage; the County’s Insurance 
Broker, has extensively reviewed the County’s options for this coverage; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. has proposed the attached rates to Winnebago County 
for the property and casualty insurance coverage from December 1, 2024 thru November 30, 2025: 
 

See Resolution Exhibit A – Premium Summary Recap for Details. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed agreement and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Arthur J Gallagher & Co. for the property and casualty 
insurance coverage for December 1, 2024 through November 30, 2025.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., 6838 East State Street, Suite 
101, Rockford, IL 61108 for the property and casualty insurance coverage. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 
 

  



 

 

    Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



WINNEBAGO COUNTY 2024-25 RENEWAL Resolution Exhibit A

     $ %
LINE OF COVERAGE Change Change

Property Premium
Primary: Lloyd's of 
London $526,992.00

Primary: Lloyd's of 
London $801,929.00

Primary: Lloyd's of 
London $801,929.00 $274,937.00 52.2%

  Excess Property Premium Travelers Indemnity Co $354,864.00 Travelers Indemnity Co $410,152.00 Travelers Indemnity Co $410,152.00 $55,288.00 15.6%
  Boiler & Machinery Premium Hartford Steam Boiler $46,183.00 Hartford Steam Boiler $17,776.00 Hartford Steam Boiler $17,776.00 ($28,407.00) -61.5%

Liability Package Premium Lloyd's of London Included in above Lloyd's of London Included in above Lloyd's of London Included in above

Automobile Premium Lloyd's of London Included in above Lloyd's of London Included in above Lloyd's of London Included in above

Umbrella/Excess (1st) Premium Old Republic Union Ins. $452,762.00 Old Republic Union Ins. $479,182.00 Old Republic Union Ins. $479,182.00 $26,420.00 5.8%
  Limit $8MM xs $2MM   Limit $8MM xs $2MM   Limit $8MM xs $2MM

  Administration Costs CIRMA $95,986.00 CIRMA $112,581.00 CIRMA $112,581.00 $16,595.00 17.3%
  Loss Fund CIRMA $200,000.00 CIRMA $222,500.00 CIRMA $222,500.00 $22,500.00 11.3%

   CIRMA TOTAL $1,679,039.00 $2,046,320.00 $2,046,320.00 $367,281.00 21.9%

Umbrella/Excess (2nd) Premium Lexington $281,000.00 Lexington $353,500.00 Starstone Specialty $254,375.00 ($26,625.00) -9.5%
 Limit $3MM xs $10MM  Limit $3MM xs $10MM  Limit $3MM xs $10MM

Taxes $9,947.00 $12,390.00 $9,005.00 ($942.00) -9.5%

Crime Premium
Primary: Lloyd's of 
London Included in above

Primary: Lloyd's of 
London Included in above

Primary: Lloyd's of 
London Included in above

Excess: Travelers 
Casualty & Surety Co. $2,252.00

Excess: Travelers Casualty 
& Surety Co. $2,200.00

Excess: Travelers Casualty 
& Surety Co. $2,200.00 ($52.00) -2.3%

Professional Liability (Health 
Department Only) Premium

Columbia Casualty 
Company (CNA Insurance 
Companies) $27,500.00

Columbia Casualty 
Company (CNA Insurance 
Companies) $29,750.00

Columbia Casualty 
Company (CNA Insurance 
Companies) $29,750.00 $2,250.00 8.2%

Taxes $974.00 $1,053.00 $1,053.00 $79.00 8.1%

Excess Workers' Compensation Premium Illinois Public Risk Fund $167,817.00 Illinois Public Risk Fund $178,989.00 Illinois Public Risk Fund $178,989.00 $11,172.00 6.7%
Deductible $400K per claim Deductible $400K per claim Deductible $400K per claim 

  Administration Fee $5,035.00 $5,370.00 $5,370.00 $335.00 6.7%
Broker Fee - AJG      $73,116.00 $76,771.80 $76,771.80 $3,655.80 5.0%
Total Estimated Program Cost      $2,244,428.00      $2,704,143.80      $2,601,633.80 $357,205.80 15.9%
Note:  Additional Property Premium of $50,723 is not included in the Expiring Premium

OPTIONAL RENEWAL PROGRAM
ESTIMATED COST

PREMIUM SUMMARY
EXPIRING PROGRAM RENEWAL PROGRAM

ESTIMATED COST ESTIMATED COST



Resolution Executive Summary 
CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing on behalf of DoIT 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Board Date:  November 26, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Purchase of Phone Call Distribution System Using 

CIP 25 Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $56,040  
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $56,040 
Over or Under approved amount?  OVER    By: $ 5,975 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  Original quoted price was during our prior service contract; 
revised reflects our new licensing numbers. 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46586     Descriptor: Capital Project Fund/IT Equipment/ 

   Email Archiver 
Budget Impact? $ 62,015 

Background Information:    The Winnebago County Department of Information Technology 
(WinCo DoIT) is required to provide a secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for 
public safety, public health, a nursing home, the circuit courts, elections and all other Elected and 
Appointed officials.  WinCo DoIT supports the existing Mitel Voice Over IP (VoIP) system for the 
County. Several departments utilize an Automated Call Distribution (ACD) system for taking 
constituent phone calls: Circuit Clerk, Animal Service and others. The current ACD system is no 
longer supported and requires an upgrade for continued support, as well as enhanced features 
found in the more modern system.  

IP Communications, Inc. (IPC) is a local reseller and support agent for Mitel and has partnered with 
the County for nearly 20 years. The price quoted comes directly from Mitel through IPC, and is on 
the Sourcewell/NJPA collective agreement (120122-MBS), see Resolution Exhibit A. 

Recommended By:  Chief Information Officer, Dan Magers 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue Purchase Orders to IPC in the amount of 
$62,015. 



County Board Meeting:  November 26, 2024 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF PHONE CALL DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM USING CIP 2025 FUNDS  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Department of Information Technology (WinCo DoIT) 
is required to provide a secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for all 
departments; and 

 

 

WHEREAS,  WinCo DoIT supports the existing Mitel Voice Over IP (VoIP) system for the 
County. Several departments utilize an Automated Call Distribution (ACD) system for taking 
constituent phone calls: Circuit Clerk, Animal Service and others; and 

 
 

WHEREAS, The current ACD system is no longer supported and requires an upgrade for 
continued support, as well as enhanced features found in the more modern system; and  
 
 

WHEREAS, WinCO DoIT recommends IP Communications, Inc. which is a local reseller 
and support agent for Mitel and has partnered with the County for nearly 20 years. The price 
quoted comes directly from Mitel through IPC, and is on the Sourcewell/NJPA collective 
agreement (120122-MBS), see Resolution Exhibit A; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee concurs with this request and 
recommends approval by the Winnebago County Board. 

 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois., hereby authorizes the Purchasing Department to execute a purchase order to CDWG 
for a cybersecurity Backup licensing upgrade. 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, Director 
of Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



     Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Resolution Exhibit A



    Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By: Purchasing Department on behalf of DoIT 
Committee:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:  November 21, 2024 
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Cybersecurity Backup Annual Licensing Using 

Department Funding 

Was item budgeted? Yes   Amount Budgeted: $128,442.10 
  Appropriation Amount: $128,442.10 

If not, explain funding source:  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 19500-43167      Descriptor: DoIT Software Subscriptions 

Background Information:    The Winnebago County Department of Information Technology 
(WinCo DoIT) is required to provide a secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for 
public safety, public health, a nursing home, the circuit courts, elections and all other Elected and 
Appointed officials.  WinCo DoIT uses multiple Rubrik backup devices to ensure reliable, 
ransomware resilient backups to protect the County in order to restore from accidental and 
intentional data loss scenarios. This is the annual licensing for continued usage of our backup 
system. 

Rubrik is the County’s backup solution and licensing is provided only through a Rubrik reseller. 
CDWG has been the County’s reseller since we purchased the original devices. The price quoted 
comes directly from Rubrik through CDWG, and is on the National IPA Technology Solutions 
collective agreement (2010811), see Resolution Exhibit A. 

Recommended By:  Chief Information Officer, Dan Magers 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue a Purchase Order to CDWG in the amount 
of $128,442.10. 



County Board Meeting:  November 26, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING CYBERSECURITY BACKUP ANNUAL LICENSING

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Department of Information Technology (WinCo DoIT) 
is required to provide a secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for all 
departments; and 

 

WHEREAS,  WinCo DoIT uses multiple Rubrik backup devices to ensure reliable, 
ransomware resilient backups to protect the County in order to restore from accidental and 
intentional data loss scenarios; and  

 

WHEREAS, with current best practices and updated licensing options from Rubrik, an 
upgrade to the Enterprise licensing for our devices allows DoIT to more effectively monitor 
sensitive data, dynamically contain threats, and orchestrate recovery scenarios; and  

WHEREAS, WinCo DoIT recommends a cybersecurity backup licensing upgrade to 
protect the County from the ever-increasing security threats that emerge on a daily basis; and 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee concurs with this request and 
recommends approval by the Winnebago County Board. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois., hereby authorizes the Purchasing Department to execute a purchase order to CDWG 
for a cybersecurity Backup licensing upgrade. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, Director 
of Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



     Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub

QUOTE CONFIRMATION

Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote.

DAN MAGERS,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your technology needs. The details of your quote are below. If 

you are an eProcurement or single sign on customer, please log into your system to access 

the CDW site. You can search for your quote to retrieve and transfer back into your system for 

processing.

For all other customers, click below to convert your quote to an order.

Convert Quote to Order 

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE

CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

NVMS914 4/3/2024 NVMS914 5336053 $128,442.10

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

Rubrik Foundation Edition License + Premium Support 60 7144057 $560.86 $33,651.60

Mfg. Part#: RS-BT-FE-PE-PP

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions (2018011)

Rubrik Premium Support - extended service agreement - 1 

month - shipment

1 7144894 $3,148.55 $3,148.55

Mfg. Part#: RS-HW-SVC-PE-S2

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions (2018011)

RUBRIK RANSOMWARE INVESTIGATE LIC 60 7156359 $174.32 $10,459.20

Mfg. Part#: RS-BT-RAD-PE-PP

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions (2018011)

Rubrik Foundation Edition License + Premium Support 60 7144057 $560.86 $33,651.60

Mfg. Part#: RS-BT-FE-PE-PP

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions (2018011)

Rubrik Premium Support - extended service agreement - 1 

month - shipment

1 7144894 $3,148.55 $3,148.55

Mfg. Part#: RS-HW-SVC-PE-S2

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions (2018011)

RUBRIK BUS ED USABLE BETB SABLE LIC 60 7144910 $739.71 $44,382.60

Mfg. Part#: RS-BT-BE-PE-PP

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions (2018011)

https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/site-map.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/software.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/services/amplified-services.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/solutions.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/brand.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/research-hub.html
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=NVMS914
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7144057
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7144894
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7144894
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7156359
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7144057
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7144894
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7144894
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7144910


Page 2 of 3

SUBTOTAL

$128,442.10

SHIPPING

$0.00

SALES TAX

$0.00

GRAND TOTAL

$128,442.10 

PURCHASER BILLING INFO DELIVER TO

Billing Address:

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

404 ELM ST STE 506 RM 202

ROCKFORD, IL 61101-1225

Phone: (815) 319-4444

Payment Terms: Net 30 Days-Govt State/Local

Shipping Address:

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

IT

404 ELM ST STE 506

ROCKFORD, IL 61101-1225

Shipping Method: ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION

Please remit payments to:

CDW Government

75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Sales Contact Info 

Philippe Stapp   |  (866) 551-9995 | philsta@cdwg.com

LEASE OPTIONS

FMV TOTAL FMV LEASE OPTION

BO TOTAL

BO LEASE OPTION

$128,442.10 $3,634.91/Month $128,442.10 $4,179.51/Month

Monthly payment based on 36 month lease. Other terms and options are available. Contact your Account Manager for details. Payment quoted

is subject to change.    

Why finance?   

• Lower Upfront Costs. Get the products you need without impacting cash flow. Preserve your working capital and existing credit line. 

• Flexible Payment Terms. 100% financing with no money down, payment deferrals and payment schedules that match your company's

business cycles. 

• Predictable, Low Monthly Payments. Pay over time. Lease payments are fixed and can be tailored to your budget levels or revenue streams. 

• Technology Refresh. Keep current technology with minimal financial impact or risk. Add-on or upgrade during the lease term and choose to

return or purchase the equipment at end of lease. 

• Bundle Costs. You can combine hardware, software, and services into a single transaction and pay for your software licenses over time! We

know your challenges and understand the need for flexibility.   

General Terms and Conditions:   

This quote is not legally binding and is for discussion purposes only. The rates are estimate only and are based on a collection of industry data

from numerous sources. All rates and financial quotes are subject to final review, approval, and documentation by our leasing partners.

Payments above exclude all applicable taxes. Financing is subject to credit approval and review of final equipment and services configuration.

Fair Market Value leases are structured with the assumption that the equipment has a residual value at the end of the lease term.

Need Help?

My Account Support Call 800.800.4239

https://www.cdwg.com/accountcenter/logon
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/help-center.html


Page 3 of 3

About Us | Privacy Policy | Terms and Conditions 

This order is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

For more information, contact a CDW account manager.

© 2024 CDW•G LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239

https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/about/overview.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/privacy-notice.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions.html
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Board Date:  November 26, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Vehicle Pool Replacements Using 

CIP 2024 Funds  
Budget Information 

Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $155,000   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?  $155,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $85,295 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46410-C2421    Descriptor: CIP 24-Automobile 
Budget Impact? $69,705 

 

Background Information:  The Purchasing Department manages a fleet of (12) vehicles for the 
Winnebago County Vehicle Pool. Within this vehicle pool, the following departments have 
vehicles, (5) Planning, (2) Public Defender and (5) the County Vehicle Pool which allows 
departments to request vehicles for various county business.   

The intent of purchasing two vehicles will be that we sell two vehicles that each have about 
170,000+ miles and shift vehicles around the entire 12 vehicle fleet to better accommodate the 
vehicle pool needs. The two new vehicles will go into the County Vehicle Fleet then shift two 
existing County Fleet Vehicles to the Planning Department.  

Currently, we are requesting to purchase two vehicles. A 2023 Ford Edge that is available for 
immediate delivery from Rock River Ford, for $35,968, a discounted price (See Resolution Exhibit 
A).  The second vehicle request is a 2024 Ford Escape that is available for immediate delivery from 
Manning Ford for $33,737, a discounted price (See Resolution Exhibit B).  

Purchasing obtained three quotes to purchase both vehicle options (See Resolution Exhibit A and 
B). Quotes include dealer discounted pricing and government GSA pricing for vehicles. There is no 
additional outfitting required for these vehicles. 

Recommended By:  Hope Edwards, Director of Purchasing 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue Purchase Orders to obtain the vehicle 
purchases.  



    County Board Meeting: November 26, 2024 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF TWO VEHICLE POOL REPLACEMENTS  
USING CIP 24 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Vehicle Pool requested the purchase of two vehicle 
replacements using CIP 24 funds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department obtained quotes for price and delivery, resulting 
in the lowest price and best lead time from Rock River Ford and Brad Manning Ford; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the quotes for the Two Vehicle Pool 
Replacements, (Resolution Exhibit A and B) and recommends awarding the purchases to 
Rock River Ford and Brad Manning Ford., respectively. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue Purchase Orders, 
on behalf of Winnebago County to Anderson Dealerships, Inc., DBA Rock River Ford, 224 
North Alpine Road, Rockford, Illinois in the amount of $35,968 and Brad Manning Ford, 402 
Manning Drive, PO Box 428, Dekalb, IL in the amount of $33,737. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, 
County Administrator, County Sheriff, County Board Office and County Auditor.    

 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Rock River Ford Hamblock Ford Manning Ford

2023 Ford Edge* 35,968$                  41,680$                    37,995$              

Total 35,968$                  41,680$                    37,995$              

QUOTE TAB
24NB-2375

VEHICLE POOL REPLACEMENTS

Purchasing Department  |  404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4380   |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Exhibit A



Manning Ford Hamblock Ford Rock River Ford

2024 Escape 33,737$    35,750$      35,778$    

Total 33,737$    35,750$      35,778$    

QUOTE TAB
24NB-2375

VEHICLE POOL REPLACEMENTS

Purchasing Department  |  404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4380   |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit B



Date: 11/7/2024
Salesperson: Eric Kilmer
Manager: Eric Kilmer

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CUSTOMER   Winnebago County Home Phone :  

Address :
404 ELM ST STE 202
ROCKFORD, IL 61101
WINNEBAGO

Work Phone : (815) 319-4386

E-Mail :  Cell Phone : (815) 319-4386

VEHICLE
Stock # : NSA63421 New / Used : New VIN : 1FMCU9MN0RUA63421 Mileage: 11
Vehicle : 2024 Ford Escape Color : Carbonized Gray

Type : ST-Line 4dr All-Wheel Drive U9M

 Market Value Selling Price  34,400.00
 Discount  1,229.00

 33,171.00
 Taxable Fees (Estimated)  35.00
 DealerDoc  358.03
 Non Tax Fees  173.00

 33,737.03

Customer Approval:   Management Approval:  
By signing this authorization form, you certify that the above personal information is correct and accurate, and authorize the release of credit and employment
information. By signing above, I provide to the dealership and its affiliates consent to communicate with me about my vehicle or any future vehicles using electronic,
verbal and written communications including but not limited to eMail, text messaging, SMS, phone calls and direct mail. Terms and Conditions subject to credit approval.
For Information Only. This is not an offer or contract for sale.

 Adjusted Price

 Balance

Resolution Exhibit B



Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Facilities 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Board Date:  November 26, 2024      
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding LED Upgrades for Courthouse Garage Tunnel Using 

CIP 2024 Funds 

Budget Information 
Budgeted?  YES    Amount Budgeted? $60,000 

If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A 
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $25,457 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320-C2424 Descriptor: 
Budget Impact?  $34,542 

Background Information: In September 2024, IFB #24B-2369 - LED Upgrades for the lower-level 
Courthouse Garage Tunnel went out for bid to upgrade the lighting in the parking garage. This 
project yielded four (4) bids, one being unresponsive. This pricing reflects the ComEd Rebate 
Discount Program and accounts for 115 light fixture replacements. 

The lowest bid among the four (4) submissions for the Courthouse was also received from Helm 
Electric, See Resolution Exhibit A.  

The Invitation for Bid was emailed to 40 potential bidders and local suppliers, including IBEW 
Local 364, Project First Rate, and was also publicly advertised in the RRStar and on County 
website.  

Recommended By:  Shawn Franks, Facilities 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue a purchase order to Helm Electric in the 
amount of $34,542   



County Board Meeting:  November 26, 2024 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING LED UPGRADES FOR COURTHOUSE GARAGE TUNNEL USING CIP 2024 FUNDS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

          
        WHEREAS, the Courthouse garage needs upgraded LED lighting; and, 
 

          WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Purchasing Department accepted bids for LED Upgrades 
for Courthouse Garage Tunnel – Bid IFB#24B-2369; and 

 

         WHEREAS, bids were received from four vendors; and 
 

         WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Proposals received for the aforementioned 
project and recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

 

HELM ELECTRIC 
5280 11TH STREET 

ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61109 
 

(See Bid Tab, Resolution Exhibit A) 
 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County Purchase 
Order, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, in the amount of $34,542, with HELM ELECTRIC, 
5280 11TH STREET, ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61109.  

 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Facilities, Purchasing 
Department, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



 
                           Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR 
OGNI GROUP  

Wood Dale, IL
HELM ELECTRIC   

Rockford, IL

WILSON ELECTRIC CO.    

Rockford, IL

DOMINION LIGHTING  

Elmhurst, IL

LABOR $49,448.00 $25,933.85 $27,000.00 Non-Responsive

MATERIALS $15,299.00 $8,608.50 $13,850.00 Non-Responsive

TOTAL $64,747.00 $34,542.35 $40,850.00 Non-Responsive

BID TAB
24B-2359 LED UPGRADES COURTHOUSE GARAGE TUNNEL

BID OPENING- OCTOBER 23, 2024 - 2:00 P.M.

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for the States Attorney Office 
Committee Name: Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Board Date:  November 26, 2024 
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Flooring Replacement for the States Attorney Office 

Using CIP 23 PSST Funds 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $90,000  
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $90,000  
Over or Under approved amount? OVER        By: $55,000 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320-C2332    Descriptor: CIP 23 PSST Funds 
Budget Impact? $145,000 

 

Background Information: The flooring in the States Attorney Office is in need of replacement. It is 
in disrepair with rips, tears, stains and major wear and tear. For this renovation, tile carpet was 
requested for the bid specifications which will allow for better long-term repair and replacement 
of the carpet itself. A high-performance luxury vinyl tile (LVT) hard surface product will be used for 
the entryway, hallways and staff common areas to allow for easy cleaning and minimal wear and 
tear on high traffic surface areas. The flooring was submitted to be replaced using CIP 23 PSST 
Funds.   

This project 24B-2366 yielded (4) bids with the lowest bid received from Benchmark Flooring, Inc. 
(See Resolution Exhibit A). 

The Invitation to Bid was emailed to 12 potential bidders and local suppliers. It was also publicly 
advertised in the RRStar and on the County website.  The Pre-Bid Meeting was mandatory and 
we had 7 attendees representing 7 companies.  

Recommended By:  The States Attorney Office and Facilities Department 

Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will prepare the Purchase Order to Benchmark Flooring Inc. in the 
amount of $145,000. 



County Board Meeting: November 26, 2024 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

 RESOLUTION AWARDING FLOORING REPLACEMENT FOR THE STATES ATTORNEY OFFICE USING CIP 23 PSST FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 

Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, The States Attorney Office is in need of flooring replacement; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County went out for Bid #24B-2366 Flooring Replacement at States 
Attorney Office; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

 

Benchmark Flooring, Inc. 
8197 Commerce Drive 
Loves Park, IL  61111 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County 
Purchase Order, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, in the amount of $145,000 to 
Benchmark Flooring Inc, 8197 Commerce Drive, Loves Park, Illinois 61111. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the States Attorney Office, Director 
of Purchasing, Finance Director, Facilities Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.   

                                 
 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME
Benchmark Flooring Inc.   

Loves Park, IL

Boss Carpet One LLC                    

Dixon, IL 

Carpet Mill Outlet USA             

Roscoe, IL  

Tiles In Styles DBA TAZA                    

South Holland, IL 

5TH FLOOR OFFICE CARPET COST $14,225 $15,235 $23,739 $38,037

5TH FLOOR PUBLIC SPACE CARPET COST $6,100 $7,920 $9,387 $16,887

5TH FLOOR LVT COST $700 $1,010 $1,703 $3,786

6TH FLOOR OFFICE CARPET COST $29,750 $38,720 $45,985 $43,853

6TH FLOOR PUBLIC SPACE CARPET COST $14,000 $16,645 $18,503 $22,864

6TH FLOOR LVT COST $7,000 $14,850 $13,867 $16,750

7TH FLOOR OFFICE CARPET COST $29,347 $32,895 $39,200 $55,006

7TH FLOOR PUBLIC SPACE CARPET COST $12,578 $15,150 $14,775 $59,250

7TH FLOOR LVT COST $11,000 $19,210 $17,446 $24,454

8TH FLOOR OFFICE CARPET COST $13,425 $17,375 $21,404 $23,142

8TH FLOOR PUBLIC SPACE CARPET COST $5,975 $6,955 $6,827 $8,259

8TH FLOOR LVT COST $900 $2,500 $1,708 $3,950

TOTAL PROJECT COST $145,000 $169,600 $214,544 $316,238

BID TAB
24B-2366 FLOORING REPLACEMENT AT WINNEBAGO STATES ATTORNEY OFFICE

BID OPENING - OCTOBER 16, 2024@ 10:00 AM

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department 
Committee Name: Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: November 21, 2024 
Board Date:  November 26, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Public Safety Building Design-Build Contract to 

Ringland-Johnson Construction Using ARPA Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $32,000,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount? $32,000,000 
Over or Under approved amount? N/A        By: $0.00 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase? 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  YES  
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 61300-46320-RP028 - $24,121,465   Descriptor: ARPA Funds 

 $7,879,535                         CIP Funds 
Budget Impact? $32,000,000 

 

Background Information:  The Public Safety Building Design-Build project involved several key 
committee members across multiple departments who worked closely with Huffman & Keel 
Partners and consultants to develop the priorities for this project.   

As you recall, those include a new Family Court Center, MEP Infrastructure upgrades and 
demolition of the existing third and fourth floors for future use.  

In April of 2024, Purchasing issued RFP #24P-2320. Five (5) submissions were received (See 
Resolution Exhibit A). As a part of the design-build process, the evaluation team short listed to 
three (3) finalists in the procurement process. It was an extensive process with multiple site visits, 
issuing clarifications, scheduling presentations and committee evaluation meetings.  The 
evaluations pointed to awarding the design-build contract to Ringland-Johnson Construction.  

Upon receiving Operations & Administrative recommendations, staff proceeded through contract 
negotiations with Ringland-Johnson Construction. The State’s Attorney Office and Private Counsel 
reviewed the attached AIA (See Resolution Exhibit B).   

This project will first expend all available ARPA funds with the remainder of the project to be 
funded with CIP funds.  
Recommended By:  Evaluators and Project Sub-Committee  

Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will execute the attached contract and route for appropriate 
signatures. 



County Board Meeting: November 26, 2024 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

 RESOLUTION AWARDING PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT TO  
RINGLAND-JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION USING ARPA FUNDS 

 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 

Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County is in need of renovating the Public Safety Building; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County will enter into an agreement with Ringland-Johnson 
Construction for the Public Safety Building design-build contract; 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Proposal Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) and contract 
(Resolution Exhibit C) for the aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

 

RINGLAND-JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION 
1725 HUNTWOOD DRIVE 
CHERRY VALLEY, IL 61016 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County 
Purchase Order, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, in the amount of $32,000,000 to 
Ringland-Johnson Construction 1725 Huntwood Drive, Cherry Valley, IL 61016. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Sherriff’s 
Office, Chief Information Officer, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, Facilities 
Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.   

                                 



Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



General Contractor
Ringland-Johnson 

Construction
Sjostrom & Sons, Inc.

Stenstrom Construction 

Group
Harbour Contractors, Inc. Scandroli Construction 

Design Sub-Contractor 1919 Architects
Angus-Young Associates, 

Inc.
Venture Architects Farnsworth Group Larson & Darby

24P-2320 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING DESIGN BUILD PROJECT PHASE I

PROPOSAL TAB

Friday, June 7, 2024 - 2:00 PM

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



   Document A141
®

 – 2014
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder

Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification.

Consultation with an attorney is also 
encouraged with respect to 
professional licensing requirements 
in the jurisdiction where the Project is 
located.

AGREEMENT made as of the 26th day of November in the year 2024
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Winnebago County
404 Elm Street
Rockford, Illinois  61101

and the Design-Builder:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Ringland-Johnson, Inc.
1725 Huntwood Drive
Cherry Valley, IL 61016

for the following Project:
(Name, location and detailed description)

Develop a comprehensive design plan for a new mechanical, plumbing, fire protection and 
electrical system, the first and second floor buildouts for the family courts center and demo 
of the third and fourth floor and implement the construction of said plan. 
Winnebago County Public Safety Building.
20 West State Street
Rockford, Illinois 61101

The Owner and Design-Builder agree as follows.

Owner is an Illinois County.  This Contract is the result of the award of a Request for 
Proposal issued by Owner pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Local Government 
Professional Services Selection Act pertaining to public contracts, particularly the 
provision of 55 ILCS 5-45 (the County Design-Build Authorization Act).  The Request for 
Proposal, all Owner issued Addenda thereto, this Agreement, and Design Builder’s 
Proposal form a part of this Contract.  The terms of Illinois statutes applicable hereto and 
policies of the Owner shall govern all terms and conditions of this Contract as though fully 
set forth herein.

Exhibit Resolution B



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

2

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS

3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT

4 WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT

5 WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT

6 CHANGES IN THE WORK

7 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

8 TIME

9 PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

11 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

12 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

13 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

14 CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

15 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

TABLE OF EXHIBITS

A DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT

B INSURANCE AND BONDS

C SUSTAINABLE PROJECTS

ARTICLE 1   GENERAL PROVISIONS
§ 1.1 Owner’s Criteria
This Agreement is based on the Owner’s Criteria set forth in this Section 1.1. 
(Note the disposition for the following items by inserting the requested information or a statement such as "not 
applicable" or "unknown at time of execution." If the Owner intends to provide a set of design documents, and the 
requested information is contained in the design documents, identify the design documents and insert "see Owner’s 
design documents" where appropriate.)

§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project:
(Set forth the program, identify documentation in which the program is set forth, or state the manner in which the 
program will be developed.)

1.) Infrastructure Basis of Design Docs
2.) Family Courts Center Schematic Floor plan.
3.) Demo of third and fourth floors.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

3

§ 1.1.2 The Owner’s design requirements for the Project and related documentation:
(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, the documentation that contains the Owner’s design requirements, 
including any performance specifications for the Project.) as provided for in Owners RFP and Design Builder’s 
proposals which are incorporated herein by reference.

§ 1.1.3 The Project’s physical characteristics:
(Identify or describe, if appropriate, size, location, dimensions, or other pertinent information, such as geotechnical 
reports; site, boundary and topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of public and private utilities 
and services; legal description of the site; etc.)

§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any:
(Identify the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project such as Sustainability Certification, benefit to the 
environment, enhancement to the health and well-being of building occupants, or improvement of energy efficiency. If 
the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, incorporate AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit C, Sustainable 
Projects, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and Work related to the Owner’s Sustainable Objective.)

§ 1.1.5 Incentive programs the Owner intends to pursue for the Project, including those related to the Sustainable 
Objective, and any deadlines for receiving the incentives that are dependent on, or related to, the Design-Builder’s 
services, are as follows:
(Identify incentive programs the Owner intends to pursue for the Project and deadlines for submitting or applying for 
the incentive programs.)

§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s budget for the Work to be provided by the Design-Builder is set forth below: 
(Provide total for Owner’s budget, and if known, a line item breakdown of costs.)

$32,000,000.00  

§ 1.1.7 The Owner’s design and construction milestone dates: [Need preliminary Schedule]

.1 Design phase milestone dates:

  

.2 Submission of Design-Builder Proposal:

  

.3 Phased completion dates:

  

.4 Substantial Completion date:

  

.5 Other milestone dates:

  



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

4

§ 1.1.8 The Owner requires the Design-Builder to retain the following Architect, Consultants and Contractors at the 
Design-Builder’s cost:
(List name, legal status, address and other information.)

.1 Architect

 1919 Architects
4000 Morsay Drive
Rockford, IL 61107
Attn: Zach Enderle, AIA 
zach@1919architects.com

.2 Consultants

RJ Design Plus, Inc.
1725 Huntwood Dr.
Cherry Valley, IL 61016
Attn: Scott Mutton
smutton@ringland.com 

.3 Contractors

  

§ 1.1.9 Additional Owner’s Criteria upon which the Agreement is based:
(Identify special characteristics or needs of the Project not identified elsewhere, such as historic preservation 
requirements.)

§ 1.1.10 The Design-Builder shall confirm that the information included in the Owner’s Criteria complies with 
applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities. 

§ 1.1.10.1 If the Owner’s Criteria conflicts with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or 
lawful orders of public authorities, the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner of the conflict. 

§ 1.1.11 If there is a change in the Owner’s Criteria, the Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification in 
accordance with Article 6. 

§ 1.1.12 If the Owner and Design-Builder intend to transmit Instruments of Service or any other information or 
documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions. 
Unless otherwise agreed, the parties will use AIA Document E203™–2013 to establish the protocols for the 
development, use, transmission, and exchange of digital data and building information modeling.

§ 1.2 Project Team
§ 1.2.1 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 7.1.1:
(List name, address and other information.)

Chris Dornbush
Chief Operating Officer
Winnebago County
404 Elm Street
Rockford, Illinois  61101
Cdornbush@admin.wincoil.gov



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

5

§ 1.2.2 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representative, who are required to review the 
Design-Builder’s Submittals are as follows:
(List name, address and other information.)

Ted Seele
Tseele@fm.wincoil.com
Jeff Duesterbeck
Jeffd@huffmankeel.com
Shawn Franks
sfranks@fm.wincoil.com

§ 1.2.3 The Owner will retain the consultants and separate contractors for:
(List discipline, scope of work, and, if known, identify by name and address.)

Environmental Survey and any asbestos removal  

§ 1.2.4 The Design-Builder identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 3.1.2:
(List name, address and other information.)

§ 1.2.5 Neither the Owner’s nor the Design-Builder’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ written notice 
to the other party. 

§ 1.3 Binding Dispute Resolution
For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Section 14.3, the method of binding dispute 
resolution shall be the following: 
(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Design-Builder do not select a method of binding dispute resolution 
below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution other than litigation, Claims will be 
resolved by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.)

[    ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 14.4

[ X  ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[    ] Other: (Specify)

  

§ 1.4 Definitions
§ 1.4.1 Design-Build Documents. The Design-Build Documents consist of this Agreement between Owner and 
Design-Builder and its attached Exhibits (hereinafter, the "Agreement"); other documents listed in this Agreement; 
and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the 
Contract signed by both parties, including the Design-Build Amendment, (2) a Change Order, or (3) a Change 
Directive. 

§ 1.4.2 The Contract. The Design-Build Documents form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and 
integrated agreement between the parties and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 
written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Design-Build Documents shall 
not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind between any persons or entities other than the Owner 
and the Design-Builder. 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

6

§ 1.4.3 The Work. The term "Work" means the design, construction and related services required to fulfill the 
Design-Builder’s obligations under the Design-Build Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and 
includes all labor, materials, equipment and services provided or to be provided by the Design-Builder. The Work may 
constitute the whole or a part of the Project.

§ 1.4.4 The Project. The Project is the total design and construction of which the Work performed under the 
Design-Build Documents may be the whole or a part, and may include design and construction by the Owner and by 
separate contractors.

§ 1.4.5 Instruments of Service. Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or 
later developed, of the tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Design-Builder, Contractor(s), 
Architect, and Consultant(s) under their respective agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without 
limitation, studies, surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, digital models and other similar materials. 

§ 1.4.6 Submittal. A Submittal is any submission to the Owner for review and approval demonstrating how the 
Design-Builder proposes to conform to the Design-Build Documents for those portions of the Work for which the 
Design-Build Documents require Submittals. Submittals include, but are not limited to, shop drawings, product data, 
and samples. Submittals are not Design-Build Documents unless incorporated into a Modification.

§ 1.4.7 Owner. The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. The term "Owner" means the Owner or the Owner’s authorized 
representative.

§ 1.4.8 Design-Builder. The Design-Builder is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to 
throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. The term "Design-Builder" means the 
Design-Builder or the Design-Builder’s authorized representative.

§ 1.4.9 Consultant. A Consultant is a person or entity providing professional services for the Design-Builder for all or 
a portion of the Work, and is referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. To the 
extent required by the relevant jurisdiction, the Consultant shall be lawfully licensed to provide the required 
professional services. 

§ 1.4.10 Architect. The Architect is a person or entity providing design services for the Design-Builder for all or a 
portion of the Work, and is lawfully licensed to practice architecture in the applicable jurisdiction. The Architect is 
referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number.

§ 1.4.11 Contractor. A Contractor is a person or entity performing all or a portion of the construction, required in 
connection with the Work, for the Design-Builder. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the 
jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor is referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if 
singular in number and means a Contractor or an authorized representative of the Contractor. 

§ 1.4.12 Confidential Information. Confidential Information is information containing confidential or business 
proprietary information that is clearly marked as "confidential." 

§ 1.4.13 Contract Time. Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized 
adjustments, as set forth in the Design-Build Amendment for Substantial Completion of the Work. 

§ 1.4.14 Day. The term "day" as used in the Design-Build Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise 
specifically defined.

§ 1.4.15 Contract Sum. The Contract Sum is the amount to be paid to the Design-Builder for performance of the Work 
after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, as identified in Article A.1 of the Design-Build Amendment. 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

7

ARTICLE 2   COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS
§ 2.1 Compensation for Work Performed Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment
§ 2.1.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for Work performed prior to Execution of the Design-Build Amendment 
shall be made monthly. For the Design-Builder’s performance of Work prior to the execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment, the Owner shall compensate the Design-Builder as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation, including compensation for any Sustainability Services, or indicate the 
exhibit in which the information is provided. If there will be a limit on the total amount of compensation for Work 
performed prior to the execution of the Design-Build Amendment, state the amount of the limit.)
Owner shall pay Design Builder an amount not to exceed $1,642,888.00 for all design costs which shall include, but 
not be limited to, all professional fees for the architect and engineering fees through the bid process.  The Preliminary 
Budget Estimate as of October 4, 2024 is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  General Requirements for preconstruction 
services will also be incurred prior to finalization of Guaranteed Maximum Price.

§ 2.1.2 The hourly billing rates for services of the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants and 
Contractors, if any, are set forth below.
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

Individual or Position Rate
  

§ 2.1.3 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment
§ 2.1.3.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation set forth in Section 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 and include 
expenses, directly related to the Project, incurred by the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder’s Architect, 
Consultants, and Contractors, as follows: 

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence; 

.2 Dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project web sites, and extranets;

.3 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form documents;

.5 Postage, handling and delivery;

.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner;

.7 Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials 
requested by the Owner;

.8 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses; and

.9 Other Project-related expenditures, if authorized in advance by the Owner.

§ 2.1.3.2 For Reimbursable Expenses, the compensation shall be the expenses the Design-Builder and the 
Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants and Contractors incurred, plus an administrative fee of  zero  percent ( 0  %) 
of the expenses incurred.

§ 2.1.4 Payments to the Design-Builder Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment
§ 2.1.4.1 Payments are due and payable within 45 days of presentation of the Design-Builder’s invoice. Amounts 
unpaid    ( 45 ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the 
legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Design-Builder.
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

1 % per month 

§ 2.1.4.2 Records of Reimbursable Expenses and services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to 
the Owner at mutually convenient times for a period of two years following execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment or termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.  Reimbursable invoices and receipts are to be 
provided with each monthly billing.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

8

§ 2.2 Contract Sum and Payment for Work Performed After Execution of Design-Build Amendment
For the Design-Builder’s performance of the Work after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Owner shall 
pay to the Design-Builder the Contract Sum in current funds as agreed in the Design-Build Amendment.

ARTICLE 3   GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT
§ 3.1 General
§ 3.1.1 The Design-Builder shall comply with any applicable licensing requirements in the jurisdiction where the 
Project is located. 

§ 3.1.2 The Design-Builder shall designate in writing a representative who is authorized to act on the Design-Builder’s 
behalf with respect to the Project. 

§ 3.1.3 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. The 
Design-Builder shall not be relieved of the obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents by the activities, tests, inspections or approvals of the Owner. 

§ 3.1.3.1 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in compliance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities. If the Design-Builder performs Work contrary to 
applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, the 
Design-Builder shall assume responsibility for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§ 3.1.3.2 Neither the Design-Builder nor any Contractor, Consultant, or Architect shall be obligated to perform any act 
which they believe will violate any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders 
of public authorities. If the Design-Builder determines that implementation of any instruction received from the 
Owner, including those in the Owner’s Criteria, would cause a violation of any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner in 
writing. Upon verification by the Owner that a change to the Owner’s Criteria is required to remedy the violation, the 
Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification in accordance with Article 6. 

§ 3.1.4 The Design-Builder shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Design-Builder’s 
employees, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities 
performing portions of the Work.

§ 3.1.5 General Consultation. The Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct weekly meetings with the Owner to 
review matters such as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. 

§ 3.1.6 When applicable law requires that services be performed by licensed professionals, the Design-Builder shall 
provide those services through qualified, licensed professionals. The Owner understands and agrees that the services 
of the Design-Builder’s Architect and the Design-Builder’s other Consultants are performed in the sole interest of, and 
for the exclusive benefit of, the Design-Builder.

§ 3.1.7 The Design-Builder, with the assistance of the Owner, shall prepare and file documents required to obtain 
necessary approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§ 3.1.8 Progress Reports
§ 3.1.8.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the Owner informed of the progress and quality of the Work. On a monthly 
basis, or otherwise as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall submit written progress 
reports to the Owner, showing estimated percentages of completion and other information identified below:

.1 Work completed for the period;

.2 Project schedule status;

.3 Submittal schedule and status report, including a summary of outstanding Submittals;

.4 Responses to requests for information to be provided by the Owner; 

.5 Approved Change Orders and Change Directives;

.6 Pending Change Order and Change Directive status reports; 

.7 Tests and inspection reports;

.8 Status report of Work rejected by the Owner; 

.9 Status of Claims previously submitted in accordance with Article 14;



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

9

.10 Cumulative total of the Cost of the Work to date including the Design-Builder’s compensation and 
Reimbursable Expenses, if any; 

.11 Current Project cash-flow and forecast reports; and

.12 Additional information as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder.

§ 3.1.8.2 In addition, where the Contract Sum is not to exceed a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder shall 
include the following additional information in its progress reports:

.1 Design-Builder’s work force report;

.2 Equipment utilization report; and

.3 Cost summary, comparing actual costs to updated cost estimates including a monthly job cost detail 
report outlining labor (hrs, rates), material, equipment, and other.

§ 3.1.9 Design-Builder’s Schedules
§ 3.1.9.1 The Design-Builder, promptly after execution of this Agreement, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s 
information a schedule for the Work. The schedule, including the time required for design and construction, shall not 
exceed time limits current under the Design-Build Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by 
the conditions of the Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Design-Build 
Documents, shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work, and shall include allowances for 
periods of time required for the Owner’s review and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction 
over the Project.  Project schedule will show critical path as well as relationships tying activities to one another.

§ 3.1.9.2 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted 
to the Owner. 

§ 3.1.10 Certifications. Upon the Owner’s written request, the Design-Builder shall obtain from the Architect, 
Consultants, and Contractors, and furnish to the Owner, certifications with respect to the documents and services 
provided by the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors (a) that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, 
the documents or services to which the certifications relate (i) are consistent with the Design-Build Documents, except 
to the extent specifically identified in the certificate, and (ii) comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities governing the design of the Project; and (b) that the Owner 
and its consultants shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy of the representations and statements contained in the 
certifications. The Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall not be required to execute 
certificates or consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of their services.

§ 3.1.11 Design-Builder’s Submittals
§ 3.1.11.1 Prior to submission of any Submittals, the Design-Builder shall prepare a Submittal schedule, and shall 
submit the schedule for the Owner’s approval. The Owner’s approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. 
The Submittal schedule shall (1) be coordinated with the Design-Builder’s schedule provided in Section 3.1.9.1, 
(2) allow the Owner reasonable time to review Submittals, and (3) be periodically updated to reflect the progress of 
the Work. If the Design-Builder fails to submit a Submittal schedule, the Design-Builder shall not be entitled to any 
increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of Submittals.

§ 3.1.11.2 By providing Submittals the Design-Builder represents to the Owner that it has (1) reviewed and approved 
them, (2) determined and verified materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will 
do so and (3) checked and coordinated the information contained within such Submittals with the requirements of the 
Work and of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 3.1.11.3 The Design-Builder shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Design-Build Documents require 
Submittals until the Owner has approved the respective Submittal.

§ 3.1.11.4 The Work shall be in accordance with approved Submittals except that the Design-Builder shall not be 
relieved of its responsibility to perform the Work consistent with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 
The Work may deviate from the Design-Build Documents only if the Design-Builder has notified the Owner in writing 
of a deviation from the Design-Build Documents at the time of the Submittal and a Modification is executed 
authorizing the identified deviation. The Design-Builder shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions 
in Submittals by the Owner’s approval of the Submittals.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

10

§ 3.1.11.5 All professional design services or certifications to be provided by the Design-Builder, including all 
drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, shop drawings and other Submittals, shall contain the signature 
and seal of the licensed design professional preparing them. Submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the 
licensed design professionals, if prepared by others, shall bear the licensed design professional’s written approval. The 
Owner and its consultants shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, 
certifications or approvals performed by such design professionals.

§ 3.1.12 Warranty. The Design-Builder warrants to the Owner that materials and equipment furnished under the 
Contract will be of good quality and new unless the Design-Build Documents require or permit otherwise. The 
Design-Builder further warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents and 
will be free from defects, except for those inherent in the quality of the Work or otherwise expressly permitted by the 
Design-Build Documents. Work, materials, or equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered 
defective. The Design-Builder’s warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the 
Work not executed by the Design-Builder, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear 
and tear and normal usage. If required by the Owner, the Design-Builder shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the 
kind and quality of materials and equipment.

§ 3.1.13 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights
§ 3.1.13.1 The Design-Builder shall pay all royalties and license fees. 

§ 3.1.13.2 The Design-Builder shall defend suits or claims for infringement of copyrights and patent rights and shall 
hold the Owner and its separate contractors and consultants harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall not be 
responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular manufacturer or 
manufacturers is required by the Owner, or where the copyright violations are required in the Owner’s Criteria. 
However, if the Design-Builder has reason to believe that the design, process or product required in the Owner’s 
Criteria is an infringement of a copyright or a patent, the Design-Builder shall be responsible for such loss unless such 
information is promptly furnished to the Owner. If the Owner receives notice from a patent or copyright owner of an 
alleged violation of a patent or copyright, attributable to the Design-Builder, the Owner shall give prompt written 
notice to the Design-Builder.

§ 3.1.14 Indemnification 
§ 3.1.14.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Design-Builder shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, 
including the Owner’s agents and employees, from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but 
not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, but only to the extent caused 
by the negligent acts or omissions of the Design-Builder, Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable. Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person 
described in this Section 3.1.14.

§ 3.1.14.2 The indemnification obligation under this Section 3.1.14 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or 
type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Design-Builder, Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other 
employee benefit acts.

§ 3.1.15 Contingent Assignment of Agreements
§ 3.1.15.1 Each agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Design-Builder to the Owner, provided that

.1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause, pursuant to 
Sections 13.1.4 or 13.2.2, and only for those agreements that the Owner accepts by written notification 
to the Design-Builder and the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors whose agreements are accepted 
for assignment; and

.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the 
Contract.

When the Owner accepts the assignment of an agreement, the Owner assumes the Design-Builder’s rights and 
obligations under the agreement. 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

11

§ 3.1.15.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the compensation under the 
assigned agreement shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.

§ 3.1.15.3 Upon such assignment to the Owner under this Section 3.1.15, the Owner may further assign the agreement 
to a successor design-builder or other entity. If the Owner assigns the agreement to a successor design-builder or other 
entity, the Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor design-builder’s or other 
entity’s obligations under the agreement.

§ 3.1.16 Design-Builder’s Insurance and Bonds. The Design-Builder shall purchase and maintain insurance and 
provide bonds as set forth in Exhibit B. 

ARTICLE 4   WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT
§ 4.1 General 
§ 4.1.1 Any information submitted by the Design-Builder, and any interim decisions made by the Owner, shall be for 
the purpose of facilitating the design process and shall not modify the Owner’s Criteria unless the Owner and 
Design-Builder execute a Modification.

§ 4.1.2 The Design-Builder shall advise the Owner on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, and 
building systems and equipment. The Design-Builder shall also provide the Owner with recommendations, consistent 
with the Owner’s Criteria, on constructability; availability of materials and labor; time requirements for procurement, 
installation and construction; and factors related to construction cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative 
designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible cost reductions. 

§ 4.2 Evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria
§ 4.2.1 The Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Owner and any other necessary individuals 
or entities to discuss and review the Owner’s Criteria as set forth in Section 1.1.The Design-Builder shall thereafter 
again meet with the Owner to discuss a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria. The preliminary evaluation 
shall address possible alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project and include the 
Design-Builder’s recommendations, if any, with regard to accelerated or fast-track scheduling, procurement, or 
phased construction. The preliminary evaluation shall consider cost information, constructability, and procurement 
and construction scheduling issues. 

§ 4.2.2 After the Design-Builder meets with the Owner and presents the preliminary evaluation, the Design-Builder 
shall provide a written report to the Owner, summarizing the Design-Builder’s evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria. The 
report shall also include 

.1 allocations of program functions, detailing each function and their square foot areas;

.2 a preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work, and, if necessary, recommendations to adjust the 
Owner’s Criteria to conform to the Owner’s budget;

.3 a preliminary schedule, which shall include proposed design milestones; dates for receiving additional 
information from, or for work to be completed by, the Owner; anticipated date for the Design-Builder’s 
Proposal; and dates of periodic design review sessions with the Owner; and

.4 the following:
(List additional information, if any, to be included in the Design-Builder’s written report.)

Guaranteed Maximum Contract Amendment in substantially the form of  Exhibit A attached hereto. 

§ 4.2.3 The Owner shall review the Design-Builder’s written report and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder 
with written consent to proceed to the development of the Preliminary Design as described in Section 4.3. The consent 
to proceed shall not be understood to modify the Owner’s Criteria unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a 
Modification.

§ 4.3 Preliminary Design
§ 4.3.1 Upon the Owner’s issuance of a written consent to proceed under Section 4.2.3, the Design-Builder shall 
prepare and submit a Preliminary Design to the Owner. The Preliminary Design shall include a report identifying any 
deviations from the Owner’s Criteria, and shall include the following:

.1 Confirmation of the allocations of program functions; 

.2 Site plan;



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

12

.3 Building plans, sections and elevations; 

.4 Structural system;

.5 Selections of major building systems, including but not limited to mechanical, electrical and plumbing 
systems; and

.6 Outline specifications or sufficient drawing notes describing construction materials.

The Preliminary Design may include some combination of physical study models, perspective sketches, or digital 
modeling.

§ 4.3.2 The Owner shall review the Preliminary Design and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder with written 
consent to proceed to development of the Design-Builder’s Proposal. The Preliminary Design shall not modify the 
Owner’s Criteria unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification.

§ 4.4 Design-Builder’s Proposal
§ 4.4.1 Upon the Owner’s issuance of a written consent to proceed under Section 4.3.2, the Design-Builder shall 
prepare and submit the Design-Builder’s Proposal to the Owner. The Design-Builder’s Proposal shall include the 
following:

.1 A list of the Preliminary Design documents and other information, including the Design-Builder’s 
clarifications, assumptions and deviations from the Owner’s Criteria, upon which the Design-Builder’s 
Proposal is based;

.2 The proposed Contract Sum, including the compensation method and, if based upon the Cost of the 
Work plus a fee, a written statement of estimated cost organized by trade categories, allowances, 
contingencies, Design-Builder’s Fee, and other items that comprise the Contract Sum; 

.3 The proposed date the Design-Builder shall achieve Substantial Completion;

.4 An enumeration of any qualifications and exclusions, if applicable;

.5 A list of the Design-Builder’s key personnel, Contractors and suppliers; and

.6 The date on which the Design-Builder’s Proposal expires. 

§ 4.4.2 Submission of the Design-Builder’s Proposal shall constitute a representation by the Design-Builder that it has 
visited the site and become familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be completed. 

§ 4.4.3 If the Owner and Design-Builder agree on a proposal, the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute the 
Design-Build Amendment setting forth the terms of their agreement. 

ARTICLE 5   WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT
§ 5.1 Construction Documents
§ 5.1.1 Upon the execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder shall prepare Construction 
Documents. The Construction Documents shall establish the quality levels of materials and systems required. The 
Construction Documents shall be consistent with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 5.1.2 The Design-Builder shall provide the Construction Documents to the Owner for the Owner’s information. If 
the Owner discovers any deviations between the Construction Documents and the Design-Build Documents, the 
Owner shall promptly notify the Design-Builder of such deviations in writing. The Construction Documents shall not 
modify the Design-Build Documents unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification. The failure of the 
Owner to discover any such deviations shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligation to perform the Work in 
accordance with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 5.2 Construction 
§ 5.2.1 Commencement. Except as permitted in Section 5.2.2, construction shall not commence prior to execution of 
the Design-Build Amendment.

§ 5.2.2 If the Owner and Design-Builder agree in writing, construction may proceed prior to the execution of the 
Design-Build Amendment. However, such authorization shall not waive the Owner’s right to reject the 
Design-Builder’s Proposal. 

§ 5.2.3 The Design-Builder shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Design-Builder’s best skill and attention. 
The Design-Builder shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

13

sequences and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Design-Build 
Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters.

§ 5.2.4 The Design-Builder shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine 
that such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§ 5.3 Labor and Materials
§ 5.3.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other 
facilities and services, necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent, 
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

§ 5.3.2 When a material or system is specified in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder may make 
substitutions only in accordance with Article 6.

§ 5.3.3 The Design-Builder shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Design-Builder’s employees and 
other persons carrying out the Work. The Design-Builder shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not 
properly skilled in tasks assigned to them.

§ 5.4 Taxes
The Design-Builder shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes, if any, for the Work provided by the 
Design-Builder, that are legally enacted when the Design-Build Amendment is executed, whether or not yet effective 
or merely scheduled to go into effect.

§ 5.5 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws
§ 5.5.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall secure and pay for the 
building permit as well as any other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies, necessary for 
proper execution of the Work and Substantial Completion of the Project. 

§ 5.5.2 The Design-Builder shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, applicable to performance of the Work.

§ 5.5.3 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Design-Builder encounters conditions at the site that are 
(1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the 
Design-Build Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those 
ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in 
the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall promptly provide notice to the Owner before conditions are 
disturbed and in no event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Owner shall promptly 
investigate such conditions and, if the Owner determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease 
in the Design-Builder’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, shall recommend an 
equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Owner determines that the conditions at the 
site are not materially different from those indicated in the Design-Build Documents and that no change in the terms of 
the Contract is justified, the Owner shall promptly notify the Design-Builder in writing, stating the reasons. If the 
Design-Builder disputes the Owner’s determination or recommendation, the Design-Builder may proceed as provided 
in Article 14.  Design builder is to include contingencies and or allowances in their budget to account for unknown 
conditions.

§ 5.5.4 If, in the course of the Work, the Design-Builder encounters human remains, or recognizes the existence of 
burial markers, archaeological sites, or wetlands, not indicated in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder 
shall immediately suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner. Upon receipt of such 
notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume 
the operations. The Design-Builder shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner 
but shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. An equitable adjustment to the 
Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be made to accommodate any increased costs and/or time arising from the 
existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 14.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

14

§ 5.6 Allowances
§ 5.6.1 The Design-Builder shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Design-Build Documents. 
Items covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts, and by such persons or entities as the Owner may 
direct, but the Design-Builder shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Design-Builder has 
reasonable objection.

§ 5.6.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents,
.1 allowances shall cover the cost to the Design-Builder of materials and equipment delivered at the site 

and all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;
.2 the Design-Builder’s complete costs of Work, including but not limited to, costs for unloading and 

handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for 
stated allowance amounts; and

.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly 
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs 
and the allowances under Section 5.6.2.1 and (2) changes in Design-Builder’s costs under 
Section 5.6.2.2.  Detailed backup must be provided for all costs incurred against each allowance.

§ 5.6.3 The Owner shall make selections of materials and equipment with reasonable promptness for allowances 
requiring Owner selection.

§ 5.6.4 The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall include a designated contingency amount (the "Construction 
Contingency Allowance") for the Design-Builder’s exclusive use to cover those costs otherwise unaccounted for but 
constituting a Cost of the Work and not included in a Change Order, with such reimbursables charged against the 
Construction Contingency Allowance to include all costs constituting Cost of Work, such as costs for materials, labor, 
general requirements, fee, etc. The Construction Contingency Allowance shall not be utilized for costs that should be 
reflected within an allowance or by Change Order, for example but not limited to, Owner-directed changes of scope or 
upgrades, severe weather conditions, and the like. The Design-Builder shall keep a record of all costs charged against 
the Construction Contingency Allowance and reflect usage on each monthly pay application.

§ 5.7 Key Personnel, Contractors and Suppliers
§ 5.7.1 The Design-Builder shall not employ personnel, or contract with Contractors or suppliers to whom the Owner 
has made reasonable and timely objection. The Design-Builder shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom 
the Design-Builder has made reasonable and timely objection.

§ 5.7.2 If the Design-Builder changes any of the personnel, Contractors or suppliers identified in the Design-Build 
Amendment, the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner and provide the name and qualifications of the new personnel, 
Contractor or supplier. The Owner may reply within 14 days to the Design-Builder in writing, stating (1) whether the 
Owner has reasonable objection to the proposed personnel, Contractor or supplier or (2) that the Owner requires 
additional time to review. Failure of the Owner to reply within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no 
reasonable objection. 

§ 5.7.3 Except for those persons or entities already identified or required in the Design-Build Amendment, the 
Design-Builder, as soon as practicable after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, shall furnish in writing to the 
Owner the names of persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a 
special design) proposed for each principal portion of the Work. The Owner may reply within 14 days to the 
Design-Builder in writing stating (1) whether the Owner has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or 
entity or (2) that the Owner requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner to reply within the 14-day period 
shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 5.7.3.1 If the Owner has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Design-Builder, the 
Design-Builder shall propose another to whom the Owner has no reasonable objection. If the rejected person or entity 
was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be increased or decreased 
by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued before 
commencement of the substitute person or entity’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time 
shall be allowed for such change unless the Design-Builder has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names 
as required.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

15

§ 5.8 Documents and Submittals at the Site
The Design-Builder shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Design-Build Documents and a current set 
of the Construction Documents, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made 
during construction, and one copy of approved Submittals. The Design-Builder shall deliver these items to the Owner 
in accordance with Section 9.10.2 as a record of the Work as constructed.

§ 5.9 Use of Site
The Design-Builder shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Design-Build Documents, and shall not 
unreasonably encumber the site with materials or equipment.

§ 5.10 Cutting and Patching
The Design-Builder shall not cut, patch or otherwise alter fully or partially completed construction by the Owner or a 
separate contractor except with written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. The Design-Builder shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate contractor 
the Design-Builder’s consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work.

§ 5.11 Cleaning Up
§ 5.11.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials 
or rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Design-Builder shall remove 
waste materials, rubbish, the Design-Builder’s tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials from 
and about the Project.

§ 5.11.2 If the Design-Builder fails to clean up as provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Owner may do so and 
Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Design-Builder.

§ 5.12 Access to Work
The Design-Builder shall provide the Owner and its separate contractors and consultants access to the Work in 
preparation and progress wherever located. The Design-Builder shall notify the Owner regarding Project safety 
criteria and programs, which the Owner, and its contractors and consultants, shall comply with while at the site.

§ 5.13 Construction by Owner or by Separate Contractors
§ 5.13.1 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts
§ 5.13.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s 
own forces; and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project, or other construction or 
operations on the site, under terms and conditions identical or substantially similar to this Contract, including those 
terms and conditions related to insurance and waiver of subrogation. The Owner shall notify the Design-Builder 
promptly after execution of any separate contract. If the Design-Builder claims that delay or additional cost is involved 
because of such action by the Owner, the Design-Builder shall make a Claim as provided in Article 14.

§ 5.13.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations 
on the site, the term "Design-Builder" in the Design-Build Documents in each case shall mean the individual or entity 
that executes each separate agreement with the Owner.

§ 5.13.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces, and of each separate 
contractor, with the Work of the Design-Builder, who shall cooperate with them. The Design-Builder shall participate 
with other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Design-Builder shall 
make any revisions to the construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The 
construction schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Design-Builder, separate contractors and 
the Owner until subsequently revised.

§ 5.13.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, when the Owner performs construction or 
operations related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces or separate contractors, the Owner shall be deemed to be 
subject to the same obligations, and to have the same rights, that apply to the Design-Builder under the Contract.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

16

§ 5.14 Mutual Responsibility
§ 5.14.1 The Design-Builder shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction 
and storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the 
Design-Builder’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Design-Build Documents.

§ 5.14.2 If part of the Design-Builder’s Work depends upon construction or operations by the Owner or a separate 
contractor, the Design-Builder shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, prepare a written report to the 
Owner, identifying apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or separate 
contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Design-Builder’s Work. Failure of the 
Design-Builder to report shall constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or separate contractor’s completed or 
partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the Design-Builder’s Work, except as to defects not then 
reasonably discoverable.

§ 5.14.3 The Design-Builder shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate 
contractor because of the Design-Builder’s delays or defective construction. The Owner shall be responsible to the 
Design-Builder for costs the Design-Builder incurs because of a separate contractor’s delays, improperly timed 
activities, damage to the Work or defective construction.

§ 5.14.4 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage the Design-Builder wrongfully causes to completed or 
partially completed construction or to property of the Owner or separate contractors as provided in Section 10.2.5.

§ 5.14.5 The Owner and each separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching the 
Work as the Design-Builder has with respect to the construction of the Owner or separate contractors in Section 5.10.

§ 5.15 Owner’s Right to Clean Up
If a dispute arises among the Design-Builder, separate contractors and the Owner as to the responsibility under their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the 
Owner may clean up and will allocate the cost among those responsible.

ARTICLE 6   CHANGES IN THE WORK
§ 6.1 General
§ 6.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the 
Contract, by Change Order or Change Directive, subject to the limitations stated in this Article 6 and elsewhere in the 
Design-Build Documents.

§ 6.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder. The Owner may issue 
a Change Directive without agreement by the Design-Builder.

§ 6.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Design-Build Documents, and the 
Design-Builder shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order or Change Directive.

§ 6.2 Change Orders
A Change Order is a written instrument signed by the Owner and Design-Builder stating their agreement upon all of 
the following:

.1 The change in the Work;

.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation; and

.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

§ 6.3 Change Directives
§ 6.3.1 A Change Directive is a written order signed by the Owner directing a change in the Work prior to agreement 
on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in 
the Design-Builder’s compensation, or Contract Time. The Owner may by Change Directive, without invalidating the 
Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other 
revisions, the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the 
Design-Builder’s compensation, and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

17

§ 6.3.2 A Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change Order.

§ 6.3.3 If the Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the 
Design-Build Amendment, an adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation, the adjustment shall be based on one 
of the following methods:

.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation;

.2 Unit prices stated in the Design-Build Documents or subsequently agreed upon;

.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or 
percentage fee; or

.4 As provided in Section 6.3.7.

§ 6.3.4 If unit prices are stated in the Design-Build Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities 
originally contemplated are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Change Directive so that application of 
such unit prices to quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Design-Builder, the 
applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 6.3.5 Upon receipt of a Change Directive, the Design-Builder shall promptly proceed with the change in the Work 
involved and advise the Owner of the Design-Builder’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, provided 
in the Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the 
Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation, or Contract Time.

§ 6.3.6 A Change Directive signed by the Design-Builder indicates the Design-Builder’s agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the 
Design-Builder’s compensation, and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall be 
effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.

§ 6.3.7 If the Design-Builder does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract 
Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the method for adjustment in the Design-Builder’s 
compensation, the Owner shall determine the method and the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and 
savings of those performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase, an amount for 
overhead and profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable 
amount. In such case, and also under Section 6.3.3.3, the Design-Builder shall keep and present, in such form as the 
Owner may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in 
the Design-Build Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 6.3.7 shall be limited to the following:

.1 Additional costs of professional services;

.2 Costs of labor, including social security, unemployment insurance, fringe benefits required by 
agreement or custom, and workers’ compensation insurance;

.3 Costs of materials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or 
consumed;

.4 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the 
Design-Builder or others;

.5 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes related to the 
Work; and

.6 Additional costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.

§ 6.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Design-Builder to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in 
a net decrease in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, in the Design-Builder’s 
compensation, shall be actual net cost. When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are 
involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with 
respect to that change.

§ 6.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Change Directive to the Owner, the Design-Builder may 
request payment for Work completed under the Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The Owner will make 
an interim determination for purposes of certification for payment for those costs deemed to be reasonably justified. 
The Owner’s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

18

Amendment, the Design-Builder’s compensation, on the same basis as a Change Order, subject to the right of 
Design-Builder to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 14. 

§ 6.3.10 When the Owner and Design-Builder agree with a determination concerning the adjustments in the Contract 
Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation 
and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such agreement shall be effective 
immediately and the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute a Change Order. Change Orders may be issued for all or 
any part of a Change Directive.

ARTICLE 7   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 7.1 General
§ 7.1.1 The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Owner with 
respect to all Project matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization. 

§ 7.1.2 The Owner shall render decisions in a timely manner and in accordance with the Design-Builder’s schedule 
agreed to by the Owner. The Owner shall furnish to the Design-Builder, within 15 days after receipt of a written 
request, information necessary and relevant for the Design-Builder to evaluate, give notice of or enforce mechanic’s 
lien rights. Such information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the 
Project is located, usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

§ 7.2 Information and Services Required of the Owner
§ 7.2.1 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Design-Build Documents with 
reasonable promptness. 

§ 7.2.2 The Owner shall provide, to the extent under the Owner’s control and if not required by the Design-Build 
Documents to be provided by the Design-Builder, the results and reports of prior tests, inspections or investigations 
conducted for the Project involving structural or mechanical systems; chemical, air and water pollution; hazardous 
materials; or environmental and subsurface conditions and information regarding the presence of pollutants at the 
Project site. Upon receipt of a written request from the Design-Builder, the Owner shall also provide surveys 
describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project, and a legal 
description of the site under the Owner’s control. 

§ 7.2.3 The Owner shall promptly obtain easements, zoning variances, and legal authorizations or entitlements 
regarding site utilization where essential to the execution of the Project.

§ 7.2.4 The Owner shall cooperate with the Design-Builder in securing building and other permits, licenses and 
inspections. 

§ 7.2.5 The services, information, surveys and reports required to be provided by the Owner under this Agreement, 
shall be furnished at the Owner’s expense, and except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement or 
elsewhere in the Design-Build Documents or to the extent the Owner advises the Design-Builder to the contrary in 
writing, the Design-Builder shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof. In no event shall the 
Design-Builder be relieved of its responsibility to exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the 
Work.

§ 7.2.6 If the Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of a fault or defect in the Work or non-conformity with the 
Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall give prompt written notice thereof to the Design-Builder.

§ 7.2.7 Prior to the execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder may request in writing that the 
Owner provide reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations 
under the Design-Build Documents and the Design-Builder’s Proposal. Thereafter, the Design-Builder may only 
request such evidence if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Design-Builder as the Design-Build Documents 
require; (2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum; or (3) the Design-Builder identifies in writing 
a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due. The Owner shall furnish such 
evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or the portion of the Work affected 
by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not materially vary such financial 
arrangements without prior notice to the Design-Builder.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

19

§ 7.2.8 Except as otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents or when direct communications have been 
specially authorized, the Owner shall communicate through the Design-Builder with persons or entities employed or 
retained by the Design-Builder.

§ 7.2.9 Unless required by the Design-Build Documents to be provided by the Design-Builder, the Owner shall, upon 
request from the Design-Builder, furnish the services of geotechnical engineers or other consultants for investigation 
of subsurface, air and water conditions when such services are reasonably necessary to properly carry out the design 
services furnished by the Design-Builder. In such event, the Design-Builder shall specify the services required. Such 
services may include, but are not limited to, test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation 
tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, ground corrosion and resistivity tests, and necessary operations for 
anticipating subsoil conditions. The services of geotechnical engineer(s) or other consultants shall include preparation 
and submission of all appropriate reports and professional recommendations.

§ 7.2.10 The Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit B.

§ 7.3 Submittals
§ 7.3.1 The Owner shall review and approve or take other appropriate action on Submittals. Review of Submittals is 
not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other details, such as dimensions and 
quantities; or for substantiating instructions for installation or performance of equipment or systems; or for 
determining that the Submittals are in conformance with the Design-Build Documents, all of which remain the 
responsibility of the Design-Builder as required by the Design-Build Documents. The Owner’s action will be taken in 
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Owner or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, 
with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Owner’s judgment to permit adequate review. The 
Owner’s review of Submittals shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligations under Sections 3.1.11, 3.1.12, 
and 5.2.3. The Owner’s review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically 
stated by the Owner, of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. The Owner’s approval 
of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 7.3.2 Upon review of the Submittals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall notify the 
Design-Builder of any non-conformance with the Design-Build Documents the Owner discovers.

§ 7.4 Visits to the site by the Owner shall not be construed to create an obligation on the part of the Owner to make 
on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Owner shall neither have control over or charge 
of, nor be responsible for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for the safety 
precautions and programs in connection with the Work, because these are solely the Design-Builder’s rights and 
responsibilities under the Design-Build Documents.

§ 7.5 The Owner shall not be responsible for the Design-Builder’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the 
requirements of the Design-Build Documents. The Owner shall not have control over or charge of, and will not be 
responsible for acts or omissions of the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, or their agents or 
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.6 The Owner has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Design-Build Documents. The Owner 
shall have authority to require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Section 15.5.2, whether or not such 
Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Owner nor a decision made in good 
faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Owner to the 
Design-Builder, the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, 
or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 7.7 The Owner shall determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion in accordance with Section 9.8 and the 
date of final completion in accordance with Section 9.10.

§ 7.8 Owner’s Right to Stop Work
If the Design-Builder fails to correct Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build 
Documents as required by Section 11.2 or persistently fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents, the Owner may issue a written order to the Design-Builder to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

20

the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a 
duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Design-Builder or any other person or entity, 
except to the extent required by Section 5.13.1.3.

§ 7.9 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work
If the Design-Builder defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents and 
fails within a ten-day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of 
such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner 
may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from 
payments then or thereafter due the Design-Builder the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies. If payments 
then or thereafter due the Design-Builder are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Design-Builder shall pay the 
difference to the Owner.

ARTICLE 8   TIME
§ 8.1 Progress and Completion
§ 8.1.1 Time limits stated in the Design-Build Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the 
Design-Build Amendment the Design-Builder confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing 
the Work.

§ 8.1.2 The Design-Builder shall not, except by agreement of the Owner in writing, commence the Work prior to the 
effective date of insurance, other than property insurance, required by this Contract. The Contract Time shall not be 
adjusted as a result of the Design-Builder’s failure to obtain insurance required under this Contract.

§ 8.1.3 The Design-Builder shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial 
Completion within the Contract Time.

§ 8.2 Delays and Extensions of Time
§ 8.2.1 If the Design-Builder is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by an act or neglect 
of the Owner or of a consultant or separate contractor employed by the Owner; or by changes ordered in the Work by 
the Owner; or by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or other causes beyond the 
Design-Builder’s control; or by delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution or 
by other causes that the Owner determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change 
Order for such reasonable time as the Owner may determine. 

§ 8.2.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 14. 

§ 8.2.3 This Section 8.2 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the 
Design-Build Documents.

ARTICLE 9   PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION
§ 9.1 Contract Sum
The Contract Sum is stated in the Design-Build Amendment.

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values
Where the Contract Sum is based on a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder, prior to the first Application 
for Payment after execution of the Design-Build Amendment shall submit to the Owner a schedule of values for 
review and approval by the Owner, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the various portions of the Work and 
prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Owner may require; provided, 
however, Design-Builder shall have the right to make changes to individual line items within the schedule of values so 
long as the Guarantee Maximum Prices is not exceeded. This schedule, unless objected to by the Owner, shall be used 
as a basis for reviewing the Design-Builder’s Applications for Payment.

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment
§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Design-Builder shall submit to the 
Owner an itemized Application for Payment for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if 
required, and supported by data substantiating the Design-Builder’s right to payment as the Owner may require, such 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

21

as copies of requisitions from the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and material suppliers, and shall reflect 
retainage if provided for in the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 6.3.9, Applications for Payment may include requests for payment on account of 
changes in the Work that have been properly authorized by Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Owner, but not yet included in Change Orders.

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the 
Design-Builder does not intend to pay the Architect, Consultant, Contractor, material supplier, or other persons or 
entities providing services or work for the Design-Builder, unless such Work has been performed by others whom the 
Design-Builder intends to pay. 

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, payments shall be made for services provided as 
well as materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If 
approved in advance by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off 
the site at a location agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be 
conditioned upon compliance by the Design-Builder with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the 
Owner’s title to such materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of 
applicable insurance, storage and transportation to the site for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§ 9.3.3 The Design-Builder warrants that title to all Work, other than Instruments of Service, covered by an 
Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment. The Design-Builder further 
warrants that, upon submittal of an Application for Payment, all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been 
previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to the best of the Design-Builder’s knowledge, 
information and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances in favor of the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, material suppliers, or other persons or entities entitled to make a 
claim by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work.

§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment
The Owner shall, within seven days after receipt of the Design-Builder’s Application for Payment, issue to the 
Design-Builder a Certificate for Payment indicating the amount the Owner determines is properly due, and notify the 
Design-Builder in writing of the Owner’s reasons for withholding certification in whole or in part as provided in 
Section 9.5.1.

§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification
§ 9.5.1 The Owner may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part to the extent reasonably necessary to 
protect the Owner due to the Owner’s determination that the Work has not progressed to the point indicated in the 
Design-Builder’s Application for Payment, or the quality of the Work is not in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents. If the Owner is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Owner will notify the 
Design-Builder as provided in Section 9.4. If the Design-Builder and Owner cannot agree on a revised amount, the 
Owner will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount that the Owner deems to be due and owing. The 
Owner may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence, may nullify the 
whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued to such extent as may be necessary to protect the Owner 
from loss for which the Design-Builder is responsible because of

.1 defective Work, including design and construction, not remedied;

.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless security 
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Design-Builder;

.3 failure of the Design-Builder to make payments properly to the Architect, Consultants, Contractors or 
others, for services, labor, materials or equipment;

.4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;

.5 damage to the Owner or a separate contractor;

.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid 
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or

.7 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents.

.8 Failure to provide the appropriate job cost backup, including but not limited to:  detailed job cost 
reports, sub pay applications, receipts, etc.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

22

§ 9.5.2 When the above reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts 
previously withheld.

§ 9.5.3 If the Owner withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, issue 
joint checks to the Design-Builder and to the Architect or any Consultants, Contractor, material or equipment 
suppliers, or other persons or entities providing services or work for the Design-Builder to whom the Design-Builder 
failed to make payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. 

§ 9.6 Progress Payments
§ 9.6.1 After the Owner has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and within 
the time provided in the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.6.2 The Design-Builder shall pay each Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing 
services or work for the Design-Builder no later than the time period required by applicable law, but in no event more 
than seven days after receipt of payment from the Owner the amount to which the Architect, Consultant, Contractor, 
and other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder is entitled, reflecting percentages actually 
retained from payments to the Design-Builder on account of the portion of the Work performed by the Architect, 
Consultant, Contractor, or other person or entity. The Design-Builder shall, by appropriate agreement with each 
Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, 
require each Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder to make payments to subconsultants and subcontractors in a similar manner. 

§ 9.6.3 The Owner will, on request and if practicable, furnish to the Architect, a Consultant, Contractor, or other 
person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, information regarding percentages of completion 
or amounts applied for by the Design-Builder and action taken thereon by the Owner on account of portions of the 
Work done by such Architect, Consultant, Contractor or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder.

§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Design-Builder that the Design-Builder has 
properly paid the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder, amounts paid by the Owner to the Design-Builder for the Work. If the Design-Builder fails to furnish 
such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors 
to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. The Owner shall have no obligation to pay or to see to the payment 
of money to a Consultant or Contractor, except as may otherwise be required by law.

§ 9.6.5 Design-Builder payments to material and equipment suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that 
provided in Sections 9.6.2, 9.6.3 and 9.6.4.

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the 
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.6.7 Unless the Design-Builder provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum, 
payments received by the Design-Builder for Work properly performed by the Architect, Consultants, Contractors and 
other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, shall be held by the Design-Builder for the 
Architect and those Consultants, Contractors, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder, for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require money to be 
placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Design-Builder, shall create any fiduciary liability 
or tort liability on the part of the Design-Builder for breach of trust or shall entitle any person or entity to an award of 
punitive damages against the Design-Builder for breach of the requirements of this provision. 

§ 9.7 Failure of Payment
If the Owner does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Design-Builder, within the time required 
by the Design-Build Documents, then the Design-Builder may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to the 
Owner, stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended 
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Design-Builder’s reasonable costs of 
shut-down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Design-Build Documents.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

23

§ 9.8 Substantial Completion
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof is 
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-Build Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the 
Work for its intended use. The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Owner in accordance with 
this Section 9.8.

§ 9.8.2 When the Design-Builder considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept 
separately, is substantially complete, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit to the Owner a comprehensive list 
of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the 
responsibility of the Design-Builder to complete all Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s list, the Owner shall make an inspection to determine whether the Work 
or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Owner’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not 
included on the Design-Builder’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the 
Design-Builder shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon 
notification by the Owner. In such case, the Design-Builder shall then submit a request for another inspection by the 
Owner to determine Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.4 Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion under Section 9.8.5, the Owner and 
Design-Builder shall discuss and then determine the parties’ obligations to obtain and maintain property insurance 
following issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.5 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Design-Builder will prepare for the 
Owner’s signature a Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall, upon the Owner’s signature, establish the date of 
Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the Owner and Design-Builder for security, maintenance, heat, 
utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; and fix the time within which the Design-Builder shall finish all items on 
the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Design-Build Documents shall commence on the 
date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate 
of Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.6 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted by the Design-Builder to the Owner for written 
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to it in the Certificate. Upon the Owner’s acceptance, and consent of surety, if 
any, the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Payment shall be 
adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use
§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when 
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Design-Builder, provided such occupancy or use is 
consented to, by endorsement or otherwise, by the insurer providing property insurance and authorized by public 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the 
portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Design-Builder have accepted in writing the responsibilities 
assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and 
insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of the Work and commencement of 
warranties required by the Design-Build Documents. When the Design-Builder considers a portion substantially 
complete, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit a list to the Owner as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of 
the Design-Builder to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of the 
Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder.

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner and Design-Builder shall jointly inspect the area 
to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work.

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute 
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

24

§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance 
and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Owner will promptly make such inspection. When the Owner 
finds the Work acceptable under the Design-Build Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Owner will, 
subject to Section 9.10.2, promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment. 

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Design-Builder 
submits to the Owner (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness 
connected with the Work, for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered, (less 
amounts withheld by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required 
by the Design-Build Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement 
that the Design-Builder knows of no substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period 
required by the Design-Build Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) as-constructed record 
copy of the Construction Documents marked to indicate field changes and selections made during construction, (6) 
manufacturer’s warranties, product data, and maintenance and operations manuals, and (7) if required by the Owner, 
other data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, or releases and waivers of liens, claims, 
security interests, or encumbrances, arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by 
the Owner. If an Architect, a Consultant, or a Contractor, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder, refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Design-Builder may furnish a bond 
satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances. If 
such liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the 
Design-Builder shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging such 
liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault 
of the Design-Builder or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, the Owner shall, upon application 
by the Design-Builder, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the 
Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than 
retainage stipulated in the Design-Build Documents, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to 
payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the 
Design-Builder to the Owner prior to issuance of payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions 
governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from
.1 liens, Claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents; or
.3 terms of special warranties required by the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver of claims by the Design-Builder 
except those previously made in writing and identified by the Design-Builder as unsettled at the time of final 
Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 10   PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs
The Design-Builder shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the performance of the Contract. 

§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property
§ 10.2.1 The Design-Builder shall be responsible for precautions for the safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent 
damage, injury or loss to

.1 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;

.2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, 
under care, custody or control of the Design-Builder or the Architect, Consultants, or Contractors, or 
other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder; and

.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
or structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of 
construction.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

25

§ 10.2.2 The Design-Builder shall comply with, and give notices required by, applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property, or their 
protection from damage, injury or loss.

§ 10.2.3 The Design-Builder shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance 
of the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings 
against hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notify owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of the 
safeguards and protections.

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods, are 
necessary for execution of the Work, the Design-Builder shall exercise utmost care, and carry on such activities under 
supervision of properly qualified personnel.

§ 10.2.5 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under 
property insurance required by the Design-Build Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, 
caused in whole or in part by the Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Design-Builder 
is responsible under Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3; except damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the 
Owner, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Owner, or by anyone for whose acts the Owner may be liable, 
and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Design-Builder. The foregoing obligations of the Design-Builder 
are in addition to the Design-Builder’s obligations under Section 3.1.14.

§ 10.2.6 The Design-Builder shall designate a responsible member of the Design-Builder’s organization, at the site, 
whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Design-Builder’s superintendent unless 
otherwise designated by the Design-Builder in writing to the Owner.

§ 10.2.7 The Design-Builder shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or 
create an unsafe condition.

§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property. If the Owner or Design-Builder suffers injury or damage to person or 
property because of an act or omission of the other, or of others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, 
written notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable 
time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to 
investigate the matter. 

§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials
§ 10.3.1 The Design-Builder is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Design-Build 
Documents regarding hazardous materials. If the Design-Builder encounters a hazardous material or substance not 
addressed in the Design-Build Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable 
bodily injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or 
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall, upon 
recognizing the condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and report the condition to the Owner in 
writing.

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s written notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed 
laboratory to verify the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Design-Builder and, in the 
event such material or substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required 
by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Design-Builder the names and qualifications 
of persons or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of such material or substance or who 
are to perform the task of removal or safe containment of such material or substance. The Design-Builder will 
promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not the Design-Builder has reasonable objection to the 
persons or entities proposed by the Owner. If the Design-Builder has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the 
Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Design-Builder has no reasonable objection. When the material 
or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement of the Owner 
and Design-Builder. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall 
be increased in the amount of the Design-Builder’s reasonable additional costs of shut-down, delay and start-up.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

26

§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Design-Builder, the 
Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, and employees of any of them, from and against claims, damages, losses and 
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work in the 
affected area, if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or death as described in 
Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to 
bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to, or destruction of, tangible property (other than the Work 
itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss or expense is due to the fault or negligence of the party seeking 
indemnity.

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for materials or substances the Design-Builder 
brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Owner’s Criteria. The Owner shall be 
responsible for materials or substances required by the Owner’s Criteria, except to the extent of the Design-Builder’s 
fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances.

§ 10.3.5 The Design-Builder shall indemnify the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation 
of a material or substance the Design-Builder brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the 
Design-Builder fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are 
due to the Owner’s fault or negligence.

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder is held liable by a government 
agency for the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as 
required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall indemnify the Design-Builder for all cost and expense 
thereby incurred.

§ 10.4 Emergencies
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Design-Builder shall act, at the Design-Builder’s 
discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. 

ARTICLE 11   UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
§ 11.1 Uncovering of Work
The Owner may request to examine a portion of the Work that the Design-Builder has covered to determine if the 
Work has been performed in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. If such Work is in accordance with the 
Design-Build Documents, the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute a Change Order to adjust the Contract Time 
and Contract Sum, as appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents, the costs of 
uncovering and correcting the Work shall be at the Design-Builder’s expense and the Design-Builder shall not be 
entitled to a change in the Contract Time unless the condition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor in 
which event the Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costs and the Contract Time will be adjusted as 
appropriate.

§ 11.2 Correction of Work
§ 11.2.1 Before or After Substantial Completion. The Design-Builder shall promptly correct Work rejected by the 
Owner or failing to conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, whether discovered before or after 
Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, 
including additional testing and inspections, the cost of uncovering and replacement, and compensation for any design 
consultant employed by the Owner whose expenses and compensation were made necessary thereby, shall be at the 
Design-Builder’s expense.

§ 11.2.2 After Substantial Completion
§ 11.2.2.1 In addition to the Design-Builder’s obligations under Section 3.1.12, if, within one year after the date of 
Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties 
established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Design-Build 
Documents, any of the Work is found not to be in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, 
the Design-Builder shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner 
has previously given the Design-Builder a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice 
promptly after discovery of the condition. During the one-year period for correction of the Work, if the Owner fails to 
notify the Design-Builder and give the Design-Builder an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

27

rights to require correction by the Design-Builder and to make a claim for breach of warranty. If the Design-Builder 
fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during that period after receipt of notice from the 
Owner, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 7.9.

§ 11.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first 
performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual 
completion of that portion of the Work.

§ 11.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the 
Design-Builder pursuant to this Section 11.2.

§ 11.2.3 The Design-Builder shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the 
requirements of the Design-Build Documents and are neither corrected by the Design-Builder nor accepted by the 
Owner.

§ 11.2.4 The Design-Builder shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or 
separate contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Design-Builder’s correction or removal 
of Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 11.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 11.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to 
other obligations the Design-Builder has under the Design-Build Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for 
correction of Work as described in Section 11.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Design-Builder to 
correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Design-Build 
Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish 
the Design-Builder’s liability with respect to the Design-Builder’s obligations other than specifically to correct the 
Work.

§ 11.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, 
the Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced 
as appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made.

ARTICLE 12   COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES
§ 12.1 Drawings, specifications, and other documents furnished by the Design-Builder, including those in electronic 
form, are Instruments of Service. The Design-Builder, and the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and any other 
person or entity providing services or work for any of them, shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official 
regulatory requirements, or for similar purposes in connection with the Project, is not to be construed as publication in 
derogation of the reserved rights of the Design-Builder and the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, and any other 
person or entity providing services or work for any of them. 

§ 12.2 The Design-Builder and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other 
information, the transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright 
owner to transmit such information for its use on the Project.

§ 12.3 Upon execution of the Agreement, the Design-Builder grants to the Owner a limited, irrevocable and 
non-exclusive license to use the Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, 
maintaining, altering and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, 
including prompt payment of all sums when due, under the Design-Build Documents. The license granted under this 
section permits the Owner to authorize its consultants and separate contractors to reproduce applicable portions of the 
Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the 
Design-Builder rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 13.1.4 or 13.2.1 the license 
granted in this Section 12.3 shall terminate. 

§ 12.3.1 The Design-Builder shall obtain non-exclusive licenses from the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, that 
will allow the Design-Builder to satisfy its obligations to the Owner under this Article 12. The Design-Builder’s 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

28

licenses from the Architect and its Consultants and Contractors shall also allow the Owner, in the event this 
Agreement is terminated for any reason other than the default of the Owner or in the event the Design-Builder’s 
Architect, Consultants, or Contractors terminate their agreements with the Design-Builder for cause, to obtain a 
limited, irrevocable and non-exclusive license solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, 
altering and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner (1) agrees to pay to the Architect, Consultant or Contractor 
all amounts due, and (2) provide the Architect, Consultant or Contractor with the Owner’s written agreement to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Architect, Consultant or Contractor from all costs and expenses, including the cost of 
defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and 
expenses arise from the Owner’s alteration or use of the Instruments of Service.

§ 12.3.2 In the event the Owner alters the Instruments of Service without the author’s written authorization or uses the 
Instruments of Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of Service, the Owner releases the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors and any other person or entity providing services or work for any 
of them, from all claims and causes of action arising from or related to such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted 
by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors and any 
other person or entity providing services or work for any of them, from all costs and expenses, including the cost of 
defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and 
expenses arise from the Owner’s alteration or use of the Instruments of Service under this Section 12.3.2. The terms of 
this Section 12.3.2 shall not apply if the Owner rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Sections 13.1.4 or 
13.2.2.

ARTICLE 13   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 13.1 Termination or Suspension Prior to Execution of the Design-Build Amendment
§ 13.1.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Design-Builder for Work prior to execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be considered substantial nonperformance and 
cause for termination or, at the Design-Builder’s option, cause for suspension of performance of services under this 
Agreement. If the Design-Builder elects to suspend the Work, the Design-Builder shall give seven days’ written notice 
to the Owner before suspending the Work. In the event of a suspension of the Work, the Design-Builder shall have no 
liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused by the suspension of the Work. Before resuming the Work, the 
Design-Builder shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses incurred in the interruption and 
resumption of the Design-Builder’s Work. The Design-Builder’s compensation for, and time to complete, the 
remaining Work shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 13.1.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for the Work performed prior to 
notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for expenses 
incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Design-Builder’s Work. The Design-Builder’s compensation for, 
and time to complete, the remaining Work shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 13.1.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the 
Design-Builder, the Design-Builder may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ written notice. 

§ 13.1.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination.

§ 13.1.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Design-Builder 
for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 13.1.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for 
Work performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and any other expenses directly 
attributable to termination for which the Design-Builder is not otherwise compensated. In no event shall the 
Design-Builder’s compensation under this Section 13.1.6 be greater than the compensation set forth in Section 2.1.

§ 13.2 Termination or Suspension Following Execution of the Design-Build Amendment
§ 13.2.1 Termination by the Design-Builder
§ 13.2.1.1 The Design-Builder may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days 
through no act or fault of the Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, or a Contractor, or their agents or 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

29

employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the 
Design-Builder, for any of the following reasons:

.1 Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be 
stopped;

.2 An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency that requires all Work to be stopped;

.3 Because the Owner has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Design-Builder of 
the reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.5.1, or because the Owner has not 
made payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Design-Build Documents; or 

.4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Design-Builder promptly, upon the Design-Builder’s request, 
reasonable evidence as required by Section 7.2.7.

§ 13.2.1.2 The Design-Builder may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Design-Builder, the 
Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions 
of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the Design-Builder, repeated suspensions, delays or interruptions of 
the entire Work by the Owner as described in Section 13.2.3 constitute in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the 
total number of days scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any 365-day period, whichever is less.

§ 13.2.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 13.2.1.1 or 13.2.1.2 exists, the Design-Builder may, upon seven 
days’ written notice to the Owner, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, 
including reasonable overhead and profit, costs incurred by reason of such termination, and damages. 

§ 13.2.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Design-Builder or 
any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under contract with the Design-Builder because the 
Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Design-Build Documents with respect to 
matters important to the progress of the Work, the Design-Builder may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to 
the Owner, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided in Section 13.2.1.3.

§ 13.2.2 Termination by the Owner For Cause
§ 13.2.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Design-Builder

.1 fails to submit the Proposal by the date required by this Agreement, or if no date is indicated, within a 
reasonable time consistent with the date of Substantial Completion;

.2 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply an Architect, or enough properly skilled Consultants, Contractors, 
or workers or proper materials;

.3 fails to make payment to the Architect, Consultants, or Contractors for services, materials or labor in 
accordance with their respective agreements with the Design-Builder;

.4 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or

.5 is otherwise guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 13.2.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the 
Owner and after giving the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder’s surety, if any, seven days’ written notice, 
terminate employment of the Design-Builder and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety:

.1 Exclude the Design-Builder from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and 
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Design-Builder;

.2 Accept assignment of the Architect, Consultant and Contractor agreements pursuant to Section 3.1.15; 
and

.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request 
of the Design-Builder, the Owner shall furnish to the Design-Builder a detailed accounting of the costs 
incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work.

§ 13.2.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 13.2.2.1, the 
Design-Builder shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 13.2.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work and other damages incurred 
by the Owner and not expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Design-Builder. If such costs and damages 
exceed the unpaid balance, the Design-Builder shall pay the difference to the Owner. The obligation for such 
payments shall survive termination of the Contract.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

30

§ 13.2.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
§ 13.2.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Design-Builder in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work 
in whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.

§ 13.2.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by 
suspension, delay or interruption as described in Section 13.2.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include 
profit. No adjustment shall be made to the extent

.1 that performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause for 
which the Design-Builder is responsible; or

.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract.

§ 13.2.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience
§ 13.2.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 13.2.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the 
Design-Builder shall

.1 cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;

.2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; 
and,

.3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, 
terminate all existing Project agreements, including agreements with the Architect, Consultants, 
Contractors, and purchase orders, and enter into no further Project agreements and purchase orders.

§ 13.2.4.3 In case of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Design-Builder shall be entitled to receive 
payment for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and 
profit on the Work not executed.

ARTICLE 14   CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
§ 14.1 Claims 
§ 14.1.1 Definition. A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of 
money, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and 
matters in question between the Owner and Design-Builder arising out of or relating to the Contract. The 
responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim.

§ 14.1.2 Time Limits on Claims. The Owner and Design-Builder shall commence all claims and causes of action, 
whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, against the other, arising out of or related to the Contract in 
accordance with the requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in Section 1.3, within the time 
period specified by applicable law, but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of 
the Work. The Owner and Design-Builder waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with 
this Section 14.1.2.

§ 14.1.3 Notice of Claims
§ 14.1.3.1 Prior To Final Payment. Prior to Final Payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder must be 
initiated by written notice to the other party within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or 
within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later. 

§ 14.1.3.2 Claims Arising After Final Payment. After Final Payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder that 
have not otherwise been waived pursuant to Sections 9.10.4 or 9.10.5, must be initiated by prompt written notice to the 
other party. The notice requirement in Section 14.1.3.1 and the Initial Decision requirement as a condition precedent 
to mediation in Section 14.2.1 shall not apply.

§ 14.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance. Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing 
or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article 13, the Design-Builder shall proceed diligently with performance of the 
Contract and the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

31

§ 14.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost. If the Design-Builder intends to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, 
written notice as provided herein shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that relates to the 
Claim. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under 
Section 10.4.

§ 14.1.6 Claims for Additional Time
§ 14.1.6.1 If the Design-Builder intends to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as 
provided herein shall be given. The Design-Builder’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of 
delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.

§ 14.1.6.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented 
by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have been reasonably 
anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.

§ 14.1.7 Claims for Consequential Damages
The Design-Builder and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating 
to this Contract. This mutual waiver includes

.1 damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, 
business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such 
persons; and

.2 damages incurred by the Design-Builder for principal office expenses including the compensation of 
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit except 
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work.

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in 
accordance with Article 13. Nothing contained in this Section 14.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude an award of 
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 14.2 Initial Decision
§ 14.2.1 An initial decision shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation of all Claims between the Owner 
and Design-Builder initiated prior to the date final payment is due, excluding those arising under Sections 10.3 and 
10.4 of the Agreement and Sections B.3.2.9 and B.3.2.10 of Exhibit B to this Agreement, unless 30 days have passed 
after the Claim has been initiated with no decision having been rendered. Unless otherwise mutually agreed in writing, 
the Owner shall render the initial decision on Claims. 

§ 14.2.2 Procedure
§ 14.2.2.1 Claims Initiated by the Owner. If the Owner initiates a Claim, the Design-Builder shall provide a written 
response to Owner within ten days after receipt of the notice required under Section 14.1.3.1. Thereafter, the Owner 
shall render an initial decision within ten days of receiving the Design-Builder’s response: (1) withdrawing the Claim 
in whole or in part, (2) approving the Claim in whole or in part, or (3) suggesting a compromise.

§ 14.2.2.2 Claims Initiated by the Design-Builder. If the Design-Builder initiates a Claim, the Owner will take one or 
more of the following actions within ten days after receipt of the notice required under Section 14.1.3.1: (1) request 
additional supporting data, (2) render an initial decision rejecting the Claim in whole or in part, (3) render an initial 
decision approving the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise or (5) indicate that it is unable to render an initial decision 
because the Owner lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim.

§ 14.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Owner may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek information from 
persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Owner in rendering a decision. The retention of such 
persons shall be at the Owner’s expense.

§ 14.2.4 If the Owner requests the Design-Builder to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional supporting 
data, the Design-Builder shall respond, within ten days after receipt of such request, and shall either (1) provide a 
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Owner when the response or supporting data will be 
furnished or (3) advise the Owner that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon receipt of the response or supporting 
data, if any, the Owner will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in part.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

32

§ 14.2.5 The Owner’s initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the reasons therefor; and (3) identify any change 
in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding on the parties but subject 
to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute resolution.

§ 14.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 14.2.6.1.

§ 14.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other party 
file for mediation within 60 days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand 
fails to file for mediation within the time required, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding 
dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision. 

§ 14.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Design-Builder, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if 
any, of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Design-Builder’s default, the 
Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

§ 14.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in 
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines.

§ 14.3 Mediation

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ 14.4 Intentionally Deleted

ARTICLE 15   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 15.1 Governing Law
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located except that, if the parties have 
selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 14.4.

§ 15.2 Successors and Assigns
§ 15.2.1 The Owner and Design-Builder, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Design-Build Documents. Except as 
provided in Section 15.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of 
the other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless 
remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 15.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Design-Builder, assign the Contract to a lender providing 
construction financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Design-Build 
Documents. The Design-Builder shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate such assignment.

§ 15.2.3 If the Owner requests the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors to execute certificates, other 
than those required by Section 3.1.10, the Owner shall submit the proposed language of such certificates for review at 
least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests the Design-Builder, Architect, 
Consultants, or Contractors to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors shall execute all such consents that are consistent with this 
Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to them for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall not be required to execute certificates or consents that 
would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of their services. 

§ 15.3 Written Notice
Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the 
firm or entity, or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended; or if delivered at, or sent by registered or 
certified mail or by courier service providing proof of delivery to, the last business address known to the party giving 
notice. 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

33

§ 15.4 Rights and Remedies
§ 15.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Design-Build Documents, and rights and remedies available 
thereunder, shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law.

§ 15.4.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner or Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded 
them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach 
thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

§ 15.5 Tests and Inspections
§ 15.5.1 Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Design-Build 
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations or lawful orders of public 
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Design-Builder shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections and 
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public 
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The Design-Builder shall give the Owner 
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Owner may be present for such 
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of (1) tests, inspections or approvals that do not become requirements until 
after bids are received or negotiations concluded, and (2) tests, inspections or approvals where building codes or 
applicable laws or regulations prohibit the Owner from delegating their cost to the Design-Builder.

§ 15.5.2 If the Owner determines that portions of the Work require additional testing, inspection or approval not 
included under Section 15.5.1, the Owner will instruct the Design-Builder to make arrangements for such additional 
testing, inspection or approval by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Design-Builder shall give timely notice to 
the Owner of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Owner may be present for such 
procedures. Such costs, except as provided in Section 15.5.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense.

§ 15.5.3 If such procedures for testing, inspection or approval under Sections 15.5.1 and 15.5.2 reveal failure of the 
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Design-Build Documents, all costs made 
necessary by such failure shall be at the Design-Builder’s expense.

§ 15.5.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Design-Build 
Documents, be secured by the Design-Builder and promptly delivered to the Owner.

§ 15.5.5 If the Owner is to observe tests, inspections or approvals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner 
will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.

§ 15.5.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Design-Build Documents shall be made promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the Work.

§ 15.6 Confidential Information
If the Owner or Design-Builder transmits Confidential Information, the transmission of such Confidential Information 
constitutes a warranty to the party receiving such Confidential Information that the transmitting party is authorized to 
transmit the Confidential Information. If a party receives Confidential Information, the receiving party shall keep the 
Confidential Information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person or entity except as set forth 
in Section 15.6.1. 

§ 15.6.1 A party receiving Confidential Information may disclose the Confidential Information as required by law or 
court order, including a subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity. 
A party receiving Confidential Information may also disclose the Confidential Information to its employees, 
consultants or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and exclusively for the Project, provided those 
employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the disclosure and use of Confidential 
Information as set forth in this Contract. 

§ 15.7 Capitalization
Terms capitalized in the Contract include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of numbered articles or 
(3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

34

§ 15.8 Interpretation
§ 15.8.1 In the interest of brevity the Design-Build Documents frequently omit modifying words such as "all" and 
"any" and articles such as "the" and "an," but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and 
appears in another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

§ 15.8.2 Unless otherwise stated in the Design-Build Documents, words which have well-known technical or 
construction industry meanings are used in the Design-Build Documents in accordance with such recognized 
meanings.

ARTICLE 16   SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.)

§ 16.1 By signing the A141-2014 as revised, the Design-Builder hereby represents that (a) it has not employed or 
retained any company or person, working primarily for the Architect, to solicit or secure this agreement by improperly 
influencing the Owner or any of its employees in any professional service procurement process; (b) it has not paid or 
agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working 
primarily for the Design-Builder, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or any other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this agreement; and (c) it understands that for the violation of this provision, the 
Owner shall have the right to terminate the agreement without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the 
contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or consideration.

§ 16.2 By signing the A141-2014 as revised, the Design-Builder hereby represents that it will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
national origin.  The Design-Builder will take positive steps to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees 
are treated during employment without regard to their race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or 
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The Design-Builder agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment notices to be provided by the contracting agency setting forth 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

ARTICLE 17   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
§ 17.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below:

.1 AIA Document A141™–2014, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder

.2 AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit A, GMP, Design-Build Amendment (DRAFT),

.3 AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit B, Insurance and Bonds

.4 BIM Execution Plan, Exhibit 

.5 Owner’s Request for Proposal Design Builder’s Proposal including:

Exhibit E – Project Schedule
Exhibit F – Drawings 
Exhibit G – RJC Professional Staff Billing Rates
Exhibit H – RJC Equipment Rental Billing Rates
Exhibit I – RJC Response to RFP Phase 1
Exhibit J – RJC Response to RFP Phase 2
Exhibit K – RJC Interview Presentation
Exhibit L – RJC Clarification Response
Exhibit 1 – RJC Preliminary Budget Estimate

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

    

OWNER (Signature) DESIGN-BUILDER (Signature)



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

35

Joseph V. Chiarelli, Winnebago County Chairman  Brent B. Johnson, President & CEO    
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

36

(Table deleted)(Paragraphs deleted)



Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA

®
 Document A141® – 2014

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has added 
to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from the original 
AIA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Note:  This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any part 
of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated simultaneously by 
AIA software at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

1

PAGE 1

AGREEMENT made as of the 26th day of November in the year 2024

…

Winnebago County
404 Elm Street
Rockford, Illinois  61101

…

Ringland-Johnson, Inc.
1725 Huntwood Drive
Cherry Valley, IL 61016

…

Develop a comprehensive design plan for a new mechanical, plumbing, fire protection and electrical system, the first 
and second floor buildouts for the family courts center and demo of the third and fourth floor and implement the 
construction of said plan. 
Winnebago County Public Safety Building.
20 West State Street
Rockford, Illinois 61101

The Owner and Design-Builder agree as follows.

Owner is an Illinois County.  This Contract is the result of the award of a Request for Proposal issued by Owner 
pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Local Government Professional Services Selection Act pertaining to public 
contracts, particularly the provision of 55 ILCS 5-45 (the County Design-Build Authorization Act).  The Request for 
Proposal, all Owner issued Addenda thereto, this Agreement, and Design Builder’s Proposal form a part of this 
Contract.  The terms of Illinois statutes applicable hereto and policies of the Owner shall govern all terms and 
conditions of this Contract as though fully set forth herein.
PAGE 2

1.) Infrastructure Basis of Design Docs
2.) Family Courts Center Schematic Floor plan.
3.) Demo of third and fourth floors.
PAGE 3

(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, the documentation that contains the Owner’s design requirements, 
including any performance specifications for the Project.) as provided for in Owners RFP and Design Builder’s 
proposals which are incorporated herein by reference.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

2

…

$32,000,000.00  

§ 1.1.7 The Owner’s design and construction milestone dates: [Need preliminary Schedule]
PAGE 4

 1919 Architects
4000 Morsay Drive
Rockford, IL 61107
Attn: Zach Enderle, AIA 
zach@1919architects.com

RJ Design Plus, Inc.
1725 Huntwood Dr.
Cherry Valley, IL 61016
Attn: Scott Mutton
smutton@ringland.com 

…

§ 1.1.12 If the Owner and Design-Builder and Contractor intend to transmit Instruments of Service or any other 
information or documentation in digital form, or utilize building information modeling, they shall endeavor to 
establish written protocols governing the development, use, transmission, reliance, and exchange of digital data, 
including they shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions. Unless otherwise agreed, 
the parties will use AIA Document E203™–2013 to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, 
and exchange of digital data and building information modeling.

…

Chris Dornbush
Chief Operating Officer
Winnebago County
404 Elm Street
Rockford, Illinois  61101
Cdornbush@admin.wincoil.gov
PAGE 5

Ted Seele
Tseele@fm.wincoil.com
Jeff Duesterbeck
Jeffd@huffmankeel.com
Shawn Franks
sfranks@fm.wincoil.com

§ 1.2.3 The Owner will retain the following consultants and separate contractors:contractors for:

…

Environmental Survey and any asbestos removal  

…

[ X  ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction
PAGE 7



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

3

Owner shall pay Design Builder an amount not to exceed $1,642,888.00 for all design costs which shall include, but 
not be limited to, all professional fees for the architect and engineering fees through the bid process.  The Preliminary 
Budget Estimate as of October 4, 2024 is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  General Requirements for preconstruction 
services will also be incurred prior to finalization of Guaranteed Maximum Price.

…

§ 2.1.3.2 For Reimbursable Expenses, the compensation shall be the expenses the Design-Builder and the 
Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants and Contractors incurred, plus an administrative fee of  zero  percent ( 0  %) 
of the expenses incurred.

…

§ 2.1.4.1 Payments are due and payable upon within 45 days of presentation of the Design-Builder’s invoice. Amounts 
unpaid    ( 45 ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the 
legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Design-Builder.

…

1 % per month 

§ 2.1.4.2 Records of Reimbursable Expenses and services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to 
the Owner at mutually convenient times for a period of two years following execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment or termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.  Reimbursable invoices and receipts are to be 
provided with each monthly billing.
PAGE 8

§ 3.1.5 General Consultation. The Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct periodic weekly meetings with the 
Owner to review matters such as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. 
PAGE 9

§ 3.1.8.2 In addition, where the Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work with or without not to exceed a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price, the Design-Builder shall include the following additional information in its progress reports:

…

.3 Cost summary, comparing actual costs to updated cost estimates.estimates including a monthly job cost 
detail report outlining labor (hrs, rates), material, equipment, and other.

…

§ 3.1.9.1 The Design-Builder, promptly after execution of this Agreement, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s 
information a schedule for the Work. The schedule, including the time required for design and construction, shall not 
exceed time limits current under the Design-Build Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by 
the conditions of the Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Design-Build 
Documents, shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work, and shall include allowances for 
periods of time required for the Owner’s review and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction 
over the Project.  Project schedule will show critical path as well as relationships tying activities to one another.
PAGE 11

Guaranteed Maximum Contract Amendment in substantially the form of  Exhibit A attached hereto. 
PAGE 13

The Design-Builder shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes, if any, for the Work provided by the 
Design-Builder, that are legally enacted when the Design-Build Amendment is executed, whether or not yet effective 
or merely scheduled to go into effect.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

4

…

§ 5.5.3 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Design-Builder encounters conditions at the site that are 
(1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the 
Design-Build Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those 
ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in 
the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall promptly provide notice to the Owner before conditions are 
disturbed and in no event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Owner shall promptly 
investigate such conditions and, if the Owner determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease 
in the Design-Builder’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, shall recommend an 
equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Owner determines that the conditions at the 
site are not materially different from those indicated in the Design-Build Documents and that no change in the terms of 
the Contract is justified, the Owner shall promptly notify the Design-Builder in writing, stating the reasons. If the 
Design-Builder disputes the Owner’s determination or recommendation, the Design-Builder may proceed as provided 
in Article 14.  Design builder is to include contingencies and or allowances in their budget to account for unknown 
conditions.

§ 5.5.4 If, in the course of the Work, the Design-Builder encounters human remains, or recognizes the existence of 
burial markers, archaeological sites, or wetlands, not indicated in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder 
shall immediately suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner. Upon receipt of such 
notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume 
the operations. The Design-Builder shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner 
but shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in An 
equitable adjustment to the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be made to accommodate any increased costs 
and/or time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 14.
PAGE 14

.2 the Design-Builder’s complete costs of Work, including but not limited to, costs for unloading and 
handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for 
stated allowance amounts, shall be included in the Contract Sum but not in the allowances; amounts; 
and

.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly 
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs 
and the allowances under Section 5.6.2.1 and (2) changes in Design-Builder’s costs under 
Section 5.6.2.2.  Detailed backup must be provided for all costs incurred against each allowance.

§ 5.6.3 The Owner shall make selections of materials and equipment with reasonable promptness for allowances 
requiring Owner selection.

§ 5.6.4 The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall include a designated contingency amount (the "Construction 
Contingency Allowance") for the Design-Builder’s exclusive use to cover those costs otherwise unaccounted for but 
constituting a Cost of the Work and not included in a Change Order, with such reimbursables charged against the 
Construction Contingency Allowance to include all costs constituting Cost of Work, such as costs for materials, labor, 
general requirements, fee, etc. The Construction Contingency Allowance shall not be utilized for costs that should be 
reflected within an allowance or by Change Order, for example but not limited to, Owner-directed changes of scope or 
upgrades, severe weather conditions, and the like. The Design-Builder shall keep a record of all costs charged against 
the Construction Contingency Allowance and reflect usage on each monthly pay application.
PAGE 16

§ 5.14.3 The Design-Builder shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate 
contractor because of the Design-Builder’s delays, improperly timed activities delays or defective construction. The 
Owner shall be responsible to the Design-Builder for costs the Design-Builder incurs because of a separate 
contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction.
PAGE 20

Where the Contract Sum is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder, prior to the 
first Application for Payment after execution of the Design-Build Amendment shall submit to the Owner a schedule of 



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

5

values for review and approval by the Owner, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the various portions of the Work 
and prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Owner may require. require; 
provided, however, Design-Builder shall have the right to make changes to individual line items within the schedule of 
values so long as the Guarantee Maximum Prices is not exceeded. This schedule, unless objected to by the Owner, 
shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Design-Builder’s Applications for Payment.
PAGE 21

.7 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents.

.8 Failure to provide the appropriate job cost backup, including but not limited to:  detailed job cost 
reports, sub pay applications, receipts, etc.

PAGE 32

§ 14.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived 
as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 14.1.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding 
dispute resolution. 

§ 14.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, 
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The 
request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event, 
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending 
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties 
or court order. If an arbitration proceeding is stayed pursuant to this Section 14.3.2, the parties may nonetheless 
proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 14.3.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction.

§ 14.4 Arbitration
§ 14.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in Section 1.3, any Claim 
subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered 
to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party filing a 
notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which arbitration is 
permitted to be demanded. 

§ 14.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on 
the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations or statute of repose. For statute of limitations or 
statute of repose purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the 
arbitration shall constitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim.

§ 14.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction.

§ 14.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity 
duly consented to by parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court 
having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 14.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder
§ 14.4.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 
permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

6

§ 14.4.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided 
that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional 
person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not 
described in the written consent.

§ 14.4.4.3 The Owner and Design-Builder grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under 
this Section 14.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Design-Builder under this Agreement.§ 14.4 Intentionally Deleted
PAGE 34

ARTICLE 16   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENTSPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.)
§ 16.1 By signing the A141-2014 as revised, the Design-Builder hereby represents that (a) it has not employed or 

retained any company or person, working primarily for the Architect, to solicit or secure this agreement by improperly 
influencing the Owner or any of its employees in any professional service procurement process; (b) it has not paid or 
agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working 
primarily for the Design-Builder, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or any other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this agreement; and (c) it understands that for the violation of this provision, the 
Owner shall have the right to terminate the agreement without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the 
contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or consideration.

§ 16.2 By signing the A141-2014 as revised, the Design-Builder hereby represents that it will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
national origin.  The Design-Builder will take positive steps to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees 
are treated during employment without regard to their race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or 
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The Design-Builder agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment notices to be provided by the contracting agency setting forth 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

ARTICLE 17   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
§ 17.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below:

.1 AIA Document A141™–2014, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder

.2 AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit A, GMP, Design-Build Amendment (DRAFT),

.3 AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit B, Insurance and Bonds

.4 BIM Execution Plan, Exhibit 

.5 Owner’s Request for Proposal Design Builder’s Proposal including:

Exhibit E – Project Schedule
Exhibit F – Drawings 
Exhibit G – RJC Professional Staff Billing Rates
Exhibit H – RJC Equipment Rental Billing Rates
Exhibit I – RJC Response to RFP Phase 1
Exhibit J – RJC Response to RFP Phase 2
Exhibit K – RJC Interview Presentation
Exhibit L – RJC Clarification Response
Exhibit 1 – RJC Preliminary Budget Estimate



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

7

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

    

OWNER (Signature) DESIGN-BUILDER (Signature)

Joseph V. Chiarelli, Winnebago County Chairman  Brent B. Johnson, President & CEO    
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American 
Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

8

§ 16.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below:
.1 AIA Document A141™–2014, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder
.2 AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit A, Design-Build Amendment, if executed
.3 AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit B, Insurance and Bonds
.4 AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit C, Sustainable Projects, if completed
.5 AIA Document E202™-2022, BIM Exhibit for Sharing Models with Project Participants, Where 

Model Versions May Not be Enumerated as a Contract Document, if completed, or the following:

  

.6 Other:

  

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

    

OWNER (Signature) DESIGN-BUILDER (Signature)

    
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)



AIA Document D401 – 2003. Copyright © 1992 and 2003. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (846477369)

1

’Certification of Document s Authenticity
AIA® ™  – 2003 Document D401

I, Brent B. Johnson, President, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 
10:44:12 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No. 4104245143 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in 
preparing the attached final document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document A141™ – 2014, 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder, other than those additions and deletions shown in 
the associated Additions and Deletions Report.

_____________________________________________________________
(Signed) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Title) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Dated)



   Document A141
®

 – 2014 Exhibit A
Design-Build Amendment

Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification.

Consultation with an attorney is also 
encouraged with respect to 
professional licensing requirements 
in the jurisdiction where the Project is 
located.

This Amendment is incorporated into the accompanying AIA Document A141™–2014, 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder dated the    day of     in 
the year    (the "Agreement")
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

for the following PROJECT:
(Name and location or address)

Winnebago County Public Safety Building
420 West State Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61101  

THE OWNER:
(Name, legal status and address)

Winnebago County
404 Elm Street 
Rockford, IL 61101 

THE DESIGN-BUILDER:
(Name, legal status and address)

Ringland-Johnson, Inc.
1725 Huntwood Drive  
Cherry Valley, IL 61016  

The Owner and Design-Builder hereby amend the Agreement as follows.

TABLE OF ARTICLES

A.1 CONTRACT SUM

A.2 CONTRACT TIME

A.3 INFORMATION UPON WHICH AMENDMENT IS BASED

A.4 DESIGN-BUILDER’S PERSONNEL, CONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

A.5 COST OF THE WORK

ARTICLE A.1   CONTRACT SUM
§ A.1.1 The Owner shall pay the Design-Builder the Contract Sum in current funds for the 
Design-Builder’s performance of the Contract after the execution of this Amendment. The 
Contract Sum shall be one of the following and shall not include compensation the Owner 
paid the Design-Builder for Work performed prior to execution of this Amendment:
(Check the appropriate box.)

[    ] Stipulated Sum, in accordance with Section A.1.2 below



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

2

[    ] Cost of the Work plus the Design-Builder’s Fee, in accordance with Section A.1.3 below

[ X   ] Cost of the Work plus the Design-Builder’s Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price, in accordance 
with Section A.1.4 below

(Based on the selection above, complete Section A.1.2, A.1.3 or A.1.4 below.)

§ A.1.2 Stipulated Sum - Not Applicable

(Table deleted)
(Paragraphs deleted)
§ A.1.3 Cost of the Work Plus Design-Builder’s Fee  -  Not Applicable

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ A.1.4 Cost of the Work Plus Design-Builder’s Fee With a Guaranteed Maximum Price
§ A.1.4.1 The Cost of the Work is as defined in Article A.5, Cost of the Work.

§ A.1.4.2 The Design-Builder’s Fee:
(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the Design-Builder’s Fee and 
the method for adjustment to the Fee for changes in the Work.)

Lump sum $1,000,000 for the GMP (up to $32,000,000), plus 3.25% to the GMP exceeds said amount.  

§ A.1.4.3 Guaranteed Maximum Price
§ A.1.4.3.1 The sum of the Cost of the Work and the Design-Builder’s Fee is guaranteed by the Design-Builder not to 
exceed    ($    ), subject to additions and deductions for changes in the Work as provided in the Design-Build Documents. 
Costs that would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded shall be paid by the Design-Builder without 
reimbursement by the Owner.
(Insert specific provisions if the Design-Builder is to participate in any savings.)

§ A.1.4.3.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price
Provided below is an itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, allowances, 
contingencies, alternates, the Design-Builder’s Fee, and other items that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price.
(Provide information below or reference an attachment.)

§ A.1.4.3.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Design-Build Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner:
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted alternates. If the Owner is permitted to accept other alternates 
subsequent to the execution of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternates showing the change in the 
Cost of the Work and Guaranteed Maximum Price for each and the deadline by which the alternate must be accepted.)

§ A.1.4.3.4 Unit Prices, if any: 
(Identify item, state the unit price, and state any applicable quantity limitations.)

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)
  

§ A.1.4.3.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based:



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

3

§ A.1.5 Payments
§ A.1.5.1 Progress Payments
§ A.1.5.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Owner by the Design-Builder, the Owner shall make 
progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the Design-Builder as provided below and elsewhere in the 
Design-Build Documents.

§ A.1.5.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of the 
month, or as follows:

§ A.1.5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received not later than the 25th day of the month, the Owner shall 
make payment of the certified amount to the Design-Builder not later than the 21st day of the following month. If an 
Application for Payment is received by the Owner after the application date fixed above, payment shall be made by the 
Owner not later than 21 days after the Owner receives the Application for Payment.
(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)

§ A.1.5.1.4 With each Application for Payment where the Contract Sum is based upon the Cost of the Work, or the Cost 
of the Work with a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder shall submit payrolls, petty cash accounts, receipted 
invoices or invoices with check vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the Owner to demonstrate that 
cash disbursements already made by the Design-Builder on account of the Cost of the Work equal or exceed (1) progress 
payments already received by the Design-Builder, less (2) that portion of those payments attributable to the 
Design-Builder’s Fee; plus (3) payrolls for the period covered by the present Application for Payment.

§ A.1.5.1.5 With each Application for Payment where the Contract Sum is based upon a Stipulated Sum or Cost of the 
Work with a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder shall submit the most recent schedule of values in 
accordance with the Design-Build Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Contract Sum among the 
various portions of the Work. Compensation for design services, if any, shall be shown separately. Where the Contract 
Sum is based on the Cost of the Work with a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder’s Fee shall be shown 
separately. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy 
as the Owner may require. This schedule of values, unless objected to by the Owner, shall be used as a basis for reviewing 
the Design-Builder’s Applications for Payment.

§ A.1.5.1.6 In taking action on the Design-Builder’s Applications for Payment, the Owner shall be entitled to rely on the 
accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the Design-Builder and shall not be deemed to have made a 
detailed examination, audit or arithmetic verification of the documentation submitted in accordance with 
Sections A.1.5.1.4 or A.1.5.1.5, or other supporting data; to have made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections; or to 
have made examinations to ascertain how or for what purposes the Design-Builder has used amounts previously paid. 
Such examinations, audits and verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner’s auditors acting 
in the sole interest of the Owner.

§ A.1.5.1.7 Except with the Owner’s prior approval, the Design-Builder shall not make advance payments to suppliers 
for materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.

§ A.1.5.2 Progress Payments—Stipulated Sum  -  Not Applicable

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ A.1.5.3 Progress Payments—Cost of the Work Plus a Fee  -  Not Applicable

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ A.1.5.4 Progress Payments—Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price
§ A.1.5.4.1 Applications for Payment where the Contract Sum is based upon the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of the 
period covered by the Application for Payment. The percentage of completion shall be the lesser of (1) the percentage of 
that portion of the Work which has actually been completed; or (2) the percentage obtained by dividing (a) the expense 
that has actually been incurred by the Design-Builder on account of that portion of the Work for which the 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

4

Design-Builder has made or intends to make actual payment prior to the next Application for Payment by (b) the share of 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values.

§ A.1.5.4.2 Subject to other provisions of the Design-Build Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be 
computed as follows:

.1 Take that portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to completed Work as 
determined by multiplying the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work by the share of the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values. Pending final 
determination of cost to the Owner of changes in the Work, amounts not in dispute shall be included as 
provided in Section 6.3.9 of the Agreement.

.2 Add that portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to materials and equipment 
delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work, or if approved in 
advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing;

.3 Less retainage of 5%. 

.4 Add Design-Builder’s Fee.  Design-Builder’s Fee shall be computed upon the Cost of the Work at the rate 
stated in Section A.1.4.2 or, if the Design-Builder’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, shall be an 
amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum fee as the Cost of the Work bears to a reasonable estimate 
of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion;

.5 Subtract retainage of 5% from that portion of the Work that the Design-Builder self-performs, designs 
costs, insurance, bonds (if applicable), and Design-Builder’s General Requirements;

.6 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner;

.7 Subtract the shortfall, if any, indicated by the Design-Builder in the documentation required by 
Section A.1.5.1.4 to substantiate prior Applications for Payment, or resulting from errors subsequently 
discovered by the Owner’s auditors in such documentation; and

.8 Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Owner has withheld or nullified a payment as provided in 
Section 9.5 of the Agreement.

Upon Substantial Completion, all retainage shall be released less an amount equal to 150% of the estimated 
cost of any punch list items.

§ A.1.5.4.3 The Owner and Design-Builder shall agree upon (1) a mutually acceptable procedure for review and 
approval of payments to the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors and (2) the percentage of retainage held on 
agreements with the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors; and the Design-Builder shall execute agreements in 
accordance with those terms.

§ A.1.5.5 Final Payment
§ A.1.5.5.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to 
the Design-Builder not later than 30 days after the Design-Builder has fully performed the Contract and the 
requirements of Section 9.10 of the Agreement have been satisfied, except for the Design-Builder’s responsibility to 
correct non-conforming Work discovered after final payment or to satisfy other requirements, if any, which extend 
beyond final payment.

§ A.1.5.5.2 If the Contract Sum is based on the Cost of the Work, the Owner’s auditors will review and report in 
writing on the Design-Builder’s final accounting within 30 days after the Design-Builder delivers the final accounting 
to the Owner. Based upon the Cost of the Work the Owner’s auditors report to be substantiated by the 
Design-Builder’s final accounting, and provided the other conditions of Section 9.10 of the Agreement have been met, 
the Owner will, within seven days after receipt of the written report of the Owner’s auditors, either issue a final 
Certificate for Payment, or notify the Design-Builder in writing of the reasons for withholding a certificate as provided 
in Section 9.5.1 of the Agreement.

ARTICLE A.2   CONTRACT TIME
§ A.2.1 Contract Time, as defined in the Agreement at Section 1.4.13, is the period of time, including authorized 
adjustments, for Substantial Completion of the Work.

§ A.2.2 The Design-Builder shall achieve Substantial Completion of the Work not later than    (    ) days from the date 
of this Amendment, or as follows:



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

5

(Insert number of calendar days. Alternatively, a calendar date may be used when coordinated with the date of 
commencement. If appropriate, insert requirements for earlier Substantial Completion of certain portions of the 
Work.)

Portion of Work Substantial Completion Date
  

, subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Design-Build Documents.
(Insert provisions, if any, for liquidated damages relating to failure to achieve Substantial Completion on time or for 
bonus payments for early completion of the Work.)

ARTICLE A.3   INFORMATION UPON WHICH AMENDMENT IS BASED
§ A.3.1 The Contract Sum and Contract Time set forth in this Amendment are based on the following:

§ A.3.1.1 The Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:

Document Title Date Pages
  

§ A.3.1.2 The Specifications:
(Either list the specifications here or refer to an exhibit attached to this Amendment.)

Section Title Date Pages
  

§ A.3.1.3 The Drawings:
(Either list the drawings here or refer to an exhibit attached to this Amendment.)

Title Date

§ A.3.1.4 The Sustainability Plan, if any:
(If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in the Owner’s Criteria, identify the document or documents that 
comprise the Sustainability Plan by title, date and number of pages, and include other identifying information. The 
Sustainability Plan identifies and describes the Sustainable Objective; the targeted Sustainable Measures; 
implementation strategies selected to achieve the Sustainable Measures; the Owner’s and Design-Builder’s roles and 
responsibilities associated with achieving the Sustainable Measures; the specific details about design reviews, testing 
or metrics to verify achievement of each Sustainable Measure; and the Sustainability Documentation required for the 
Project, as those terms are defined in Exhibit C to the Agreement.)

Title Date Pages
  

Other identifying information:

§ A.3.1.5 Allowances and Contingencies:



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

6

(Identify any agreed upon allowances and contingencies, including a statement of their basis.)

.1 Allowances (see §5.6 of A141 Design-Build Agreement)

.2 Contingencies (see §5.6.4 of A141 Design-Build Agreement)

§ A.3.1.6 Design-Builder’s assumptions and clarifications:

§ A.3.1.7 Deviations from the Owner’s Criteria as adjusted by a Modification:

§ A.3.1.8 To the extent the Design-Builder shall be required to submit any additional Submittals to the Owner for 
review, indicate any such submissions below:

ARTICLE A.4   DESIGN-BUILDER’S PERSONNEL, CONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS
§ A.4.1 The Design-Builder’s key personnel are identified below:
(Identify name, title and contact information.)

.1 Superintendent 

  

.2 Project Manager

  

.3 Others

  

§ A.4.2 The Design-Builder shall retain the following Consultants, Contractors and suppliers, identified below:
(List name, discipline, address and other information.)

ARTICLE A.5   COST OF THE WORK
§ A.5.1 Cost To Be Reimbursed as Part of the Contract
§ A.5.1.1 Labor Costs
§ A.5.1.1.1 Wages of construction workers directly employed by the Design-Builder to perform the construction of the 
Work at the site or, with the Owner’s prior approval, at off-site workshops.

§ A.5.1.1.2 Wages or salaries of the Design-Builder’s supervisory and administrative personnel 
(Paragraphs deleted)
wherever stationed, to the extent of time spent on Project.
(Table deleted)
§ A.5.1.1.3 Wages and salaries of the Design-Builder’s supervisory or administrative personnel engaged at factories, 
workshops or on the road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or equipment required for the 
Work, but only for that portion of their time required for the Work.

§ A.5.1.1.4 Costs paid or incurred by the Design-Builder for taxes, insurance, contributions, assessments and benefits 
required by law or collective bargaining agreements and, for personnel not covered by such agreements, customary 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

7

benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are 
based on wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under Section A.5.1.1.

§ A.5.1.1.5 Bonuses, profit sharing, incentive compensation and any other discretionary payments paid to anyone hired 
by the Design-Builder or paid to the Architect or any Consultant, Contractor or supplier, with the Owner’s prior 
approval.

§ A.5.1.2 Contract Costs. Payments made by the Design-Builder to the Architect, Consultants, Contractors and 
suppliers in accordance with the requirements of their subcontracts.

§ A.5.1.3 Costs of Materials and Equipment Incorporated in the Completed Construction
§ A.5.1.3.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated 
in the completed construction.

§ A.5.1.3.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Section A.5.1.3.1 in excess of those actually installed to allow 
for reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the Owner’s property at the 
completion of the Work or, at the Owner’s option, shall be sold by the Design-Builder. Any amounts realized from 
such sales shall be credited to the Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.

§ A.5.1.4 Costs of Other Materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related Items
§ A.5.1.4.1 Costs of transportation, storage, installation, maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 
temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by construction workers that are 
provided by the Design-Builder at the site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work. Costs of materials, 
supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and tools that are not fully consumed shall be based on the cost or 
value of the item at the time it is first used on the Project site less the value of the item when it is no longer used at the 
Project site. Costs for items not fully consumed by the Design-Builder shall mean fair market value.

§ A.5.1.4.2 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by 
construction workers that are provided by the Design-Builder at the site and costs of transportation, installation, minor 
repairs, dismantling and removal. The total rental cost of any Design-Builder-owned item may not exceed the 
purchase price of any comparable item. Rates of Design-Builder-owned equipment and quantities of equipment shall 
be subject to the Owner’s prior approval.

§ A.5.1.4.3 Costs of removal of debris from the site of the Work and its proper and legal disposal.

§ A.5.1.4.4 Costs of document reproductions, electronic communications, postage and parcel delivery charges, 
dedicated data and communications services, teleconferences, Project websites, extranets and reasonable petty cash 
expenses of the site office.

§ A.5.1.4.5 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a mutually acceptable location, with the 
Owner’s prior approval.

§ A.5.1.5 Miscellaneous Costs
§ A.5.1.5.1 Premiums for that portion of insurance and bonds required by the Design-Build Documents that can be 
directly attributed to the Contract. With the Owner’s prior approval self-insurance for either full or partial amounts of 
the coverages required by the Design-Build Documents.

§ A.5.1.5.2 Sales, use or similar taxes imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work and for which 
the Design-Builder is liable.

§ A.5.1.5.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and inspections for which the 
Design-Builder is required by the Design-Build Documents to pay.

§ A.5.1.5.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Design-Build Documents, except those related to defective or 
nonconforming Work for which reimbursement is excluded by Section 15.5.3 of the Agreement or by other provisions 
of the Design-Build Documents, and which do not fall within the scope of Section A.5.1.6.3.



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

8

§ A.5.1.5.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, process or product required by the 
Design-Build Documents; the cost of defending suits or claims for infringement of patent rights arising from such 
requirement of the Design-Build Documents; and payments made in accordance with legal judgments against the 
Design-Builder resulting from such suits or claims and payments of settlements made with the Owner’s consent. 
However, such costs of legal defenses, judgments and settlements shall not be included in the calculation of the 
Design-Builder’s Fee or subject to the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If such royalties, fees and costs are excluded by 
the second to last sentence of Section 3.1.13.2 of the Agreement or other provisions of the Design-Build Documents, 
then they shall not be included in the Cost of the Work.

§ A.5.1.5.6 With the Owner’s prior approval, costs for electronic equipment and software directly related to the Work.

§ A.5.1.5.7 Deposits lost for causes other than the Design-Builder’s negligence or failure to fulfill a specific 
responsibility in the Design-Build Documents.

§ A.5.1.5.8 With the Owner’s prior approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, legal, mediation and 
arbitration costs, including attorneys’ fees, other than those arising from disputes between the Owner and 
Design-Builder, reasonably incurred by the Design-Builder after the execution of the Agreement and in the 
performance of the Work.

§ A.5.1.5.9 With the Owner’s prior approval, expenses incurred in accordance with the Design-Builder’s standard 
written personnel policy for relocation, and temporary living allowances of, the Design-Builder’s personnel required 
for the Work.

§ A.5.1.5.10 That portion of the reasonable expenses of the Design-Builder’s supervisory or administrative personnel 
incurred while traveling in discharge of duties connected with the Work.

§ A.5.1.6 Other Costs and Emergencies
§ A.5.1.6.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and to the extent, approved in advance in writing by 
the Owner.

§ A.5.1.6.2 Costs incurred in taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency 
affecting the safety of persons and property.

§ A.5.1.6.3 Costs of repairing or correcting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by the Design-Builder, 
Contractors or suppliers, provided that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not caused by negligence or failure 
to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Design-Builder and only to the extent that the cost of repair or correction is not 
recovered by the Design-Builder from insurance, sureties, Contractors, suppliers, or others.

§ A.5.1.7 Related Party Transactions
§ A.5.1.7.1 For purposes of Section A.5.1.7, the term "related party" shall mean a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or other 
entity having common ownership or management with the Design-Builder; any entity in which any stockholder in, or 
management employee of, the Design-Builder owns any interest in excess of ten percent in the aggregate; or any 
person or entity which has the right to control the business or affairs of the Design-Builder. The term "related party" 
includes any member of the immediate family of any person identified above. 

§ A.5.1.7.2 If any of the costs to be reimbursed arise from a transaction between the Design-Builder and a related party, 
the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated transaction, including the identity 
of the related party and the anticipated cost to be incurred, before any such transaction is consummated or cost 
incurred. If the Owner, after such notification, authorizes the proposed transaction, then the cost incurred shall be 
included as a cost to be reimbursed, and the Design-Builder shall procure the Work, equipment, goods or service from 
the related party, as a Contractor, according to the terms of Section A.5.4. If the Owner fails to authorize the 
transaction, the Design-Builder shall procure the Work, equipment, goods or service from some person or entity other 
than a related party according to the terms of Section A.5.4.

§ A.5.2 Costs Not to Be Reimbursed as Part of this Contract
The Cost of the Work shall not include the items listed below:



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

9

.1 Salaries and other compensation of the Design-Builder’s personnel stationed at the Design-Builder’s 
principal office or offices other than the site office, except as specifically provided in Section A.5.1.1;

.2 Expenses of the Design-Builder’s principal office and offices other than the site office;

.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Section A.5.1;

.4 The Design-Builder’s capital expenses, including interest on the Design-Builder’s capital employed for 
the Work;

.5 Except as provided in Section A.5.1.6.3 of this Agreement, costs due to the negligence or failure of the 
Design-Builder, Contractors and suppliers or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or 
for whose acts any of them may be liable to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Contract;

.6 Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Section A.5.1; and

.7 Costs, other than costs included in Change Orders approved by the Owner, that would cause the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded.

§ A.5.3 Discounts, Rebates, and Refunds
§ A.5.3.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Design-Builder shall accrue to the Owner if (1) before 
making the payment, the Design-Builder included them in an Application for Payment and received payment from the 
Owner, or (2) the Owner has deposited funds with the Design-Builder with which to make payments; otherwise, cash 
discounts shall accrue to the Design-Builder. Trade discounts, rebates, refunds and amounts received from sales of 
surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the Design-Builder shall make provisions so that they 
can be obtained.

§ A.5.3.2 Amounts that accrue to the Owner in accordance with Section A.5.3.1 shall be credited to the Owner as a 
deduction from the Cost of the Work.

§ A.5.4  Other Agreements
§ A.5.4.1 When the Design-Builder has provided a Guaranteed Maximum Price, and a specific bidder (1) is 
recommended to the Owner by the Design-Builder; (2) is qualified to perform that portion of the Work; and (3) has 
submitted a bid that conforms to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents without reservations or exceptions, but 
the Owner requires that another bid be accepted, then the Design-Builder may require that a Change Order be issued to 
adjust the Guaranteed Maximum Price by the difference between the bid of the person or entity recommended to the 
Owner by the Design-Builder and the amount of the subcontract or other agreement actually signed with the person or 
entity designated by the Owner.

§ A.5.4.2 Agreements between the Design-Builder and Contractors shall conform to the applicable payment provisions 
of the Design-Build Documents, and shall not be awarded on the basis of cost plus a fee without the prior consent of 
the Owner. If an agreement between the Design Builder and a Contractor is awarded on a cost plus a fee basis, the 
Design-Builder shall provide in the agreement for the Owner to receive the same audit rights with regard to the Cost of 
the Work performed by the Contractor as the Owner receives with regard to the Design-Builder in Section A.5.5, 
below.

§ A.5.4.3 The agreements between the Design-Builder and Architect and other Consultants identified in the Agreement 
shall be in writing. These agreements shall be promptly provided to the Owner upon the Owner’s written request.

§ A.5.5 Accounting Records
The Design-Builder shall keep full and detailed records and accounts related to the cost of the Work and exercise such 
controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under the Contract and to substantiate all costs 
incurred. The accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the Owner. The Owner and the Owner’s auditors 
shall, during regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be permitted to audit 
and copy, the Design-Builder’s records and accounts, including complete documentation supporting accounting 
entries, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, Contractor’s proposals, purchase 
orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data relating to the Contract. The Design-Builder shall preserve these records 
for a period of three years after final payment, or for such longer period as may be required by law.

§ A.5.6 Relationship of the Parties
The Design-Builder accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this Agreement and covenants with 
the Owner to exercise the Design-Builder’s skill and judgment in furthering the interests of the Owner; to furnish 
efficient construction administration, management services and supervision; to furnish at all times an adequate supply 



Init.

/

AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 
11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

10

of workers and materials; and to perform the Work in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the 
Owner’s interests. 

This Amendment to the Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

    

OWNER (Signature) DESIGN-BUILDER (Signature)

    
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)



Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA

®
 Document A141® – 2014 Exhibit A

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has added 
to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from the original 
AIA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Note:  This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any part 
of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated simultaneously by 
AIA software at 10:44:16 ET on 11/21/2024.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 10:44:16 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

1

PAGE 1

Winnebago County Public Safety Building
420 West State Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61101  

…

Winnebago County
404 Elm Street 
Rockford, IL 61101 

…

Ringland-Johnson, Inc.
1725 Huntwood Drive  
Cherry Valley, IL 61016  
PAGE 2

[ X   ] Cost of the Work plus the Design-Builder’s Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price, in accordance 
with Section A.1.4 below

…

§ A.1.2 Stipulated Sum - Not Applicable
§ A.1.2.1 The Stipulated Sum shall be    ($    ), subject to authorized adjustments as provided in the Design-Build 
Documents.

§ A.1.2.2 The Stipulated Sum is based upon the following alternates, if any, which are described in the Design-Build 
Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner:
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted alternates. If the Owner is permitted to accept other alternates 
subsequent to the execution of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternates showing the change in 
Stipulated Sum for each and the deadline by which the alternate must be accepted.)

§ A.1.2.3 Unit prices, if any:
(Identify item, state the unit price, and state any applicable quantity limitations.)

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)
  

§ A.1.3 Cost of the Work Plus Design-Builder’s Fee  -  Not Applicable
§ A.1.3.1 The Cost of the Work is as defined in Article A.5, Cost of the Work.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 10:44:16 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

2

§ A.1.3.2 The Design-Builder’s Fee:
(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the Design-Builder’s Fee, and 
the method for adjustment to the Fee for changes in the Work.)

…

Lump sum $1,000,000 for the GMP (up to $32,000,000), plus 3.25% to the GMP exceeds said amount.  
PAGE 3

§ A.1.5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received not later than the 25th day of the month, the Owner shall 
make payment of the certified amount to the Design-Builder not later than the 21st day of the following month. If an 
Application for Payment is received by the Owner after the application date fixed above, payment shall be made by the 
Owner not later than (    ) 21 days after the Owner receives the Application for Payment.

…

§ A.1.5.2 Progress Payments—Stipulated Sum  -  Not Applicable
§ A.1.5.2.1 Applications for Payment where the Contract Sum is based upon a Stipulated Sum shall indicate the 
percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of the period covered by the Application for Payment.

§ A.1.5.2.2 Subject to other provisions of the Design-Build Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be 
computed as follows:

.1 Take that portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to completed Work as determined by 
multiplying the percentage completion of each portion of the Work by the share of the Contract Sum 
allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values, less retainage of    percent (     %) on the 
Work. Pending final determination of cost to the Owner of Changes in the Work, amounts not in 
dispute shall be included as provided in Section 6.3.9 of the Agreement;

.2 Add that portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and 
suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction (or, if approved in 
advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing), less retainage of    
percent (    %);

.3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner; and

.4 Subtract amounts, if any, the Owner has withheld or nullified, as provided in Section 9.5 of the 
Agreement.

§ A.1.5.2.3 The progress payment amount determined in accordance with Section A.1.5.2.2 shall be further modified 
under the following circumstances:

.1 Add, upon Substantial Completion of the Work, a sum sufficient to increase the total payments to the full 
amount of the Contract Sum, less such amounts as the Owner shall determine for incomplete Work, 
retainage applicable to such work and unsettled claims; and
(Section 9.8.6 of the Agreement discusses release of applicable retainage upon Substantial Completion 
of Work.)

.2 Add, if final completion of the Work is thereafter materially delayed through no fault of the 
Design-Builder, any additional amounts payable in accordance with Section 9.10.3 of the Agreement.

§ A.1.5.2.4 Reduction or limitation of retainage, if any, shall be as follows:
(If it is intended, prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, to reduce or limit the retainage resulting from the 
percentages inserted in Sections A.1.5.2.2.1 and A.1.5.2.2.2 above, and this is not explained elsewhere in the 
Design-Build Documents, insert provisions here for such reduction or limitation.)



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 10:44:16 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

3

§ A.1.5.3 Progress Payments—Cost of the Work Plus a Fee  -  Not Applicable
§ A.1.5.3.1 Where the Contract Sum is based upon the Cost of the Work plus a fee without a Guaranteed Maximum 
Price, Applications for Payment shall show the Cost of the Work actually incurred by the Design-Builder through the 
end of the period covered by the Application for Payment and for which Design-Builder has made or intends to make 
actual payment prior to the next Application for Payment.

§ A.1.5.3.2 Subject to other provisions of the Design-Build Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be 
computed as follows:

.1 Take the Cost of the Work as described in Article A.5 of this Amendment;

.2 Add the Design-Builder’s Fee, less retainage of    percent (    %). The Design-Builder’s Fee shall be 
computed upon the Cost of the Work described in the preceding Section A.1.5.3.2.1 at the rate stated in 
Section A.1.3.2; or if the Design-Builder’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, an amount which bears 
the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work in that Section bears to a reasonable estimate of 
the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion;

.3 Subtract retainage of    percent (    %) from that portion of the Work that the Design-Builder 
self-performs;

.4 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner;

.5 Subtract the shortfall, if any, indicated by the Design-Builder in the documentation required by 
Section A.1.5.1.4 or resulting from errors subsequently discovered by the Owner’s auditors in such 
documentation; and

.6 Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Owner has withheld or withdrawn a Certificate of Payment as 
provided in the Section 9.5 of the Agreement.

§ A.1.5.3.3 The Owner and Design-Builder shall agree upon (1) a mutually acceptable procedure for review and approval 
of payments to the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors and (2) the percentage of retainage held on agreements with 
the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, and the Design-Builder shall execute agreements in accordance with those 
terms. 

PAGE 4

.3 Add the Design-Builder’s Fee, less retainage of    percent (    %). The Less retainage of 5%. 

.4 Add Design-Builder’s Fee.  Design-Builder’s Fee shall be computed upon the Cost of the Work at the rate 
stated in Section A.1.4.2 or, if the Design-Builder’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, shall be an 
amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum fee as the Cost of the Work bears to a reasonable estimate 
of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion;

.4 .5 Subtract retainage of percent (    %) 5% from that portion of the Work that the Design-Builder 
self-performs;self-performs, designs costs, insurance, bonds (if applicable), and Design-Builder’s 
General Requirements;

.5 .6 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner;

.6 .7 Subtract the shortfall, if any, indicated by the Design-Builder in the documentation required by 
Section A.1.5.1.4 to substantiate prior Applications for Payment, or resulting from errors subsequently 
discovered by the Owner’s auditors in such documentation; and

.7 .8 Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Owner has withheld or nullified a payment as 
provided in Section 9.5 of the Agreement.

Upon Substantial Completion, all retainage shall be released less an amount equal to 150% of the estimated 
cost of any punch list items.

PAGE 5

Number Title Date
  

Title Date

PAGE 6

.1 Allowances (see §5.6 of A141 Design-Build Agreement)



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 – 2014 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 10:44:16 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

4

.2 Contingencies (see §5.6.4 of A141 Design-Build Agreement)

…

§ A.5.1.1.2 With the Owner’s prior approval, wages Wages or salaries of the Design-Builder’s supervisory and 
administrative personnel when stationed at the site.
(If it is intended that the wages or salaries of certain personnel stationed at the Design-Builder’s principal or other 
offices shall be included in the Cost of the Work, identify below the personnel to be included, whether for all or only 
part of their time, and the rates at which their time will be charged to the Work.)
wherever stationed, to the extent of time spent on Project.

Person Included Status (full-time/part-time) Rate ($0.00) Rate (unit of time)
  



AIA Document D401 – 2003. Copyright © 1992 and 2003. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:44:16 ET on 11/21/2024 under 
Order No.4104245143 which expires on 12/08/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1731212145)

1

Certification of Document’s Authenticity
AIA® Document D401™ – 2003

I, Brent B. Johnson, President, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 
10:44:16 ET on 11/21/2024 under Order No. 4104245143 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in 
preparing the attached final document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document A141™ – 2014 
Exhibit A, Design-Build Amendment, other than those additions and deletions shown in the associated Additions and 
Deletions Report.

_____________________________________________________________
(Signed) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Title) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Dated)













Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov     

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: November 18, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 

between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners – NDIL  

County Code:      Not applicable  
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No Appropriation Amount:        $306,686.00 

If not, explain funding source:       Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information: The County of Winnebago, Illinois desires to continue its role as Fiscal Agency 
for the United States Department of Justice, Northern District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) 
initiative pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and retaining ten percent (10%) of the total award which 
will be applied to grants administration. Sub-award Agreements are pre-selected by the Project Safe 
Neighborhoods Task Force with final approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: The following agreement/sub-agreements are recommended, pending final DOJ 
approval: 

1) Agreement with the U.S Department of Justice $306,686 
2) Sub-award Agreement with Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office $162,516 
3) Sub-award Agreement with Illinois Department of Corrections $109,305 

Contract/Agreement: See attached.

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the award and will review each sub-
agreement prior to execution. 

Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 26, 2024 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FY2024 AWARD AND AUTHORIZING AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, AND PROJECT SAFE 

NEIGHBORHOODS (PSN) PARTNERS – NDIL  

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago’s Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 
has partnered with the U.S. Department of Justice to act as Fiscal Agency to implement 
Project Safe Neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the DOJ Award Letter, Resolution Exhibit A, and 
recommends accepting award and awarding sub agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned shall be as follows: 

61400-various-PSXXX 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to accept and execute, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Agreement with the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, in the dollar 
amount of three hundred six thousand six hundred eighty-six dollars ($306,686.00), and sub-
agreements with the COOK COUNTY STATES ATTORNEY’S OFFICE in the amount of  one hundred 
sixty-two thousand five hundred sixteen dollars  ($162,516.00), the ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF 
CORRECTIONS in the amount of  one hundred nine thousand three hundred five dollars 
($109,305.00). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the aforementioned sub-agreements, and the award in substantially the same form as 
the Agreement attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor. 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
   PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: November 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: 
Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners 

Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/01/24 – 09/30/27 

Is match required?     yes    no 

- If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?    yes    no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?   yes    no 
- If yes, what is the granting agency’s allowable de minimis Indirect Cost rate?

Is the indirect cost included in the budget?    yes    no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $50,000 of each 
subaward. 

- If no, please explain: Yes, however 25k of each subaward as awarded.

Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no  

- If yes, please explain:

How many sub-awards are included in this award?   Two (2) 

- Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?    yes    no 
- If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or

contract:

http://www.wincoil.us/


Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Washington, D.C. 20531

Name and Address of Recipient: COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
404 ELM ST 

City, State and Zip: ROCKFORD, IL 61101  

Recipient UEI: SBEVXUKXKGK3 

Project Title: Project Safe Neighborhoods -
Northern District of Illinois - FY24  Award Number: 15PBJA-24-GG-04006-GUNP

Solicitation Title: BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program 

Federal Award Amount: $306,686.00   Federal Award Date: 9/27/24 

Awarding Agency:   Office of Justice Programs
Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Funding Instrument Type: Grant 

Opportunity Category: O
Assistance Listing:
16.609 - Project Safe Neighborhoods

Project Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Project Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Budget Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Budget Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Project Description:

The United States Attorney’s Office for the Northern District of Illinois (NDIL) Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Task Force has
a collaborative, comprehensive strategy to address all four PSN Design Features which includes activity related to gun trafficking,
gun and gang violence, prosecution, felon recidivism, and youth violence intervention and prevention in Chicago and Rockford
during the project period of October 1, 2024, to September 31, 2027. In Chicago, the focus is on the seven most violent police
districts: South Shore, Englewood, Back of the Yards, Lawndale, Garfield Park, Austin, and Auburn/Gresham. Rockford will
address citywide crime reduction. The overarching goal is to prevent crime before it happens by targeting high-risk individuals and
areas. Additionally, the NDIL has a research partner as a member of the PSN Task Force not funded under PSN. 

Building on previous PSN efforts, Fiscal Year 2024 funds will be used to increase awareness of procedural justice, reduce violent
crime, and strengthen interagency collaboration through strategic enforcement and prosecution. The project will concentrate on
strategic enforcement and prevention in both cities. Key activities include: 1) Parolee Forums and compliance checks for high-risk
offenders, and 2) Increased prosecutions in Chicago in direct collaboration with the Crime Gun Intelligence Center (CGIC).

Funds will also be used to support the Illinois Department of Corrections to address high-risk, gang-involved parolees in target
areas, and the Cook County State's Attorney's Office to enhance prosecutions through the CGIC. The prosecutor assigned to the
CGIC will be designated as a Special Assistant United States Attorney, focusing on high-impact offenders to reduce gang activity.

Page: 1 of 20

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Award Letter

September 27, 2024  

Dear Patrick Thompson,
 
On behalf of Attorney General Merrick B. Garland, it is my pleasure to inform you the Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) has approved the application submitted by  COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  for an award under the funding
opportunity entitled 2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program. The approved award
amount is $306,686.
Review the Award Instrument below carefully and familiarize yourself with all conditions and requirements before
accepting your award. The Award Instrument includes the Award Offer (Award Information, Project Information,
Financial Information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceptance. For COPS Office and OVW funding the Award
Offer also includes any Other Award Documents. 

Please note that award requirements include not only the conditions and limitations set forth in the Award Offer, but
also compliance with assurances and certifications that relate to conduct during the period of performance for the
award. These requirements encompass financial, administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other important
matters (e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds). Therefore, all key staff should receive the award conditions, the
assurances and certifications, and the application as approved by OJP, so that they understand the award
requirements. Information on all pertinent award requirements also must be provided to any subrecipient of the award.
 

Should you accept the award and then fail to comply with an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate remedies
for non-compliance, which may include termination of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Prior to accepting the award, your Entity Administrator must assign a Financial Manager, Grant Award Administrator,
and Authorized Representative(s) in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants). The Entity Administrator will need to
ensure the assigned Authorized Representative(s) is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and bind the
entity to the award terms and conditions. To accept the award, the Authorized Representative(s) must accept all parts
of the Award Offer in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants), including by executing the required declaration and
certification, within 45 days from the award date.

To access your funds, you will need to enroll in the Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) system, if
you haven’t already completed the enrollment process in ASAP. The Entity Administrator should have already received
an email from ASAP to initiate this process. 

Congratulations, and we look forward to working with you.

Brent J. Cohen
Acting Assistant Attorney General  
Office for Civil Rights Notice for All Recipients

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) enforces federal
civil rights laws and other provisions that prohibit discrimination by recipients of federal financial assistance from OJP,
the Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW).

Several civil rights laws, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, require recipients of federal financial assistance (recipients) to give assurances that they will comply with those
laws.  Taken together, these and other civil rights laws prohibit recipients from discriminating in the provision of
services and employment because of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, and sex or from discriminating in
the provision of services on the bases of age.

Some recipients of DOJ financial assistance have additional obligations to comply with other applicable
nondiscrimination provisions like the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of religion in addition to race, color, national origin, and sex.  Recipients may also have
related requirements regarding the development and implementation of equal employment opportunity programs.

Page: 2 of 20



OCR provides technical assistance, training, and other resources to help recipients comply with civil rights obligations. 
Further, OCR administratively enforces civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions by investigating DOJ
recipients that are the subject of discrimination complaints.  In addition, OCR conducts compliance reviews of DOJ
recipients based on regulatory criteria.  These investigations and compliance reviews permit OCR to evaluate whether
DOJ recipients are providing services to the public and engaging in employment practices in a nondiscriminatory
manner.

For more information about OCR, your civil rights and nondiscrimination responsibilities, how to notify your employees
or beneficiaries of their civil rights protections and responsibilities and how to file a complaint, as well as technical
assistance, training, and other resources, please visit www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach.  If you would
like OCR to assist you in fulfilling your civil rights or nondiscrimination responsibilities, please contact us at askOCR@o
jp.usdoj.gov or www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts.  

Memorandum Regarding NEPA

NEPA Letter Type
OJP - Categorical Exclusion

NEPA Letter

None of the following activities will be conducted whether under the Office of Justice Programs federal action or a
related third-party action:

(1) New construction
(2) Any renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically sensitive area, including
property (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, or (b) located within a 100-year
flood plain, a wetland, or habitat for an endangered species
(3) A renovation that will change the basic prior use of a facility or significantly change its size
(4) Research and technology whose anticipated and future application could be expected to have an effect on the
environment
(5) Implementation of a program involving the use of chemicals (including the identification, seizure, or closure of
clandestine methamphetamine laboratories)

Additionally, the proposed action is neither a phase nor a segment of a project that when reviewed in its entirety would
not meet the criteria for a categorical exclusion. 

Consequently, the subject federal action meets the Office of Justice Programs' criteria for a categorical exclusion as
contained in paragraph 4(b) of Appendix D to Part 61 of Title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

Questions about this determination may be directed to your grant manager or Orbin Terry, Environmental Coordinator
for the Bureau of Justice Assistance.

NEPA Coordinator
First Name
Orbin Middle Name

Last Name
Terry

Award Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Recipient Information

Recipient Name
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

Page: 3 of 20

http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts


UEI
SBEVXUKXKGK3

Street 1
404 ELM ST Street 2

City
ROCKFORD

State/U.S. Territory
Illinois

Zip/Postal Code
61101

Country
United States

County/Parish
 

Province
 

Award Details

Federal Award Date
9/27/24

Award Type
Initial

Award Number
15PBJA-24-GG-04006-GUNP

Supplement Number
00

Federal Award Amount
$306,686.00

Funding Instrument Type
Grant

Assistance Listing
Number

Assistance Listings Program Title

16.609 Project Safe Neighborhoods

Statutory Authority

Pub. L. No. 115-185 (codified at 34 U.S.C. 60701-60705)

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Project Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Solicitation Title

2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula
Grant Program

Application Number
GRANT14211662

Awarding Agency
OJP

Program Office
BJA

Page: 4 of 20



Grant Manager Name
Lauren Troy
Phone Number
202-598-9472
E-mail Address
Lauren.Troy@usdoj.gov

Project Title
Project Safe Neighborhoods - Northern District of Illinois - FY24

Performance Period Start
Date
10/01/2024

Performance Period End Date
09/30/2027

Budget Period Start Date
10/01/2024

Budget Period End Date
09/30/2027

Project Description

The United States Attorney’s Office for the Northern District of Illinois (NDIL) Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Task Force has
a collaborative, comprehensive strategy to address all four PSN Design Features which includes activity related to gun trafficking,
gun and gang violence, prosecution, felon recidivism, and youth violence intervention and prevention in Chicago and Rockford
during the project period of October 1, 2024, to September 31, 2027. In Chicago, the focus is on the seven most violent police
districts: South Shore, Englewood, Back of the Yards, Lawndale, Garfield Park, Austin, and Auburn/Gresham. Rockford will
address citywide crime reduction. The overarching goal is to prevent crime before it happens by targeting high-risk individuals and
areas. Additionally, the NDIL has a research partner as a member of the PSN Task Force not funded under PSN. 

Building on previous PSN efforts, Fiscal Year 2024 funds will be used to increase awareness of procedural justice, reduce violent
crime, and strengthen interagency collaboration through strategic enforcement and prosecution. The project will concentrate on
strategic enforcement and prevention in both cities. Key activities include: 1) Parolee Forums and compliance checks for high-risk
offenders, and 2) Increased prosecutions in Chicago in direct collaboration with the Crime Gun Intelligence Center (CGIC).

Funds will also be used to support the Illinois Department of Corrections to address high-risk, gang-involved parolees in target
areas, and the Cook County State's Attorney's Office to enhance prosecutions through the CGIC. The prosecutor assigned to the
CGIC will be designated as a Special Assistant United States Attorney, focusing on high-impact offenders to reduce gang activity.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Financial Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

The recipient budget is currently under review. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Conditions

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Page: 5 of 20

tel:202-598-9472


1
Meaningful access requirement for individuals with limited English proficiency

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must take reasonable steps to ensure that individuals with limited
English proficiency (LEP) have meaningful access to their programs and activities to comply with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of national origin, including discrimination
against individuals with LEP. Such steps may require providing language assistance services, such as interpretation or
translation services. The Department of Justice guidance on compliance with this requirement may be found at
"Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons" (67 Fed. Reg. 41455-41472) (https://
www.federalregister.gov/d/02-15207) and is incorporated by reference here.

2
Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2024)
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions that may be set out in applicable
appropriations acts are indicated at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY24AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

3
Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") may determine that it will
not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions" (ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and
incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -- may
result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other
legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

Page: 6 of 20



4
Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

5
Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this award
from OJP.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and
subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

6
Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in connection with funds under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm
(select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

7
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38.

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of
religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice.
Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that
engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and

Page: 7 of 20



subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

Recipients and subrecipients that provide social services under this award must give written notice to beneficiaries and
prospective beneficiaries prior to the provision of services (if practicable) which shall include language substantially
similar to the language in 28 CFR Part 38, Appendix C, sections (1) through (4). A sample written notice may be found
at https://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/partnerships-faith-based-and-other-neighborhood-organizations.

In certain instances, a faith-based or religious organization may be able to take religion into account when making
hiring decisions, provided it satisfies certain requirements. For more information, please see https://www.ojp.gov/
funding/explore/legaloverview2024/civilrightsrequirements.

8
Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "de minimis"
indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must
advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part
200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

9
Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

10
Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this
award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the
program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

11
Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

12
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
equal employment opportunity program.

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 42.106(d), 28 C.F.R. § 42.405(c), and 28 C.F.R. § 42.505(f) contain notice

Page: 8 of 20



requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the dissemination of information regarding federal
nondiscrimination requirements.

13
Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award (as approved by DOJ)(or
in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal
statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with
participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

14
Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient must disclose that fact and certain
related information to OJP by email at OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high
risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the
following: 1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

15
Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must--

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole
or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both--

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to
hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with
Form I-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

Page: 9 of 20



3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for
the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award" specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibility, the recipient
(or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate
person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with
award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient
at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-Verify website
(https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

16
Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

17
Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The
reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and
cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified
to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in

Page: 10 of 20



material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

18
Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or
both--

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that
prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

19
OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees,
available at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/implement/training-guiding-principles-grantees-and-subgrantees.

20
Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would

Page: 11 of 20



exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm
(Award condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract
(if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

21
Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of
those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical
cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ awarding
agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any
inappropriate duplication of funding.

22
Required training for Grant Award Administrator and Financial Manager

The Grant Award Administrator and all Financial Managers for this award must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the
award. Successful completion of such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that either the Grant Award Administrator or a Financial Manager for this award changes during the period
of performance, the new Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after the date the Entity Administrator
enters updated Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager information in JustGrants. Successful completion of
such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant administration training" for
purposes of this condition is available at https://onlinegfmt.training.ojp.gov/. All trainings that satisfy this condition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to comply
with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions on
this award.

23
Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Page: 12 of 20



Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

24
Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP
authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

25
Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-
risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

26
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an
imminent breach.

27
Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently
accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as
maintaining the currency of information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-tier subrecipients (first-
tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the
unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated
to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

28
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards

Page: 13 of 20



Consistent with Executive Order 14074, “Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice Practices To
Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety,” OJP has prohibited the use of federal funds under this award for purchases
or transfers of specified equipment by law enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any
subrecipient (“subgrantee”) at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under this award to
acquire or transfer any property identified on the “controlled equipment” list. The details of the requirement are posted
on the OJP web site at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled-equipment (Award condition:
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards), and
are incorporated by reference here.

29
Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may
be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by
law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

30
All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/
funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal
authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

31
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 54.140 contains notice requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the
dissemination of information regarding federal nondiscrimination requirements.

32
FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of $30,000 or more
and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted

Page: 14 of 20



on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to-- (1) an award of less than $30,000, or (2) an
award made to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit
organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

33
The recipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any product (e.g., curricula, training materials,
publications, reports, videos, or any other written, web-based, or audio-visual, or other materials) that will be developed
and published under this award at least thirty (30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. The current
edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and publication activities. Any
products developed under this award, (with the exception of press releases, web sites, and mobile applications), shall
contain the following statements: “This project was supported by Grant No. <Award_Number> awarded by the Bureau
of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view or opinions in this
document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice." (Note: A separate disclaimer has been developed and is required for web sites and mobile
applications. No disclaimer is required for press releases.)

34
The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data collection
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any
activities within this project.

35
Verification and updating of recipient contact information

The recipient must verify its Grant Award Administrator, Financial Manager, and Authorized Representative contact
information in JustGrants, including telephone number and e-mail address. If any information is incorrect or has
changed, the award recipient’s Entity Administrator must make changes to contact information through DIAMD.
Instructions on how to update contact information in JustGrants can be found at https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/training/
training-entity-management.

36
Recipient understands and agrees that it must submit quarterly Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) and semi-annual
performance reports through JustGrants (justgrants.usdoj.gov), and that it must submit quarterly performance metrics
reports through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website (https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/). For more detailed
information on reporting and other requirements, refer to BJA's website. Failure to submit required reports by
established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and High Risk designation.

37
Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events

The recipient (and its subrecipients at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical assistance
events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request.

38
Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager for this award and the Office of Chief Financial
Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks, including
documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable
deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may

Page: 15 of 20



result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review; designation of the
recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

39
The award recipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring program outputs and outcomes. The
data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office of Justice Programs.

40
Protection of human research subjects 

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP
policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional
Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.

41
Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231
and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. The recipient further
agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

42
Copyright; Data rights

The recipient acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use (in whole or in part, including in connection with derivative
works), for Federal purposes: (1) any work subject to copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier);
and (2) any rights of copyright to which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases ownership with Federal
support.

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (1) obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data first
produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use
such data for Federal purposes. "Data" includes data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision
52.227-14 (Rights in Data - General).

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to ensure that the provisions
of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this award.

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors (if any) all rights and
data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under this award. If a proposed subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms affording the Government such rights, the recipient shall promptly
bring such refusal to the attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in
question without further authorization from the OJP program office.

43
Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following statement on the home
page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to
interior content), and on any pages from which a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages
that provide results or outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of
Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including,
without limitation, its content, technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of
the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may be included
through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

Page: 16 of 20



44
Body armor - compliance with NIJ standards and other requirements 

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased at any threat level,
make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body armor has been tested and found to comply
with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor
Model List. In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States
and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard information and the NIJ
Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/
topics/equipment-and-technology/body-armor. In addition, if recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body
armor, the recipient is strongly encouraged to have a "mandatory wear" policy in effect. There are no requirements
regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

45
The grantee agrees to secure and maintain on file signed statements by each member of the selection committee
appointed by the United States Attorney or the PSN Task Force indicating that in making recommendations or
decisions regarding contracts or subgrants paid for by this grant, the member had no conflict of interest. Such
statements must include all of the language included in the PSN Conflict of Interest Certification, however, the grantee
may use a different format or may add other related certifications of their own.

46
The recipient agrees to ensure that 30 percent of PSN funding is used to support gang task forces in the United States
regions experiencing a significant or increased presence of criminal or transnational organizations engaging in high
levels of violent crime, firearms offenses, human trafficking, and drug trafficking.

47
The recipient agrees to submit to DOJ for review and approval, any proposal or plan for Project Safe Neighborhoods
media-related outreach. DOJ approval must be received prior to any obligation or expenditure of grant funds related to
the development of media-related outreach projects.

48
The recipient agrees to coordinate the project with the U.S. Attorney and Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force for
the district covered by the award. The recipient also is encouraged to coordinate with other community justice
initiatives, and other ongoing, local gun prosecution and law enforcement strategies.

49
PSN Fiscal Agent Definition

References in this award document to "recipient" and "fiscal agent" both refer equally to the entity or organization
receiving this award directly.

50
The recipient understands and agrees that no more than 10 percent of the total amount of this award may be used by
the recipient for costs associated with administering the award.

51
Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable statutes, regulations, award
conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include the applicable conditions of this award in any
subaward. Among other things, the recipient is responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of
specific outcomes and benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,
upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under this award.

Page: 17 of 20



52
The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares and certifies, among
other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept the award on behalf of the recipient entity
and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of
performance under this award. The recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role
of Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first ensuring that the
individual has the requisite legal authority.

53
The recipient understands that proposed subawards are approved on a provisional basis only. The recipient may not
obligate, expend, or draw down funds for subawards until BJA provides explicit written approval of the proposed
subaward. Prior approval for all subawards must be obtained post-award, through the submission and approval of a
Grant Award Modification (GAM) through OJP’s JustGrants system.

54
If award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA profiles must be uploaded
to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database operated by the FBI) by a government DNA
laboratory with access to CODIS. With the exception of Forensic Genetic Genealogy, no profiles generated under this
award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA database without prior express written approval
from BJA. Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and supplies unless the resulting DNA
profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work with their state CODIS agency to ensure
all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures
Manual).

55
The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or subaward, at any tier) may be
used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any
accompanying accessories to support UAS.

56
Limit on use of grant funds for grantees' employees' salaries

With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus bonuses) to any
employee of the award recipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum annual salary payable to a member of
the federal government's Senior Executive Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal
System for that year. (An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in
excess of this compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)

This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on an individual basis at the
discretion of the OJP official indicated in the program announcement under which this award is made.

57
The recipient's budget (and budget narrative) is pending clearance by OJP. 

Prior to budget clearance (and unless there is a more restrictive condition on this award, in which case the terms of
that more restrictive condition apply): The recipient may not drawdown more than 10% of the award. Pre-clearance
obligations, expenditures, and drawdowns may be disallowed if not in compliance with program requirements. 

The recipient should be judicious in using award funds prior to budget clearance. Generally, OJP expects that
recipients (depending on the specific project scope) may need to advertise for award-funded positions, pay personnel
and fringe benefits for positions budgeted under the award, plan for project activities, attend training and pay training-
related travel needed to begin the project, and engage in other limited activities conducted by recipient staff (i.e.,
generally not requiring a subaward or procurement contract under an award). 

OJP will issue an Award Condition Modification upon budget clearance.

Page: 18 of 20



[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Acceptance

Declaration and Certification to the U.S. Department of Justice as to Acceptance

By checking the declaration and certification box below, I-- 

A.    Declare to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), under penalty of perjury, that I have authority to make this
declaration and certification on behalf of the applicant.

B.    Certify to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, that the following are true as of the date of this award acceptance: (1) I have conducted or there was conducted
(including by applicant’s legal counsel as appropriate and made available to me) a diligent review of all terms and
conditions of, and all supporting materials submitted in connection with, this award, including any assurances and
certifications (including anything submitted  in connection therewith by a person on behalf of the applicant before, after,
or at the time of the application submission and any materials that accompany this acceptance and certification); and
(2) I have the legal authority to accept this award on behalf of the applicant. 

C.    Accept this award on behalf of the applicant.

D.    Declare the following to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant:  (1) I understand
that, in taking (or not taking) any action pursuant to this declaration and certification, DOJ will rely upon this declaration
and certification as a material representation; and (2) I understand that any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information or statement in this declaration and certification (or concealment or omission of a material fact as to either)
may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§
10271-10273), and also may subject me and the applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies under the
federal False Claims Act (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and/or §§ 3801-3812) or otherwise.

Agency Approval

Title of Approving Official
Acting Assistant Attorney General

Name of Approving Official
Brent J. Cohen

Signed Date And Time
9/25/24 3:55 PM

Authorized Representative

 Declaration and Certification

Entity Acceptance

Title of Authorized Entity Official
County Administrator

Name of Authorized Entity Official
Patrick Thompson

Signed Date And Time
10/2/2024 4:45 PM

 

Page: 19 of 20



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov     

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: November 18, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 

between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners – SDIL  

County Code:      Not applicable  
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No Appropriation Amount:        $77,507.00 

If not, explain funding source:       Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information: The County of Winnebago, Illinois desires to continue its role as Fiscal Agency 
for the United States Department of Justice, Southern District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) 
initiative pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and retaining ten percent (10%) of the total award which 
will be applied to grants administration. Sub-award Agreements are pre-selected by the Project Safe 
Neighborhoods Task Force with final approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: The following agreement/sub-agreements are recommended, pending final DOJ 
approval: 

1) Agreement with the U.S Department of Justice $77,507 
2) Sub-award Agreement with Housing Authority of the City of East St. Louis $65,560 

Contract/Agreement: See attached. 

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the award and will review each sub-
agreement prior to execution. 

Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 26, 2024 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FY2024 AWARD AND AUTHORIZING AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, AND PROJECT SAFE 

NEIGHBORHOODS (PSN) PARTNERS – SDIL  

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago’s Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 
has partnered with the U.S. Department of Justice to act as Fiscal Agency to implement 
Project Safe Neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the DOJ Award Letter, Resolution Exhibit A, and 
recommends accepting award and awarding sub agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned shall be as follows: 

61400-various-PSXXX 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to accept and execute, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Agreement with the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, in the dollar 
amount of seventy-seven thousand five hundred seven dollars ($77,507.00), and sub-agreement 
with the Housing Authority of the City of East St. Louis in the amount of sixty-five thousand five 
hundred sixty dollars ($65,560.00). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the aforementioned sub-agreements, and the award in substantially the same form as 
the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor. 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
   PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: November 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: 
Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners 

Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/01/24 – 09/30/27 

Is match required?     yes    no 

- If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?    yes    no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?   yes    no 
- If yes, what is the granting agency’s allowable de minimis Indirect Cost rate?

Is the indirect cost included in the budget?    yes    no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $50,000 of each 
subaward. 

- If no, please explain: Yes, however 25k of each subaward as awarded and no travel to
allow larger % of contractual (they will most likely not use travel and this allows 5% time for 
direct staff.) 

Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no  

- If yes, please explain:

How many sub-awards are included in this award?   One (1) 

- Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?    yes    no 
- If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or

contract:

http://www.wincoil.us/


Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Washington, D.C. 20531

Name and Address of Recipient: COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
404 ELM ST 

City, State and Zip: ROCKFORD, IL 61101  

Recipient UEI: SBEVXUKXKGK3 

Project Title: Project Safe Neighborhoods -
Southern District of Illinois  Award Number: 15PBJA-24-GG-04099-GUNP

Solicitation Title: BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program 

Federal Award Amount: $77,507.00   Federal Award Date: 9/27/24 

Awarding Agency:   Office of Justice Programs
Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Funding Instrument Type: Grant 

Opportunity Category: O
Assistance Listing:
16.609 - Project Safe Neighborhoods

Project Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Project Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Budget Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Budget Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Project Description:

The United States Attorney’s Office (USAO) for the Southern District of Illinois (SDIL) will utilize Project Safe Neighborhoods
(PSN) FY 2024 funds to build on current efforts underway to further reduce firearm, narcotics, and gang crimes by focusing on
gang activity in public housing complexes in the City of East St. Louis. East St. Louis has one of the highest murder per capita
rates in the United States, in addition to a high rate of other violent crime. Many violent crimes occur on public housing property or
are committed by those living at or visiting residents of public housing, putting the safety of residents at risk. As such, eighty-five
percent (85%) of Fiscal Year 2024 funds will be allocated to the East St. Louis Housing Authority to assist PSN enforcement
efforts throughout public housing complexes.  

The goal of this project is to leverage existing multi-disciplinary partnerships to target enforcement efforts for individuals at high
risk for violent offenses. Objectives include provision of enforcement services to targeted sites and individuals. This initiative is
expected to further strengthen community and law enforcement relations and reduce violent crime. 

Page: 1 of 21

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Award Letter

September 27, 2024  

Dear Patrick Thompson,
 
On behalf of Attorney General Merrick B. Garland, it is my pleasure to inform you the Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) has approved the application submitted by  COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  for an award under the funding
opportunity entitled 2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program. The approved award
amount is $77,507.
Review the Award Instrument below carefully and familiarize yourself with all conditions and requirements before
accepting your award. The Award Instrument includes the Award Offer (Award Information, Project Information,
Financial Information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceptance. For COPS Office and OVW funding the Award
Offer also includes any Other Award Documents. 

Please note that award requirements include not only the conditions and limitations set forth in the Award Offer, but
also compliance with assurances and certifications that relate to conduct during the period of performance for the
award. These requirements encompass financial, administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other important
matters (e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds). Therefore, all key staff should receive the award conditions, the
assurances and certifications, and the application as approved by OJP, so that they understand the award
requirements. Information on all pertinent award requirements also must be provided to any subrecipient of the award.
 

Should you accept the award and then fail to comply with an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate remedies
for non-compliance, which may include termination of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Prior to accepting the award, your Entity Administrator must assign a Financial Manager, Grant Award Administrator,
and Authorized Representative(s) in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants). The Entity Administrator will need to
ensure the assigned Authorized Representative(s) is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and bind the
entity to the award terms and conditions. To accept the award, the Authorized Representative(s) must accept all parts
of the Award Offer in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants), including by executing the required declaration and
certification, within 45 days from the award date.

To access your funds, you will need to enroll in the Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) system, if
you haven’t already completed the enrollment process in ASAP. The Entity Administrator should have already received
an email from ASAP to initiate this process. 

Congratulations, and we look forward to working with you.

Brent J. Cohen
Acting Assistant Attorney General  
Office for Civil Rights Notice for All Recipients

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) enforces federal
civil rights laws and other provisions that prohibit discrimination by recipients of federal financial assistance from OJP,
the Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW).

Several civil rights laws, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, require recipients of federal financial assistance (recipients) to give assurances that they will comply with those
laws.  Taken together, these and other civil rights laws prohibit recipients from discriminating in the provision of
services and employment because of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, and sex or from discriminating in
the provision of services on the bases of age.

Some recipients of DOJ financial assistance have additional obligations to comply with other applicable
nondiscrimination provisions like the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of religion in addition to race, color, national origin, and sex.  Recipients may also have
related requirements regarding the development and implementation of equal employment opportunity programs.

Page: 2 of 21



OCR provides technical assistance, training, and other resources to help recipients comply with civil rights obligations. 
Further, OCR administratively enforces civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions by investigating DOJ
recipients that are the subject of discrimination complaints.  In addition, OCR conducts compliance reviews of DOJ
recipients based on regulatory criteria.  These investigations and compliance reviews permit OCR to evaluate whether
DOJ recipients are providing services to the public and engaging in employment practices in a nondiscriminatory
manner.

For more information about OCR, your civil rights and nondiscrimination responsibilities, how to notify your employees
or beneficiaries of their civil rights protections and responsibilities and how to file a complaint, as well as technical
assistance, training, and other resources, please visit www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach.  If you would
like OCR to assist you in fulfilling your civil rights or nondiscrimination responsibilities, please contact us at askOCR@o
jp.usdoj.gov or www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts.  

Memorandum Regarding NEPA

NEPA Letter Type
OJP - Additional Information Required

NEPA Letter

The scope or location or the proposed project is such that it may not qualify for a categorical exclusion as contained in
Appendix D to Part 61 of Title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations. As such, prior to initiation of the project, the
grantee may need to complete an Environmental Assessment (EA) and/or an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). 

Additional information is needed to determine if any of the following activities will be conducted as a result of this
award, whether under the Office of Justice Programs federal action or a related third party action:

(1) New construction
(2) Any renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically sensitive area, including
property (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, or (b) located within a 100-year
flood plain, a wetland, or habitat for an endangered species
(3) A renovation that will change the basic prior use of a facility or significantly change its size
(4) Research and technology whose anticipated and future application could be expected to have an effect on the
environment
(5) Implementation of a program involving the use of chemicals (including the identification, seizure, or closure of
clandestine methamphetamine laboratories)

For more information about NEPA requirements, including which projects may qualify for categorical exclusions, and
the preparation of an environmental review documents, please see
https://bja.ojp.gov/national-environmental-policy-act-nepa-guidance.

Questions about this determination may be directed to your grant manager or Orbin Terry, Environmental Coordinator
for the Bureau of Justice Assistance.

NEPA Coordinator
First Name
Orbin Middle Name

Last Name
Terry

Award Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Recipient Information

Recipient Name
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

Page: 3 of 21

http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts


UEI
SBEVXUKXKGK3

Street 1
404 ELM ST Street 2

City
ROCKFORD

State/U.S. Territory
Illinois

Zip/Postal Code
61101

Country
United States

County/Parish
 

Province
 

Award Details

Federal Award Date
9/27/24

Award Type
Initial

Award Number
15PBJA-24-GG-04099-GUNP

Supplement Number
00

Federal Award Amount
$77,507.00

Funding Instrument Type
Grant

Assistance Listing
Number

Assistance Listings Program Title

16.609 Project Safe Neighborhoods

Statutory Authority

Pub. L. No. 115-185 (codified at 34 U.S.C. 60701-60705)

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Project Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Solicitation Title

2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula
Grant Program

Application Number
GRANT14236558

Awarding Agency
OJP

Program Office
BJA

Page: 4 of 21



Grant Manager Name
Lauren Troy
Phone Number
202-598-9472
E-mail Address
Lauren.Troy@usdoj.gov

Project Title
Project Safe Neighborhoods - Southern District of Illinois

Performance Period Start
Date
10/01/2024

Performance Period End Date
09/30/2027

Budget Period Start Date
10/01/2024

Budget Period End Date
09/30/2027

Project Description

The United States Attorney’s Office (USAO) for the Southern District of Illinois (SDIL) will utilize Project Safe Neighborhoods
(PSN) FY 2024 funds to build on current efforts underway to further reduce firearm, narcotics, and gang crimes by focusing on
gang activity in public housing complexes in the City of East St. Louis. East St. Louis has one of the highest murder per capita
rates in the United States, in addition to a high rate of other violent crime. Many violent crimes occur on public housing property or
are committed by those living at or visiting residents of public housing, putting the safety of residents at risk. As such, eighty-five
percent (85%) of Fiscal Year 2024 funds will be allocated to the East St. Louis Housing Authority to assist PSN enforcement
efforts throughout public housing complexes.  
 
The goal of this project is to leverage existing multi-disciplinary partnerships to target enforcement efforts for individuals at high
risk for violent offenses. Objectives include provision of enforcement services to targeted sites and individuals. This initiative is
expected to further strengthen community and law enforcement relations and reduce violent crime. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Financial Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

The recipient budget is currently under review. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Conditions

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

1

Page: 5 of 21

tel:202-598-9472


Meaningful access requirement for individuals with limited English proficiency

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must take reasonable steps to ensure that individuals with limited
English proficiency (LEP) have meaningful access to their programs and activities to comply with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of national origin, including discrimination
against individuals with LEP. Such steps may require providing language assistance services, such as interpretation or
translation services. The Department of Justice guidance on compliance with this requirement may be found at
"Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons" (67 Fed. Reg. 41455-41472) (https://
www.federalregister.gov/d/02-15207) and is incorporated by reference here.

2
Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2024)
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions that may be set out in applicable
appropriations acts are indicated at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY24AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

3
Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") may determine that it will
not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions" (ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and
incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -- may
result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other
legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

4
Page: 6 of 21



Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

5
Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this award
from OJP.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and
subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

6
Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in connection with funds under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm
(select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

7
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38.

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of
religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice.
Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that
engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

Page: 7 of 21



Recipients and subrecipients that provide social services under this award must give written notice to beneficiaries and
prospective beneficiaries prior to the provision of services (if practicable) which shall include language substantially
similar to the language in 28 CFR Part 38, Appendix C, sections (1) through (4). A sample written notice may be found
at https://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/partnerships-faith-based-and-other-neighborhood-organizations.

In certain instances, a faith-based or religious organization may be able to take religion into account when making
hiring decisions, provided it satisfies certain requirements. For more information, please see https://www.ojp.gov/
funding/explore/legaloverview2024/civilrightsrequirements.

8
Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "de minimis"
indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must
advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part
200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

9
Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

10
Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this
award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the
program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

11
Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

12
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
equal employment opportunity program.

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 42.106(d), 28 C.F.R. § 42.405(c), and 28 C.F.R. § 42.505(f) contain notice
requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the dissemination of information regarding federal
nondiscrimination requirements.

Page: 8 of 21



13
Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award (as approved by DOJ)(or
in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal
statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with
participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

14
Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient must disclose that fact and certain
related information to OJP by email at OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high
risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the
following: 1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

15
Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must--

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole
or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both--

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to
hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with
Form I-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

Page: 9 of 21



To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for
the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award" specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibility, the recipient
(or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate
person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with
award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient
at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-Verify website
(https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

16
Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

17
Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The
reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and
cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified
to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in
material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

18
Page: 10 of 21



Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or
both--

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that
prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

19
OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees,
available at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/implement/training-guiding-principles-grantees-and-subgrantees.

20
Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would
exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the

Page: 11 of 21



Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm
(Award condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract
(if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

21
Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of
those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical
cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ awarding
agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any
inappropriate duplication of funding.

22
Required training for Grant Award Administrator and Financial Manager

The Grant Award Administrator and all Financial Managers for this award must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the
award. Successful completion of such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that either the Grant Award Administrator or a Financial Manager for this award changes during the period
of performance, the new Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after the date the Entity Administrator
enters updated Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager information in JustGrants. Successful completion of
such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant administration training" for
purposes of this condition is available at https://onlinegfmt.training.ojp.gov/. All trainings that satisfy this condition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to comply
with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions on
this award.

23
Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

24

Page: 12 of 21



Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP
authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

25
Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-
risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

26
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an
imminent breach.

27
Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently
accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as
maintaining the currency of information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-tier subrecipients (first-
tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the
unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated
to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

28
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards

Consistent with Executive Order 14074, “Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice Practices To
Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety,” OJP has prohibited the use of federal funds under this award for purchases
or transfers of specified equipment by law enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any
subrecipient (“subgrantee”) at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under this award to
acquire or transfer any property identified on the “controlled equipment” list. The details of the requirement are posted

Page: 13 of 21



on the OJP web site at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled-equipment (Award condition:
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards), and
are incorporated by reference here.

29
Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may
be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by
law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

30
All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/
funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal
authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

31
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 54.140 contains notice requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the
dissemination of information regarding federal nondiscrimination requirements.

32
FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of $30,000 or more
and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted
on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to-- (1) an award of less than $30,000, or (2) an
award made to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit

Page: 14 of 21



organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

33
The recipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any product (e.g., curricula, training materials,
publications, reports, videos, or any other written, web-based, or audio-visual, or other materials) that will be developed
and published under this award at least thirty (30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. The current
edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and publication activities. Any
products developed under this award, (with the exception of press releases, web sites, and mobile applications), shall
contain the following statements: “This project was supported by Grant No. <Award_Number> awarded by the Bureau
of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view or opinions in this
document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice." (Note: A separate disclaimer has been developed and is required for web sites and mobile
applications. No disclaimer is required for press releases.)

34
The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data collection
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any
activities within this project.

35
Verification and updating of recipient contact information

The recipient must verify its Grant Award Administrator, Financial Manager, and Authorized Representative contact
information in JustGrants, including telephone number and e-mail address. If any information is incorrect or has
changed, the award recipient’s Entity Administrator must make changes to contact information through DIAMD.
Instructions on how to update contact information in JustGrants can be found at https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/training/
training-entity-management.

36
Recipient understands and agrees that it must submit quarterly Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) and semi-annual
performance reports through JustGrants (justgrants.usdoj.gov), and that it must submit quarterly performance metrics
reports through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website (https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/). For more detailed
information on reporting and other requirements, refer to BJA's website. Failure to submit required reports by
established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and High Risk designation.

37
Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events

The recipient (and its subrecipients at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical assistance
events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request.

38
Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager for this award and the Office of Chief Financial
Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks, including
documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable
deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may
result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review; designation of the
recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

39

Page: 15 of 21



The award recipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring program outputs and outcomes. The
data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office of Justice Programs.

40
Protection of human research subjects 

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP
policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional
Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.

41
Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231
and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. The recipient further
agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

42
Copyright; Data rights

The recipient acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use (in whole or in part, including in connection with derivative
works), for Federal purposes: (1) any work subject to copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier);
and (2) any rights of copyright to which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases ownership with Federal
support.

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (1) obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data first
produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use
such data for Federal purposes. "Data" includes data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision
52.227-14 (Rights in Data - General).

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to ensure that the provisions
of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this award.

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors (if any) all rights and
data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under this award. If a proposed subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms affording the Government such rights, the recipient shall promptly
bring such refusal to the attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in
question without further authorization from the OJP program office.

43
Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following statement on the home
page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to
interior content), and on any pages from which a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages
that provide results or outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of
Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including,
without limitation, its content, technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of
the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may be included
through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

44
Body armor - compliance with NIJ standards and other requirements 

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased at any threat level,

Page: 16 of 21



make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body armor has been tested and found to comply
with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor
Model List. In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States
and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard information and the NIJ
Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/
topics/equipment-and-technology/body-armor. In addition, if recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body
armor, the recipient is strongly encouraged to have a "mandatory wear" policy in effect. There are no requirements
regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

45
The grantee agrees to secure and maintain on file signed statements by each member of the selection committee
appointed by the United States Attorney or the PSN Task Force indicating that in making recommendations or
decisions regarding contracts or subgrants paid for by this grant, the member had no conflict of interest. Such
statements must include all of the language included in the PSN Conflict of Interest Certification, however, the grantee
may use a different format or may add other related certifications of their own.

46
The recipient agrees to ensure that 30 percent of PSN funding is used to support gang task forces in the United States
regions experiencing a significant or increased presence of criminal or transnational organizations engaging in high
levels of violent crime, firearms offenses, human trafficking, and drug trafficking.

47
The recipient agrees to submit to DOJ for review and approval, any proposal or plan for Project Safe Neighborhoods
media-related outreach. DOJ approval must be received prior to any obligation or expenditure of grant funds related to
the development of media-related outreach projects.

48
The recipient agrees to coordinate the project with the U.S. Attorney and Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force for
the district covered by the award. The recipient also is encouraged to coordinate with other community justice
initiatives, and other ongoing, local gun prosecution and law enforcement strategies.

49
PSN Fiscal Agent Definition

References in this award document to "recipient" and "fiscal agent" both refer equally to the entity or organization
receiving this award directly.

50
The recipient understands and agrees that no more than 10 percent of the total amount of this award may be used by
the recipient for costs associated with administering the award.

51
Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable statutes, regulations, award
conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include the applicable conditions of this award in any
subaward. Among other things, the recipient is responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of
specific outcomes and benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,
upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under this award.

52
The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares and certifies, among
other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept the award on behalf of the recipient entity
and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of

Page: 17 of 21



performance under this award. The recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role
of Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first ensuring that the
individual has the requisite legal authority.

53
The recipient understands that proposed subawards are approved on a provisional basis only. The recipient may not
obligate, expend, or draw down funds for subawards until BJA provides explicit written approval of the proposed
subaward. Prior approval for all subawards must be obtained post-award, through the submission and approval of a
Grant Award Modification (GAM) through OJP’s JustGrants system.

54
If award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA profiles must be uploaded
to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database operated by the FBI) by a government DNA
laboratory with access to CODIS. With the exception of Forensic Genetic Genealogy, no profiles generated under this
award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA database without prior express written approval
from BJA. Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and supplies unless the resulting DNA
profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work with their state CODIS agency to ensure
all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures
Manual).

55
The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or subaward, at any tier) may be
used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any
accompanying accessories to support UAS.

56
The recipient's budget (and budget narrative) is pending clearance by OJP. 

Prior to budget clearance (and unless there is a more restrictive condition on this award, in which case the terms of
that more restrictive condition apply): The recipient may not drawdown more than 10% of the award. Pre-clearance
obligations, expenditures, and drawdowns may be disallowed if not in compliance with program requirements. 

The recipient should be judicious in using award funds prior to budget clearance. Generally, OJP expects that
recipients (depending on the specific project scope) may need to advertise for award-funded positions, pay personnel
and fringe benefits for positions budgeted under the award, plan for project activities, attend training and pay training-
related travel needed to begin the project, and engage in other limited activities conducted by recipient staff (i.e.,
generally not requiring a subaward or procurement contract under an award). 

OJP will issue an Award Condition Modification upon budget clearance.

57
Recipient may not expend or drawdown more than 10% of the award funds until the Bureau of Justice Assistance,
Office of Justice Programs has received and approved the required application attachment(s) and has issued an Award
Condition Modification (ACM) releasing this award condition. Obligations, expenditures, and drawdowns prior to the
ACM are made at the recipient's risk and may be disallowed if not in compliance with program requirements or
approved budget.

58
The recipient may not obligate, expend, or draw down any award funds for indirect costs, unless and until either -- (1)
the recipient submits to OJP a current, federally-approved indirect cost rate agreement, or (2) the recipient determines
that it is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2
C.F.R. 200.414(f), and advises OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election. 

The financial review of the budget for this award is pending. If the OJP Office of the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO)
determines as part of its financial review that the recipient already has submitted the documentation concerning

Page: 18 of 21



indirect costs described above, this condition will be released through a Grant Award Condition Modification (ACM)
upon completion of the OCFO final budget review.

If the OJP OCFO instead determines as part of its financial review that the recipient has not yet submitted the required
documentation concerning indirect costs, this condition will not be released until OJP (including its OCFO) receives
and reviews a satisfactory submission.

59
The recipient agrees to comply with all Federal, State, and local environmental laws and regulations applicable to the
development and implementation of the activities to be funded under this award. 

Environmental Assessment (EA): The recipient agrees and understands that funded activities (whether conducted by
the recipient or subrecipients or contractors) may require the preparation of an EA as defined by the Council on
Environmental Quality's Regulations for implementing the Procedural Provisions of the National Environmental Policy
Act (NEPA), found at 40 CFR Part 1500. An EA is a concise public document that briefly provides sufficient analysis for
determining whether to prepare an environmental impact statement (EIS) or a finding of no significant impact for the
proposed activity. If in completing an EA for a proposed activity, potential adverse environmental impacts are identified,
the EA will serve as a vehicle for developing either alternative approaches or mitigation measures for avoiding or
reducing the identified adverse environmental impacts. 

Modifications: Throughout the term of this award, the recipient agrees that for any activity that is the subject of a
completed EA, it will inform BJA of-- (1) any change(s) that it is considering making to the previously assessed activity
that may be relevant to environmental impact; or (2) any proposed new activities or changed circumstances that may
require assessment as to environmental impact, such as new activities that involve the use of chemicals or involve
construction or major renovation. The recipient will not implement a proposed change or new activity until BJA, with the
assistance of the recipient, has determined whether the proposed change or activity (or changed circumstances) will
require additional review under NEPA. Approval for implementation will not be unreasonably withheld as long as any
requested modification(s) is consistent with eligible program purposes and found acceptable under a BJA-conducted
environmental impact review process.

60
The recipient is authorized to incur obligations, expend, and draw down funds in an amount not to exceed 25% of the
total amount of the award. None of these funds may be used to acquire chemicals, or implement a project involving the
use of chemicals such as testing of evidence, or implement a major renovation or construction project, while this
condition remains on the award. The recipient is not authorized to incur any additional obligations, or make any
additional expenditures or drawdowns until the program office has verified that the recipient has submitted all
necessary documentation required to comply with Department of Justice Environmental Impact Review Procedures
found at 28 CFR Part 61, Appendix D, OJP has reviewed and approved the documentation, and an Award Condition
Modification (ACM) has been issued removing this condition.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Acceptance

Declaration and Certification to the U.S. Department of Justice as to Acceptance

By checking the declaration and certification box below, I-- 

A.    Declare to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), under penalty of perjury, that I have authority to make this
declaration and certification on behalf of the applicant.

B.    Certify to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, that the following are true as of the date of this award acceptance: (1) I have conducted or there was conducted

Page: 19 of 21



(including by applicant’s legal counsel as appropriate and made available to me) a diligent review of all terms and
conditions of, and all supporting materials submitted in connection with, this award, including any assurances and
certifications (including anything submitted  in connection therewith by a person on behalf of the applicant before, after,
or at the time of the application submission and any materials that accompany this acceptance and certification); and
(2) I have the legal authority to accept this award on behalf of the applicant. 

C.    Accept this award on behalf of the applicant.

D.    Declare the following to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant:  (1) I understand
that, in taking (or not taking) any action pursuant to this declaration and certification, DOJ will rely upon this declaration
and certification as a material representation; and (2) I understand that any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information or statement in this declaration and certification (or concealment or omission of a material fact as to either)
may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§
10271-10273), and also may subject me and the applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies under the
federal False Claims Act (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and/or §§ 3801-3812) or otherwise.

Agency Approval

Title of Approving Official
Acting Assistant Attorney General

Name of Approving Official
Brent J. Cohen

Signed Date And Time
9/27/24 9:48 AM

Authorized Representative

 Declaration and Certification

Entity Acceptance

Title of Authorized Entity Official
County Administrator

Name of Authorized Entity Official
Patrick Thompson

Signed Date And Time
10/2/2024 4:43 PM

 

Page: 20 of 21



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov     

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: November 18, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 

between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners – CDIL  

County Code:      Not applicable  
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No Appropriation Amount:        $112,328.00 

If not, explain funding source:  Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information: The County of Winnebago, Illinois desires to continue its role as Fiscal Agency 
for the United States Department of Justice, Central District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) 
initiative pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and retaining ten percent (10%) of the total award which 
will be applied to grants administration. Sub-award Agreements are pre-selected by the Project Safe 
Neighborhoods Task Force with final approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: The following agreement/sub-agreements are recommended, pending final DOJ 
approval: 

1) Agreement with the U.S Department of Justice $112,328 
2) Sub-award Agreement with Illinois State Police $  76,259 
3) Sub-award Agreement with Roberts Analytics $  20,640 

Contract/Agreement: See attached.

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the award and will review each sub-
agreement prior to execution. 

Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 26, 2024 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FY2024 AWARD AND AUTHORIZING AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, AND PROJECT SAFE 

NEIGHBORHOODS (PSN) PARTNERS – CDIL  

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago’s Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 
has partnered with the U.S. Department of Justice to act as Fiscal Agency to implement 
Project Safe Neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the DOJ Award Letter, Resolution Exhibit A, and 
recommends accepting award and awarding sub agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned shall be as follows: 

61400-various-PSXXX 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to accept and execute, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Agreement with the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, in the dollar 
amount of  one hundred twelve thousand three hundred twenty-eight dollars ($112,328.00), and 
sub-agreements with the ILLINOIS STATE POLICE in the amount of  seventy-six thousand two 
hundred fifty-nine dollars ($76,259.00), and ROBERTS ANALYTICS in the amount of  twenty 
thousand six hundred forty dollars ($20,640.00). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the aforementioned sub-agreements, and the award in substantially the same form as 
the Agreement attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor. 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
   PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: November 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: 
Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners 

Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/01/24 – 09/30/27 

Is match required?     yes    no 

- If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?    yes    no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?   yes    no 
- If yes, what is the granting agency’s allowable de minimis Indirect Cost rate?

Is the indirect cost included in the budget?    yes    no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $50,000 of each 
subaward. 

- If no, please explain: Yes, however, less the contractual % to allow for direct staff at 5%.

Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no  

- If yes, please explain:

How many sub-awards are included in this award?   Two (2) 

- Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?    yes    no 
- If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or

contract:

http://www.wincoil.us/


Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Washington, D.C. 20531

Name and Address of Recipient: COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
404 ELM ST 

City, State and Zip: ROCKFORD, IL 61101  

Recipient UEI: SBEVXUKXKGK3 

Project Title: Project Safe Neighborhoods
FY24 - Central Illinois  Award Number: 15PBJA-24-GG-04074-GUNP

Solicitation Title: BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program 

Federal Award Amount: $112,328.00   Federal Award Date: 9/27/24 

Awarding Agency:   Office of Justice Programs
Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Funding Instrument Type: Grant 

Opportunity Category: O
Assistance Listing:
16.609 - Project Safe Neighborhoods

Project Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Project Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Budget Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Budget Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Project Description:

The United States Attorney’s Office for the Central District of Illinois (CDIL) will utilize Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN)
Fiscal Year 2024 (FY24) funds to build on current efforts underway to further reduce firearm, narcotics, and gang crimes by
focusing on the most violent individuals in the most violent neighborhoods throughout four specific jurisdictions in the CDIL's 46-
county district. These jurisdictions include Northwest/Rock Island, North Central/Peoria, East Central/Urbana, and South Central/
Springfield.  The CDIL will continue to address known high crime areas, organized/repeat violent offenders, and structured
criminal groups (gangs), to include juveniles. Considering the District's drivers of violence, current funded projects, and required
set-asides, voting members of the CDIL PSN Task Force elected 2024 funds to be distributed to support Focused and Strategic
Enforcement initiatives as well as Accountability (evaluation) services. As such, FY24 funds will be allocated to the Illinois State
Police to continue PSN enforcement efforts throughout the four jurisdictions specifically targeting violent crime and gang violence
in regions with the highest concentrations of gang activity.  Funding will also be provided to Robert Analytics to support project
research/evaluation.

The goal of this project is to leverage existing multi-disciplinary partnerships and research-based initiatives to target enforcement
efforts for individuals at high risk for violent offences. Objectives include provision of enforcement services to targeted individuals
and enhancing officer decision-making through evaluation. This initiative is expected to further strengthen community and law
enforcement communication and reduce violent crime. 

Page: 1 of 21

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Award Letter

September 27, 2024  

Dear Patrick Thompson,
 
On behalf of Attorney General Merrick B. Garland, it is my pleasure to inform you the Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) has approved the application submitted by  COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  for an award under the funding
opportunity entitled 2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program. The approved award
amount is $112,328.
Review the Award Instrument below carefully and familiarize yourself with all conditions and requirements before
accepting your award. The Award Instrument includes the Award Offer (Award Information, Project Information,
Financial Information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceptance. For COPS Office and OVW funding the Award
Offer also includes any Other Award Documents. 

Please note that award requirements include not only the conditions and limitations set forth in the Award Offer, but
also compliance with assurances and certifications that relate to conduct during the period of performance for the
award. These requirements encompass financial, administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other important
matters (e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds). Therefore, all key staff should receive the award conditions, the
assurances and certifications, and the application as approved by OJP, so that they understand the award
requirements. Information on all pertinent award requirements also must be provided to any subrecipient of the award.
 

Should you accept the award and then fail to comply with an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate remedies
for non-compliance, which may include termination of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Prior to accepting the award, your Entity Administrator must assign a Financial Manager, Grant Award Administrator,
and Authorized Representative(s) in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants). The Entity Administrator will need to
ensure the assigned Authorized Representative(s) is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and bind the
entity to the award terms and conditions. To accept the award, the Authorized Representative(s) must accept all parts
of the Award Offer in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants), including by executing the required declaration and
certification, within 45 days from the award date.

To access your funds, you will need to enroll in the Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) system, if
you haven’t already completed the enrollment process in ASAP. The Entity Administrator should have already received
an email from ASAP to initiate this process. 

Congratulations, and we look forward to working with you.

Brent J. Cohen
Acting Assistant Attorney General  
Office for Civil Rights Notice for All Recipients

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) enforces federal
civil rights laws and other provisions that prohibit discrimination by recipients of federal financial assistance from OJP,
the Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW).

Several civil rights laws, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, require recipients of federal financial assistance (recipients) to give assurances that they will comply with those
laws.  Taken together, these and other civil rights laws prohibit recipients from discriminating in the provision of
services and employment because of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, and sex or from discriminating in
the provision of services on the bases of age.

Some recipients of DOJ financial assistance have additional obligations to comply with other applicable
nondiscrimination provisions like the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of religion in addition to race, color, national origin, and sex.  Recipients may also have
related requirements regarding the development and implementation of equal employment opportunity programs.

Page: 2 of 21



OCR provides technical assistance, training, and other resources to help recipients comply with civil rights obligations. 
Further, OCR administratively enforces civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions by investigating DOJ
recipients that are the subject of discrimination complaints.  In addition, OCR conducts compliance reviews of DOJ
recipients based on regulatory criteria.  These investigations and compliance reviews permit OCR to evaluate whether
DOJ recipients are providing services to the public and engaging in employment practices in a nondiscriminatory
manner.

For more information about OCR, your civil rights and nondiscrimination responsibilities, how to notify your employees
or beneficiaries of their civil rights protections and responsibilities and how to file a complaint, as well as technical
assistance, training, and other resources, please visit www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach.  If you would
like OCR to assist you in fulfilling your civil rights or nondiscrimination responsibilities, please contact us at askOCR@o
jp.usdoj.gov or www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts.  

Memorandum Regarding NEPA

NEPA Letter Type
OJP - Categorical Exclusion

NEPA Letter

None of the following activities will be conducted whether under the Office of Justice Programs federal action or a
related third-party action:

(1) New construction
(2) Any renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically sensitive area, including
property (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, or (b) located within a 100-year
flood plain, a wetland, or habitat for an endangered species
(3) A renovation that will change the basic prior use of a facility or significantly change its size
(4) Research and technology whose anticipated and future application could be expected to have an effect on the
environment
(5) Implementation of a program involving the use of chemicals (including the identification, seizure, or closure of
clandestine methamphetamine laboratories)

Additionally, the proposed action is neither a phase nor a segment of a project that when reviewed in its entirety would
not meet the criteria for a categorical exclusion. 

Consequently, the subject federal action meets the Office of Justice Programs' criteria for a categorical exclusion as
contained in paragraph 4(b) of Appendix D to Part 61 of Title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

Questions about this determination may be directed to your grant manager or Orbin Terry, Environmental Coordinator
for the Bureau of Justice Assistance.

NEPA Coordinator
First Name
Orbin Middle Name

Last Name
Terry

Award Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Recipient Information

Recipient Name
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

Page: 3 of 21

http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts


UEI
SBEVXUKXKGK3

Street 1
404 ELM ST Street 2

City
ROCKFORD

State/U.S. Territory
Illinois

Zip/Postal Code
61101

Country
United States

County/Parish
 

Province
 

Award Details

Federal Award Date
9/27/24

Award Type
Initial

Award Number
15PBJA-24-GG-04074-GUNP

Supplement Number
00

Federal Award Amount
$112,328.00

Funding Instrument Type
Grant

Assistance Listing
Number

Assistance Listings Program Title

16.609 Project Safe Neighborhoods

Statutory Authority

Pub. L. No. 115-185 (codified at 34 U.S.C. 60701-60705)

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Project Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Solicitation Title

2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula
Grant Program

Application Number
GRANT14213682

Awarding Agency
OJP

Program Office
BJA

Page: 4 of 21



Grant Manager Name
Lauren Troy
Phone Number
202-598-9472
E-mail Address
Lauren.Troy@usdoj.gov

Project Title
Project Safe Neighborhoods FY24 - Central Illinois

Performance Period Start
Date
10/01/2024

Performance Period End Date
09/30/2027

Budget Period Start Date
10/01/2024

Budget Period End Date
09/30/2027

Project Description

The United States Attorney’s Office for the Central District of Illinois (CDIL) will utilize Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN)
Fiscal Year 2024 (FY24) funds to build on current efforts underway to further reduce firearm, narcotics, and gang crimes by
focusing on the most violent individuals in the most violent neighborhoods throughout four specific jurisdictions in the CDIL's 46-
county district. These jurisdictions include Northwest/Rock Island, North Central/Peoria, East Central/Urbana, and South Central/
Springfield.  The CDIL will continue to address known high crime areas, organized/repeat violent offenders, and structured
criminal groups (gangs), to include juveniles. Considering the District's drivers of violence, current funded projects, and required
set-asides, voting members of the CDIL PSN Task Force elected 2024 funds to be distributed to support Focused and Strategic
Enforcement initiatives as well as Accountability (evaluation) services. As such, FY24 funds will be allocated to the Illinois State
Police to continue PSN enforcement efforts throughout the four jurisdictions specifically targeting violent crime and gang violence
in regions with the highest concentrations of gang activity.  Funding will also be provided to Robert Analytics to support project
research/evaluation.

The goal of this project is to leverage existing multi-disciplinary partnerships and research-based initiatives to target enforcement
efforts for individuals at high risk for violent offences. Objectives include provision of enforcement services to targeted individuals
and enhancing officer decision-making through evaluation. This initiative is expected to further strengthen community and law
enforcement communication and reduce violent crime. 

Note: This project contains a research and/or development component, as defined in applicable law.  See Part 200
Uniform Requirements.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Financial Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

The recipient budget is currently under review. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Page: 5 of 21

tel:202-598-9472


Award Conditions

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

1
Meaningful access requirement for individuals with limited English proficiency

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must take reasonable steps to ensure that individuals with limited
English proficiency (LEP) have meaningful access to their programs and activities to comply with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of national origin, including discrimination
against individuals with LEP. Such steps may require providing language assistance services, such as interpretation or
translation services. The Department of Justice guidance on compliance with this requirement may be found at
"Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons" (67 Fed. Reg. 41455-41472) (https://
www.federalregister.gov/d/02-15207) and is incorporated by reference here.

2
Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2024)
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions that may be set out in applicable
appropriations acts are indicated at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY24AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

3
Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") may determine that it will
not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions" (ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and
incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -- may
result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other
legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Page: 6 of 21



Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

4
Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

5
Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this award
from OJP.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and
subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

6
Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in connection with funds under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm
(select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

7
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38.

Page: 7 of 21



Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of
religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice.
Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that
engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

Recipients and subrecipients that provide social services under this award must give written notice to beneficiaries and
prospective beneficiaries prior to the provision of services (if practicable) which shall include language substantially
similar to the language in 28 CFR Part 38, Appendix C, sections (1) through (4). A sample written notice may be found
at https://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/partnerships-faith-based-and-other-neighborhood-organizations.

In certain instances, a faith-based or religious organization may be able to take religion into account when making
hiring decisions, provided it satisfies certain requirements. For more information, please see https://www.ojp.gov/
funding/explore/legaloverview2024/civilrightsrequirements.

8
Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "de minimis"
indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must
advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part
200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

9
Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

10
Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this
award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the
program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

11
Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

12
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

Page: 8 of 21



The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
equal employment opportunity program.

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 42.106(d), 28 C.F.R. § 42.405(c), and 28 C.F.R. § 42.505(f) contain notice
requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the dissemination of information regarding federal
nondiscrimination requirements.

13
Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award (as approved by DOJ)(or
in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal
statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with
participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

14
Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient must disclose that fact and certain
related information to OJP by email at OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high
risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the
following: 1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

15
Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must--

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole
or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both--

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to
hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with

Page: 9 of 21



Form I-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for
the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award" specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibility, the recipient
(or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate
person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with
award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient
at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-Verify website
(https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

16
Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

17
Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The
reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and

Page: 10 of 21



cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified
to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in
material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

18
Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or
both--

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that
prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

19
OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees,

Page: 11 of 21



available at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/implement/training-guiding-principles-grantees-and-subgrantees.

20
Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would
exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm
(Award condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract
(if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

21
Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of
those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical
cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ awarding
agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any
inappropriate duplication of funding.

22
Required training for Grant Award Administrator and Financial Manager

The Grant Award Administrator and all Financial Managers for this award must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the
award. Successful completion of such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that either the Grant Award Administrator or a Financial Manager for this award changes during the period
of performance, the new Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after the date the Entity Administrator
enters updated Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager information in JustGrants. Successful completion of
such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant administration training" for
purposes of this condition is available at https://onlinegfmt.training.ojp.gov/. All trainings that satisfy this condition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to comply
with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions on
this award.

23
Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

Page: 12 of 21



The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

24
Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP
authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

25
Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-
risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

26
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an
imminent breach.

27
Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently
accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as
maintaining the currency of information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-tier subrecipients (first-
tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the
unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated
to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

Page: 13 of 21



28
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards

Consistent with Executive Order 14074, “Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice Practices To
Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety,” OJP has prohibited the use of federal funds under this award for purchases
or transfers of specified equipment by law enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any
subrecipient (“subgrantee”) at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under this award to
acquire or transfer any property identified on the “controlled equipment” list. The details of the requirement are posted
on the OJP web site at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled-equipment (Award condition:
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards), and
are incorporated by reference here.

29
Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may
be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by
law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

30
All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/
funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal
authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

31
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 54.140 contains notice requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the
dissemination of information regarding federal nondiscrimination requirements.

32
FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

Page: 14 of 21



The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of $30,000 or more
and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted
on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to-- (1) an award of less than $30,000, or (2) an
award made to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit
organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

33
The recipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any product (e.g., curricula, training materials,
publications, reports, videos, or any other written, web-based, or audio-visual, or other materials) that will be developed
and published under this award at least thirty (30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. The current
edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and publication activities. Any
products developed under this award, (with the exception of press releases, web sites, and mobile applications), shall
contain the following statements: “This project was supported by Grant No. <Award_Number> awarded by the Bureau
of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view or opinions in this
document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice." (Note: A separate disclaimer has been developed and is required for web sites and mobile
applications. No disclaimer is required for press releases.)

34
The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data collection
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any
activities within this project.

35
Verification and updating of recipient contact information

The recipient must verify its Grant Award Administrator, Financial Manager, and Authorized Representative contact
information in JustGrants, including telephone number and e-mail address. If any information is incorrect or has
changed, the award recipient’s Entity Administrator must make changes to contact information through DIAMD.
Instructions on how to update contact information in JustGrants can be found at https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/training/
training-entity-management.

36
Recipient understands and agrees that it must submit quarterly Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) and semi-annual
performance reports through JustGrants (justgrants.usdoj.gov), and that it must submit quarterly performance metrics
reports through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website (https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/). For more detailed
information on reporting and other requirements, refer to BJA's website. Failure to submit required reports by
established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and High Risk designation.

37
Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events

The recipient (and its subrecipients at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical assistance
events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request.

38
Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager for this award and the Office of Chief Financial

Page: 15 of 21



Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks, including
documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable
deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may
result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review; designation of the
recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

39
The award recipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring program outputs and outcomes. The
data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office of Justice Programs.

40
Protection of human research subjects 

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP
policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional
Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.

41
Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231
and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. The recipient further
agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

42
Copyright; Data rights

The recipient acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use (in whole or in part, including in connection with derivative
works), for Federal purposes: (1) any work subject to copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier);
and (2) any rights of copyright to which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases ownership with Federal
support.

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (1) obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data first
produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use
such data for Federal purposes. "Data" includes data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision
52.227-14 (Rights in Data - General).

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to ensure that the provisions
of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this award.

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors (if any) all rights and
data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under this award. If a proposed subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms affording the Government such rights, the recipient shall promptly
bring such refusal to the attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in
question without further authorization from the OJP program office.

43
Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following statement on the home
page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to
interior content), and on any pages from which a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages
that provide results or outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of

Page: 16 of 21



Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including,
without limitation, its content, technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of
the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may be included
through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

44
Body armor - compliance with NIJ standards and other requirements 

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased at any threat level,
make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body armor has been tested and found to comply
with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor
Model List. In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States
and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard information and the NIJ
Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/
topics/equipment-and-technology/body-armor. In addition, if recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body
armor, the recipient is strongly encouraged to have a "mandatory wear" policy in effect. There are no requirements
regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

45
The grantee agrees to secure and maintain on file signed statements by each member of the selection committee
appointed by the United States Attorney or the PSN Task Force indicating that in making recommendations or
decisions regarding contracts or subgrants paid for by this grant, the member had no conflict of interest. Such
statements must include all of the language included in the PSN Conflict of Interest Certification, however, the grantee
may use a different format or may add other related certifications of their own.

46
The recipient agrees to ensure that 30 percent of PSN funding is used to support gang task forces in the United States
regions experiencing a significant or increased presence of criminal or transnational organizations engaging in high
levels of violent crime, firearms offenses, human trafficking, and drug trafficking.

47
The recipient agrees to submit to DOJ for review and approval, any proposal or plan for Project Safe Neighborhoods
media-related outreach. DOJ approval must be received prior to any obligation or expenditure of grant funds related to
the development of media-related outreach projects.

48
The recipient agrees to coordinate the project with the U.S. Attorney and Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force for
the district covered by the award. The recipient also is encouraged to coordinate with other community justice
initiatives, and other ongoing, local gun prosecution and law enforcement strategies.

49
PSN Fiscal Agent Definition

References in this award document to "recipient" and "fiscal agent" both refer equally to the entity or organization
receiving this award directly.

50
The recipient understands and agrees that no more than 10 percent of the total amount of this award may be used by
the recipient for costs associated with administering the award.

51
Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable statutes, regulations, award

Page: 17 of 21



conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include the applicable conditions of this award in any
subaward. Among other things, the recipient is responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of
specific outcomes and benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,
upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under this award.

52
The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares and certifies, among
other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept the award on behalf of the recipient entity
and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of
performance under this award. The recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role
of Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first ensuring that the
individual has the requisite legal authority.

53
The recipient understands that proposed subawards are approved on a provisional basis only. The recipient may not
obligate, expend, or draw down funds for subawards until BJA provides explicit written approval of the proposed
subaward. Prior approval for all subawards must be obtained post-award, through the submission and approval of a
Grant Award Modification (GAM) through OJP’s JustGrants system.

54
If award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA profiles must be uploaded
to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database operated by the FBI) by a government DNA
laboratory with access to CODIS. With the exception of Forensic Genetic Genealogy, no profiles generated under this
award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA database without prior express written approval
from BJA. Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and supplies unless the resulting DNA
profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work with their state CODIS agency to ensure
all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures
Manual).

55
The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or subaward, at any tier) may be
used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any
accompanying accessories to support UAS.

56
The recipient's budget (and budget narrative) is pending clearance by OJP. 

Prior to budget clearance (and unless there is a more restrictive condition on this award, in which case the terms of
that more restrictive condition apply): The recipient may not drawdown more than 10% of the award. Pre-clearance
obligations, expenditures, and drawdowns may be disallowed if not in compliance with program requirements. 

The recipient should be judicious in using award funds prior to budget clearance. Generally, OJP expects that
recipients (depending on the specific project scope) may need to advertise for award-funded positions, pay personnel
and fringe benefits for positions budgeted under the award, plan for project activities, attend training and pay training-
related travel needed to begin the project, and engage in other limited activities conducted by recipient staff (i.e.,
generally not requiring a subaward or procurement contract under an award). 

OJP will issue an Award Condition Modification upon budget clearance.

57
The recipient may not expend or drawdown more than 10% of the award funds until: (1) it has provided to the grant
manager for this OJP award information regarding research and evaluation independence and integrity in accordance
with the detailed instructions in the program solicitation, (2) OJP has completed its review of the information provided
and of any supplemental information it may request, (3) the recipient has made (or agreed to) any adjustments to the
award (including as to amount) that OJP may require to prevent, eliminate, mitigate, or otherwise adequately address

Page: 18 of 21



any actual or apparent personal or financial conflict of interest on the part of the investigators or other staff/consultants
engaged in the research/evaluation or organizational conflict of interest on the part of the recipient entity, and (4)
Award Condition Modification (ACM) has been issued to remove this condition. Obligations, expenditures, and
drawdowns prior to the ACM are made at the recipient's risk and may be disallowed if not in compliance with program
requirements or approved budget.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Acceptance

Declaration and Certification to the U.S. Department of Justice as to Acceptance

By checking the declaration and certification box below, I-- 

A.    Declare to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), under penalty of perjury, that I have authority to make this
declaration and certification on behalf of the applicant.

B.    Certify to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, that the following are true as of the date of this award acceptance: (1) I have conducted or there was conducted
(including by applicant’s legal counsel as appropriate and made available to me) a diligent review of all terms and
conditions of, and all supporting materials submitted in connection with, this award, including any assurances and
certifications (including anything submitted  in connection therewith by a person on behalf of the applicant before, after,
or at the time of the application submission and any materials that accompany this acceptance and certification); and
(2) I have the legal authority to accept this award on behalf of the applicant. 

C.    Accept this award on behalf of the applicant.

D.    Declare the following to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant:  (1) I understand
that, in taking (or not taking) any action pursuant to this declaration and certification, DOJ will rely upon this declaration
and certification as a material representation; and (2) I understand that any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information or statement in this declaration and certification (or concealment or omission of a material fact as to either)
may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§
10271-10273), and also may subject me and the applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies under the
federal False Claims Act (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and/or §§ 3801-3812) or otherwise.

Agency Approval

Title of Approving Official
Acting Assistant Attorney General

Name of Approving Official
Brent J. Cohen

Signed Date And Time
9/25/24 3:56 PM

Authorized Representative

 Declaration and Certification

Entity Acceptance

Title of Authorized Entity Official
County Administrator

Name of Authorized Entity Official
Patrick Thompson

Signed Date And Time
10/2/2024 4:42 PM

Page: 19 of 21



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov    

Prepared By:   Rick Ciganek 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   November 18, 2024 

Board Meeting Date:      November 26, 2024 

Resolution Title:         Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Agreement for Police Services with 815 
Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?       yes  Appropriation Amount:  

If not, explain funding source:  815 Entertainment LLC, Dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A     Budget Impact: N/A  

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes a servicing contract with 815 
Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford at the new casino. The extension went into effect 
August 29, 2024 and terminates automatically on August 28, 2027. The agreement provides funding for 
police services for one deputy for 12 hours a day, seven days a week and an additional part-time deputy. 
It also provides for additional billing rates for special events, the purchase and training of a police K-9 and 
the cost of a squad car. 815 Entertainment LLC, will pay approximately four hundred thirteen thousand 
($413,000.00) the first year of the agreement, four hundred twenty-six thousand ($426,000.00) the 
second year of the agreement and four hundred forty thousand $440,000.00) in the final year of the 
agreement. 

Recommendation:    Approve the agreement. 

Contract/Agreement:  Attached 

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approved the contract. 

Follow-Up:   n/a 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 26, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR POLICE SERVICES WITH 815 
ENTERTAINMENT LLC, DBA HARD ROCK CASINO ROCKFORD 

 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes the extension of an 
agreement for police services with 815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford at the 
new casino; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement shall commence on August 29, 2024, and 
terminate automatically on August 28, 2027 unless it is renewed in writing by the parties on or 
before the termination date; and  

WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the agreement regarding details of police 
services for the Hard Rock Casino and recommends approving an agreement from: 

815 Entertainment 
DBA Hardrock Casino Rockford 
7801 East State Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61108 
Attn: Director of Security 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement similar in language to Resolution Exhibit A with 815 
ENTERTAINMENT, DBA HARDROCK CASINO ROCKFORD, 7801 EAST STATE STREET, 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61108. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Deputy-Chief-Uniform Services 
Bureau, Winnebago County Sheriff, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board 
Office, and County Auditor.       



 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

  PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
            

                  
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



1 

AGREEMENT 
FOR POLICE SERVICES 

This Agreement for Police Services (“Agreement”) entered into by and among the 815 
Entertainment LLC, dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford ("Hard Rock"), the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois (“County”) and the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office (“Sheriff”) for 
the purchase and provision of law enforcement services to Hard Rock, located at 7801 East 
State Street, Rockford, Illinois (new casino).  Hard Rock, the County and the Sheriff are 
collectively referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.”  

The Parties hereby agree as follows: 

Section I. TERM 

A. This Agreement shall commence on August 29, 2024 and terminate automatically on
August 28, 2027 unless it is renewed in writing by the parties on or before the
termination date of August 28, 2027.

B. This Agreement may be amended by agreement or terminated at will, by the parties
upon a 30-day written notice executed by any one of the parties.

Section II. STAFFING BY SHERIFF’S DEPUTIES 

A. The Sheriff, pursuant to this Agreement, shall assign fully equipped uniformed Deputies
totaling 5,212 hours per year to provide the law enforcement services and schedule listed
herein.

B. One (1) Deputy will be assigned exclusively to Hard Rock located at 7801 East State
Street, Rockford, Illinois, twelve (12) hours per day; three hundred sixty-five (365) days
per year. The hours will be determined by Hard Rock Management. One (1) additional
Deputy will be assigned on Friday and Saturday nights for eight (8) hours, from 7:00 p.m.
to 3:00 a.m.

C. Hard Rock reserves the right to request additional personnel. Additional personnel or
hire backs shall require an additional fee, in accordance with Section VI of this
Agreement and Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

D. Deputies assigned to work at the Hard Rock property shall report to and work under the
direct supervision of the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office Command Staff.

E. Deputies that are assigned will assist Hard Rock security staff and management staff with
any requests for police services, patrol the exterior and interior of the building, provide
assistance to customers and staff as requested, and be present for the money pick up from
the casino. The primary goal is to provide extra visual deterrence and protection to
patrons and staff.



2  

Section III. COORDINATION 
 

The Deputy Chief assigned by the Sheriff shall serve as liaison to the Hard Rock Police 
Program. The liaison shall be available to the Hard Rock representatives to assist in the 
implementation of this Agreement. 

 
Section IV. UNIFORMS 

 

Designated Sheriff’s Deputies shall be fully equipped by the Sheriff and shall wear the 
authorized uniform of the Sheriff’s Office. Additional or alternative clothing for special 
assignments shall be approved by the Deputy Chief serving as liaison. 
 

  Section V. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Hard Rock shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Sheriff, the County and the 
Sheriff and County’s officers, agents, elected and appointed officials, and employees, 
from and against any and all claims, loss, damage, injury and liability, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees, as a result of the grossly negligent or willful acts of Hard 
Rock, and/or Hard Rock’s officers, agents and employees in connection with or as a 
result of this Agreement.  
 
The County and Sheriff shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Hard Rock and its 
directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives (each, an “Indemnified Party”) 
from and against any and all claims, loss, damage, injury and liability, excluding attorneys’  
fees, as a result of the grossly negligent or willful acts solely of the County and/or solely of 
the Sheriff or either party’s officers, agents and employees in connection with or as result of 
this Agreement. 
 

Section VI. REIMBURSEMENT PROCEDURES 
 

A. Hard Rock shall compensate the County for police services and equipment as follows and 
as provided in the attached Exhibit A: 

 
1. Hard Rock agrees to reimburse the Sheriff for the actual personnel costs (salary and 

fringe benefits) for the deputies providing police services to Hard Rock under this 
Agreement. The Sheriff shall remain the sole and exclusive employer of the deputies 
and any other personnel assigned to perform any duties under this Agreement, and 
shall be responsible for securing Worker’s Compensation coverage for all such 
employees. Under no circumstances shall any of the deputies or other employees 
assigned by the Sheriff to perform tasks and duties under this Agreement be 
considered employees of Hard Rock. 

 
 
 



3  

a) Assigned Personnel:  
i. One (1) 12-month Senior Deputy pay working 4,380 hours per year. 

ii. One (1) Additional Deputy pay working 832 hours per year. 
iii. Any additional personnel shall be paid at a flat rate, in accordance with 

Exhibit A. 
 

2.  Hard Rock agrees to purchase a squad car and a K-9 to be used by the County for the    
     services provided under this Agreement for a total amount of $103,000.00.  
 a) The cost of the squad car is $75,000.00. 
 b) The cost of the K-9 and required training is $28,000.00. 
 
3.  Payments shall be made monthly based on a flat rate equal to one month (i.e. 1/12th) of  
     the estimated annual amount.  

 
4.   TOTAL MONTHLY PAYMENT FOR PERSONNEL AND EQUIPMENT: 
 a) August 29, 2024 — August 28, 2025:  $34,444.59 
 b) August 29, 2025 — August 28, 2026: $35,550.01 
 c) August 29, 2026— August 28, 2027: $36,694.12 

 
B. This Agreement shall automatically be modified to accurately reflect any increases or 

decreases as adjustments to salaries and fringe benefits of officers, conforming to any 
changes in the Fraternal Order of Police Lodge #50 contract between the officers and 
Winnebago County. The Sheriff shall notify Hard Rock of any change of compensation 
or any change of the Fraternal Order of Police Lodge #50 contract, in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to such change becoming effective. 
 

SECTION VII. NOTICE 
 

 All notices, approvals, demands, requests or other documents required or permitted under 
this Agreement, other than routine communications necessary for the day-to-day operation of these 
services, shall be deemed properly given if hand delivered or sent by nationally recognized 
overnight carrier or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the 
following addresses: 
 
If to the County:       If to Hard Rock: 
 
County of Winnebago, Illinois    815 Entertainment LLC, 
Attn:  Chairman Joseph Chiarelli     dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford  
404 Elm Street, Room 533     7801 East State St. 
Rockford, Illinois 61101     Rockford, Illinois 61114 
        Attn: Director of Security 
With a copy to: 
 
Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
Attn: Sheriff Gary Caruana 
650 W. State Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61102     



4  

 
Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other parties given in the same manner provided 
above.  Any notice, demand, or request sent pursuant to this Section shall be effective upon receipt 
or refusal of delivery. 
 
Section VIII. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Each Party agrees that during the Term of this Agreement, without obtaining the prior 

written consent of the other Party, neither such Party nor any of its affiliates or 
representatives (each, a "Restricted Person") shall directly or indirectly, for itself or on 
behalf of another person or entity: 

1. Solicit for employment or otherwise induce, influence, or encourage to 
terminate employment with the other Party any current employee of the other 
Party with whom the Restricted Person had more than incidental contact or 
who became known to the Restricted Person in connection with the contract 
(each, a "Covered Employee"), except (i) pursuant to a general solicitation 
through the media that is not directed specifically to any employees of the 
other Party, unless such solicitation is undertaken as a means to circumvent 
the restrictions contained in or conceal a violation of this Section or (ii) if the 
other Party terminated the employment of such Covered Employee before the 
Restricted Person having solicited or otherwise contacted such Covered 
Employee or discussed the employment or other engagement of the Covered 
Employee. 

 
The Parties agree that the duration, scope, and geographical area of the restrictions 
contained in this Section are reasonable. Upon a determination that any term or 
provision of this Section is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the court may modify this 
Section to substitute the maximum duration, scope, or geographical area legally 
permissible under such circumstances to the greatest extent possible to affect the 
restrictions originally contemplated by the Parties hereto. 
 

B. The County agrees to keep in force during the term of the Agreement, Sheriff’s 
obligations under the terms of this Agreement and Worker’s Compensation and related 
insurance coverage at amounts required by statute. The County’s failure to maintain the 
above insurance shall constitute default, and Hard Rock may cancel this Agreement. 

 
C. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Sheriff shall retain control over all 

matters in the performance of the police protection and law enforcement services 
provided herein, including, but not limited to, the personnel assigned, the methods of 
rendering such services, the level of standards of performance, the training, equipment, 
and discipline of any personnel, and the general control of all assigned personnel, 
equipment, communication facilities, and all supplies relevant herein. At no time shall 
any officer, official, or employee of Hard Rock undertake to direct any of the assigned 
personnel as to the performance of police protection and law enforcement services. 



5  

 
D. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Hard Rock shall have the right to request additional 

services, such as traffic control, special events, and incident investigation to the extent 
they are outside of regular police services. Any request for additional services may 
require an additional fee in accordance with Section VI of this Agreement. Hard Rock 
shall not control the method of performance of such services, but may request the time 
and place of performance, and the number of officers to be involved, except where the 
same may conflict with minimum staffing rules or policies of the Sheriff. 

 
E. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of the contracting parties, and 

nothing in this Agreement is intended, either expressly or impliedly, to provide any 
right or benefit of any kind whatsoever to any person or entity who is not a party to this 
agreement, or to acknowledge, establish or impose any legal duty to any third party. 
 

F. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties hereto and it 
supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and discussions between the parties relative 
to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and inure to 
the benefit of and be enforceable by and against their respective successors, personal 
representatives, heirs, legatees, and assigns.     
 

G. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Illinois.  
 

H. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

<signature page follows> 
 
 
 



6  

 
THIS AGREEMENT shall be effective upon the signing of the last party and approval by the 
County Board of Winnebago County, Illinois, the Sheriff of Winnebago County, Illinois, and 
Hard Rock. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the _____ day of 
___________________________, 2024.  

 
 

815 Entertainment, LLC 
dba, Hard Rock Casino 
Rockford 

 
By:    

General Manager 
 
Attest:     

County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 

 By:   _______________     
                   Joseph V. Chiarelli 

         Chairman of the County Board 
         of the County of Winnebago, Illinois  
 

 
 By:       
                 Gary Caruana 

      Winnebago County Sheriff 
 
 
 Attest:      
                        Lori Gummow 

            Clerk of the County Board 
            of the County of Winnebago, Illinois  



HARDROCK CASINO 3 Year Contract 

10/1/24-9/30/25 10/1/25-9/30/26 10/1/26-9/30/27

Average Deputy Rate $41.6550 $43.1129 $44.6219

Average Over-Time Hourly Rate $62.4825 $64.6694 $66.9328

F.I.C.A. -- 6.2% $3.87 $4.01 $4.15

Medicare - 1.45% $0.91 $0.94 $0.97

I.M.R.F.  8.73% $5.45 $5.65 $5.84

TOTAL OT RATE W / BENEFITS $72.7171 $75.2622 $77.8964

Cost for one (1)  Deputy for 12 hours a day, 7 days a 

week (4,380 hours per year) $318,501.04 $329,648.58 $341,186.28

Cost for one (1) Additional Deputy on Friday and 

Saturday nights from 7:00 pm to 3:00 am (832 hours 

per year) $60,500.66 $62,618.18 $64,809.81

TOTAL PERSONNEL $379,001.70 $392,266.76 $405,996.10

Monthly Payment Personnel $31,583.47 $32,688.90 $33,833.01

Squad Car - $75,000 & K9 - $28,000 for a total of 

$103,000 to be Paid monthly over three (3) years $2,861.11 $2,861.11 $2,861.11

TOTAL MONTHLY PAYMENT PERSONNEL AND 

EQUIPMENT $34,444.59 $35,550.01 $36,694.12



UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

Announcements & Communications 
Date: November 26, 2024 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission a letter regarding Byron Station, Unit No. 2 – Alternative Request to
Extend Inservice Testing Interval for Essential Service Water Valves Fourth 10-Year
Inservice Testing Program Interval (EPIOD-L-2024-LLR-0042).

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago
County Treasurer the following:

a. Collateralization Report – as of October 31, 2024
b. Investment Report - as of November 1, 2024
c. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances –October, 2024

http://www.wincoil.us/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood Northern IL District Grant Award
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood Central IL District Grant Award
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Project Safe Neighborhood Southern IL District Grant Award
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for FY2024 Year End Adjustments
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Enhancing Investigation & Prosecution (EIP) Grant Award
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the Cty. of Winn. entitled Cole Henert vs. Winnebago County
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Approving the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds for Economic Impact Programs for the Chairman's Initiative Group Six (6) Project - Harlem Community Center
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution for Approval for Stop-Loss Insurance
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Arthur J. Gallagher for Property & Casualty Coverage
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Phone Call Distribution System using CIP 25 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Cybersecurity Backup Annual Licensing using Department Funding
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Two Vehicle Pool Replacements using CIP 2024 Funds
	Resolution Awarding LED Upgrades for Courthouse Garage Tunnel using CIP 2024 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Flooring Replacement for the States Attorney Office using CIP 23 PSST Funds
	Resolution Awarding Public Safety Building Design-Build Contract to Ringland-Johnson Construction using ARPA Funds
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award & Authorizing Agreements between Cty. of Winn., IL, U.S. Dept. of Justice & (PSN) Partners - NDIL
	Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award & Authorizing Agreements between Cty. of Winn., IL, U.S. Dept. of Justice & (PSN) Partners - SDIL
	Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award & Authorizing Agreements between Cty. of Winn., IL, U.S. Dept. of Justice & (PSN) Partners - CDIL
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Agreement for Police Services with 815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



